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" Sudhir Sunil & Co.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Radhika Heights Limited (Formerly Known as Best on Health Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of RADHIKA HEIGHTS
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, (statement of changes in equity) and the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Standalone state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its loss, total comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Financial Statements.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the standalone financial position,
standalone financial performance, (changes in equity) and standalone cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS & other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies are responsible for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for the
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation, and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that gives a true and fair view and is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken based on these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement



resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has an adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that
individually or in aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
guantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) evaluating the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all



relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for our audit of the aforesaid standalone
financial statement.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintain for the standalone financial statement.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind As
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e. Based on the written representations received from the directors as of 31st March
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
of 31st March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, In our opinion, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls were operating effectively
as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer to Note 30 (a) (b) & (c) to the financial
statements.



(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or

accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

(iii) There were no amounts that were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

(v)

other than as disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“intermediaries”), with the understating, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the company from
any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understating, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company, naothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under A and B above, contain any
material misstatement.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software systems. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.



2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Sudhir Sunil & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 08345N

" !

Partner
Membership No.: 514276
Place: New Delhi

Date: 27-05-2025
UDIN: 25514276BMMHXC3467



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Radhika Heights Limited (“the

Comp

any”) (Formerly Known As Best On Health Limited) on the standalone financial

statements for the year ended on 31st March 2025. We report that:

.
a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

a)

b)

i,
a)

|¢

In Respect of Tangible and Intangible assets
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant, and Equipment.
Property, Plant, and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; No material discrepancies were noticed during such verification.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, all the title deeds of all immovable
property disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company.
According to the information and explanations are given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no revaluation of Property, Plant,
and Equipment and Intangible assets were made during the year.
No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

In Respect of inventory and working capital.
Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management; No material discrepancies were noticed during such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of Order is not
applicable to the company.

Loans are given by Company
According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, or other parties covered in the Register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:
Amount during the year, and the balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with
respect to such loans and advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries, joint
ventures, and associates. Also, the Company has taken reasonable steps for the
recovery of the under mentioned due amounts:-

Nirmala Organic Farms and Resorts Private Limited Rs. 6,64,42,000/-
Redicura Infra Limited Rs. 27,22,96,500/-
Sunanda Infra Limited Rs. 19,53,90,000/-




b)

d)

e)

f)

Cabana Constructions Private Limited Rs. 34,47,47,000/-

Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited Rs. 33,19,17,102/-

Trinidhi finance Private Limited Rs. 81,20,646/-

Aggregate amount during the year, and the balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans and advances and guarantees or security to
parties other than subsidiaries joint ventures, and associates. Also, the Company
has taken reasonable steps for the recovery of the under mentioned due amounts:-

Sanjay Jain Rs. 80,00,000/-
L A Travel Rs. 82,53,756/-

The company had granted loans to its associate Company. In our opinion, the rate of
interest and other terms and conditions on which the loans had been granted to the
bodies corporate listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act were
not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated
and the repayments or receipts are regular.

In respect of loans granted by the company, there is no overdue amount remaining
for more than 90 days.

No loan granted by the company which fallen due during the year, has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over-dues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

The company has granted loan to its subsidiaries and associates in the nature of
loans repayable on demand.

Particulars Total Amount % of total | Loans granted to
Granted as Loan loans Related Parties

Sunanda Infra Limited Rs. 19,53,90,000/- | 16.14% Rs. 1,21,07,92,602/-

Nirmala Buildwell Rs. 27,61,29,000/- | 22.81% Rs. 1,21,07,92,602/-

Private Limited

Nirmala Organic Farms | Rs. 6,64,42,000/- 5.49% Rs. 1,21,07,92,602/-

and Resorts Private

Limited

Redicura Infra Limited Rs.27,22,96,500/- 22.49% Rs. 1,21,07,92,602/-

Cabana Constructions Rs. 34,47,47,000/- | 28.47 % Rs. 1,21,07,92,602/-

Private Limited




vi.

vil.

a)

b)

Loans, investments, guarantees, and security under sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect
of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, provisions of section
185 are not applicable to the Company.

Compliance under sections 73 to 76 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder while accepting Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the provisions of
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 with regard to deposits from the public
is not applicable in the current year. Thus, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

Maintenance of cost records
The provisions of maintenance of cost records under sub-section (I) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

Statutory Dues
Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, Income Tax, Cess, Goods and Service Tax, and other material
statutory dues applicable to it and there were no arrears as of 31st March 2025 for
more than six months from the date they became payable.

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes are given below:

Nature Of Nature of Forum Period to Amount
Statute Dues where which the Lakh
Dispute is Amount
Pending relates
The Income Disallowance | CIT (Appeals) | A.Y 2015-16 502.98
Tax Act, of prior
1961 period
expenses




viii.

ix.

xi.

The Income | Disallowance | CIT (Appeals) | A.Y 2016-17 13.10
Tax Act, under Profits
1961 and Gains of

Business or

Profession

(PGBP)
The Income | Addition of Income Tax AY 2018-19 3.04
Tax Act, Dividend officer
1961 Income
The Income | Fees u/s 234F | Income Tax | A.Y 2019-20 0.10
Tax Act, officer
1961

Unrecorded Income

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records, there are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Thus, paragraph 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Default in repayment of Loans and borrowings taken from banks or financial
institutions

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records, the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial
institution, banks, and government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

Utilisation of IPO and Further Public Offer

The Company did not raise any money by way of an initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (x) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Reporting of Fraud during the year and Whistle Blower

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during our
audit. There is no receipt of whistle-blower complaints.

!



Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

Xvii.

xviii.

Compliance by Nidhi Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Related party compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act — 2013
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
comply with the provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards. However, provisions of section 177 are
not applicable to the Company.

Internal audit system

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has an Internal Audit System
for its size and business activities.

Non Cash Transactions

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

Requirement of Registration under 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act 1934.

Cash Losses
The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and the immediately
preceding financial year.

Resignation by Statutory auditor
The Statutory auditors remain the same during the year.



Xix.  Material Uncertainty
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, no material uncertainty exists as of the
date of the audit report, and in our opinion that the company is capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within 1
year from the balance sheet date.

xX.  Transfer of Funds specified under Schedule VIl of the Companies Act 2013
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not transferred any
unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act within six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with the second proviso to sub-
section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Therefore paragraph 3(xx) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

For Sudhir Sunil & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 08345N

. B q
ahima Kapoor ﬁ

Partner
Membership No.: 514276

Place: New Delhi
Date: 27-05-2025
UDIN: 25514276BMMHXC3467



RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
i As at As at
Farthculas Mote 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
I. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 959.50 1,022.04
(b) Capital work in Progress 1 - -
(d) Intangible assets 2 7.85 11.92
(e) Intangible assets under development 2 3.79 3.79
(f) Financial Assets
(1) Investments 3 1,460.85 1,625.96
(i) Loans 4 50.67 98.17
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 15 11.88 -
2,494.54 2,761.88
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 5,335.61 5,335.61
(b) Financial Assets
(1) Investments 6 346.65 396.10
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 353.42 203.47
(iii) Bank balances other than iii) above 8 603.22 601.80
(iv) Loans 9 12,291.29 12,401.86
(v) Other financial assets 10 16.47 18.20
(c) Other Current Assets 11 351.33 323.48
19,297.99 19,280.53
Total Assets 21,792.53 22,042.41
IL. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 12 47.76 47.76
(b) Others Equity 13 21,002.86 21,187.40
21,050.62 21,235.16
Liabilities
(2) Non Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 14 11.43 8.19
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 15 - 58.25
11.43 66.44
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 16 22263 231.04
(ii) Other financial liabilities 17 502.74 502.74
(b) Other current liabilities 18 3.81 570
(c) Provisions 19 1.30 1.33
(d) Current Tax Liabilities ( Net) 20 2 -
730.48 740.81
Total Equity & Liabilities 21,792.53 22,042.41
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, 1to 47

As per our attached report of even date

For and on behalf of the board of directors of

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO. Radhika Heights Limited
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 835N LA
) o )&
AHIMA KAPOOR) ; UNANDA JAIN
Partner Director
Membership No.514276 DIN 03592692

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 27.05.2025




RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995FLC045879)
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

; For the year ended | For the year ended
sy Note. | "3t March, 2025 | Stet Nisech, 2024
Continuing Operations
Revenue from Operations 21 & o
Other Income 22 364.05 444,91
Tatal Income (I) 364.05 44491
Expenses
Cost of Land Sold 23 . -
Employee Benefit Expenses 24 139.73 130.36
Finance Cost 25 9.24 9.41
Depreciation & amortization expenses 26 65.39 66.71
Other expenses 27 404.36 328.34
Total Expenses (II) 618.72 534.82
III. Profit / (loss) before Tax for the year (I) - (II) (254.67) (89.91)
IV. Tax expense:
(1) Current Income Tax - =
(2) Deferred Tax (Credit) / Charge (70.13) 5.77
(3) Provision for Tax Earlier years - 3.53
V.Profit/ (loss) for the year
from Continuing Operations (ITI-IV) (184.54) (99.21)
VI. Discontinuing Operations
Profit / (loss) for the period from discontinued Operations - -
Tax Income /(Expense) of discontinuing operations - -
VIL. Profit /(loss) for the period from discontinued Operations (after tax) g A
VIIL Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V +VII) (184.54) (99.21)
Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss . “
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss . "
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - %
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss n s
(IX) Other Comprehensive Income for the year . g
(X) Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VIII+IX) (184,54) {99.21)
Earning per share for continuing operations [face value of Share Re. 1/-each]
- Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (in Rs.) 29 (3.86) (2.08)
Earning per share for discontinued operations [face value of Share Re, 1/-each]
- Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (in Rs.) ¥ o
Earning per share for continuing and discontinued operations [face value of
Share Re. 1/-each]
- Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (in Rs.) (3.86) (2.08)
Summary of significant accounting policies |
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, 1to 47

As per our attached report of even date

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN. 8345N
P M /
(MAHIMA KAPOOR) )
Partner ging Director
Membership No.514276 DIN 00014236

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED : 27.05.2025

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Radhika Heights Limited

clﬁ J wle
Qe
—SUNANDA JAIN

Director

DIN 03592692



RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March'2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

TN For the year ended For the year ended
31st March' 2025 31st March, 2024
A) Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax and extra ordinary items from conlinuing
operations (254.67) (89.91)
Profit/ (Loss) before tax and extra ordinary items from discontinued
operations & -
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation 6539 66.71
Interest Income (350.06) (374.73)
Profit from Partnership Firm - (38.61)
Profit on redemption of Mutual Fund (3.02) (27.51)
Profit on account of sale of Fixed Assets : (0.52) -
Property, plant and equipments written off = 0.97
Unrealized (gain) / Loss on Fair Value of Mutual Fund Investment 2.77) @77
Dividend Income 0.00 (290.97) 0.00 (375.94)
Operating profit before working capital changes (545.64) (465.85)
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (29.27) (68.19)
({Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets 1.73 (3.45)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Recievables - 0.81
Increase / (Decrease) in long term provision 3 3.00
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilites 0.00 (0.00)
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Trade payable (8.42) 5.48
Increase / (Decrease) in Short term Provision (0.03) 0.48
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current financial liabilites (1.89) (34.65) 0.99 (60.88)
Cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities (580.29) (526.72)
Net direct taxes (paid)/ refund (net) - (3.53)
Net cash from Operating Activities (580,29) (530.25)|
B) Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including
capital work in progress, intangible under development & capital advances) (0,00 (39.40)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1.75 046
Loan (Given) / reapayement from Subsidiary Companies (net) 38.00 (394.25)
Loan (Given) / reapayement from Others (net) 120,07 3103
Redemption / (Investments) in Mutual Fund & Equity (net) (165,90) 649.77
Repayments / (Investment) made in NCD's 383,25 (141.46)
Interest received 350,06 37473
Profit received from Partnership Firm - 38.61
Profit on redemption of Mutual Fund 3.02 27.51
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities 730,25 347.00
Net cash from operating and investing activities 149,96 (183.26)|
C€) Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of preference share capital - -
Increase/ (decrease) Short term borrowings ) - -
Dividend Paid - -
Tax paid on Dividend Distribution o h
Interest paid - -
Net cash from financing activities - -
Net cash from operating, investing & financial activities 149.96 (183.26)
Net increase in cash & cash equivalant 149.9 (183.26)
Qpening balance of cash & cash equivalant 803.47 986.72
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalant 953.42 803.47
Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the following;:-
i) Cash balance in Hand 0.08 0.08
i) Balance with Banks:
a) In Current Accounts 3533 203.39
b) In Fixed Deposits 600.00 600,00
Total 953.42 803,47

As per our report of even date

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO. Radhika Heights Limited

Chartered Accountants
FRN - 8345N
Fd

§u\/\cw\-f\m7;:q M‘

ﬂff%

(MAHIMA KAPOO MIT JAIN SUNANDA JAIN
Partner anaging Director Director
Membership No.514276 DIN 00014236 DIN 03592692

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED ; 27.05.2025



A. Equity Share Capital
(1) Current reporting period

RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Changes in equity share Bal 3
Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2024 capital during the current MIKIWCE MR 56 AANE
March' 2025
year
4776 - 4776

(2) Previous reporting period

Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2023

Changes in equity share
capital during the previous
year

Balance as at 31st
March'2024

47.76

47.76

B. Other Equity
(1) Financial Year 2024-25

Particulars

Equity Component of
Compound Financial
instruments

Reserve and Surplus

Securities Premium
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Total

Balance as at 1st April, 2024

Changes in accounting policy/ prior period
ETTOrS

Restated balance at the beginning of the
current reporting, period

Total Compreh ensive Income for the current
year

Dividends

Transfer to retained earnings

Adjustment on account of Preference Shares
Less: Any other change (Due to scheme of
arrangement refer note 29)

21,710.76

(523.35)

(184.54)

21,187.40

(184.54)

As at 31st March' 2025

21,710.76

{707.89)

21,002.86

(2) Financial Year 2023-24

Particulars

Equity Component of
Compound Financial
instruments

Reserve and Surplus

Securities Premium
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Total

Balance as at 1st April, 2023

Changes in accounting policy / prior period
eTTOTS

Restated balance at the beginning of the
previous reporting period

Total Comprehensive Income for the
previous year

Dividends

Transfer to retained earnings

Adjustment on account of Preference Shares
Any other change (Share Issue Expenses)

21,710.76

{@24.15)

21,286.61

(99.21)

As at 31st March'2024

21,710.76

(523.35)

21,187.40

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 8345N

MAHIMA KAPOOR)
Partner
Membership No.514276

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED : 27.05.2025

naging Director
/ DIN 00014236

Limited

For and on behalf of the beard of directors of Radhika Heights

" A

uv\ C\V‘-
UNANDA JAIN
Director
DIN 03592692

e



1)

b)

d)

RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899FB1995FLCO45879)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Background

Radhika Heights Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ravinder Heights Limited. The Company has been promoted to carry on business of acquisition,
construction and development of projects, townships, built-up infrastructure, housing, commercial premises, hotels, resorts, hospital, educational institution,
recreational facilities, city and regional level infrastructure and other allied works including to acquire by purchase, lease exchange, rent or otherwise deal in
land buildings and in real estates of all kinds,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements, These policies have been consistently
applied to all the yvears presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act,

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following;
- certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value (refer accounting policies regarding financial instruments)

Use of Estimates & Judgements

The preparation of financial slatements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

i)Income taxes: The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies,

i)Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period, Specifically, the
Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns etc.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
-Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting, period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for al least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, Based on the nature of
products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between the aquisition of the assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalent, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 48 months for real estate projects and 12 montths for others for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and non current.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase
price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset 1o its working condition for ils intended use and borrowing Costs attributable to construction of qualifying
asset, upto the date assset is ready for its intended use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting, period in which they are incurred.




ii)

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on the Written Down Value Method (WDV) over the estimated useful lives of the assets considering the nature,
estimated usage, operating conditions, history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance

support, Considering these factors, the Company has decided to apply the useful life for various categories of property, plant & equipment,
which are as prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Act. Fstimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

S. Useful
No Type of Assets Life in
J Years
a) |Buildings - Non-Factory buildings 60
b) |Plant and machinery (including Electrical fittings) 15
¢) JOffice equipment 5
d) |Furniture and fixtures 10
e) | Vehicles 8
f) {Computers Equipment 35
g) |Software 5

a)

The useful lives are reviewed at least at each year end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change in accounting estimate.

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the pericd of the lease or the estimated useful life whichever is lower.

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Financial Instruments

Financial Assels
Financial assets comprise investments in equity instruments, loans and advances , trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents and other eligible assets,

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value except trade recievables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (ather than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the
financial assets. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits 1o purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement:

-Financial Assets measured at amortised cost: Financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise an specified dates to cash flows that are solely pavment of principal and interest
(SPPI) on principal amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (EIR) method.

They are presented as current assels, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets, These
financial assets are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. The EIR amortisation is recognised as
finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Financial assets held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting the contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payment towards principal and interest (SPPI) on principal outslanding are subsequently measured at FVTOCI, Fair value movements in
financial assets at FVTOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income, However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain loss in statement of profil and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit and loss. Interest carned is recognised under the expected interest rate (EIR) model,

-Equity instruments other than investment in associates: Equity instruments held for trading are classified at fair value through Frofit or Loss (FVTPL). For
ather equity instruments the Company classifies the same as at FVTOCL The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable, Fair value changes
on equity instruments at FVTOC, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive incame (1),

= Financial assets at fair value through fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): Financial assels are measured at FVTPL if is does not meet the criteria for
classification as measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value changes are recognised in Statement of Profil and
Loss,

Derecognition of financial assets:

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or the financial asset is transferred and the
transfer qualified for dereconition. On derecognition of financial asset in its entirety the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date of
derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset oblained less any new liability assumed) shall be recognised in Statement of Profil and
Loss,

Impairment of financial assets:

Trade receivables, contract assets, receivables under Ind AS 109 are tested for impairment based on the expected credit losses (ECL) for the respective financial
assel. ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
approach followed by the company for recognising the impairment loss is given below:

1) Trade receivables
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The expected credit losses over lifetime of the asset are estimated by adopting the simplified
approach using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current condition and forecasts of future economic conditions.

|




iv)

v)

b}

<)

d4)

2) Other financial assets
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the

credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL issued. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant

increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL,

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables and other eligible liabilities.

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Any transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities (except financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value of financial liabilities,

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: The Company has classified the following under amortised cost:

a) Trade payables

b) Other financial Habilities

Amartised cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount,

= Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheel Date are carried at a value which is approximately equal to fair value due to the
short maturity of these instuments.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability shall be derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
eXpires,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and setile the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be

contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankrupicy of the Company or
the counterparty.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

The Company determines the classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition, After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are categorised as equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets or financial liabilities that are specifically designated at FVTPL, For
financial assets, which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing, those assets. Changes ta the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases o perform an activity that is
significant to its aperations, If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the
first day of immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing, costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset,
Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. To the extent the Company borrows funds generally and uses them
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company determines the amount of borrowings costs eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization
rate o the expenditure incurred on such asset. The capitalization rate is determined based on the weighted average of borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Company which are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset, The
amount of borrowing costs that the Company capitalizes during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing costs incurred during that period.

Foreign and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional and presentation currency

Foreign Currencies

Transactions and balances

Initial recognition: Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its functional currency spot rates at the date the transcation first
qualifies for recognition.

Subsequent measurement: Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at
the reporting, date,

Exchange differences arising on settlement of translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Non-monetary itmes that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary itmes measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income ("OCI") or profit
or loss, respectively).

All other exchange differences are charged to the statement of profit and loss.
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vi)

vii)

viii)

ix)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing, value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the Hme value of money
and the risk specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from the continuing use that are largely independent of cash inflows of other assets or group of assets (the cash generating
unit).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses are recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or group of units on a pro rata basis.

Reversal of impairment loss
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists,

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized directly in other comprehensive income and presented within equity.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value of property under construction assessed with refernce to market value of

completed property as at the reporting date less estimated cost to complete, Cost of inventory (Work-in-Progress) represents cost of land and all expenditure
incurred in connection with,

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. is recognised when the Company has a present abligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the abligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current management estimates.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
oecurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the enterprise, When there is a possible obligation or
present obligation where the likelihood of an outflow is remolte, no disclosure or provision is made,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the entity. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

When some or all of the economic benefits required Lo settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an assel,
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific ta the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

The company dovs not recognize a contingent liability but disclosed its existence in the financial statements,

Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax, Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income,

Current tax

Current tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable
income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right ta set off the
recognized amaounts and where it intends either to settle an a net basis or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the
time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,

The carrying amount of deferred lax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no langer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Minimum Alternate Taxes

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) is payable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular
income tax payable in subsequent years. MAT paid in a year is charged lo the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax, The Company recognises MAT credit
available as an assel only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period i.e the period
for which MAT eredit is allowed to be carried forward, MAT credit is recognised as an asset and is shown as 'MAT Credit Entitlement’. The Company reviews
the ‘MAT Credit Entitlement” assel at each reporting date and write down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will
pay normal tax during the specified period.




x)

xi)

i)

xiii)

Xiv)

xv)

a)
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Foreign Currency Translations
Functional and Presentation Curreney

ftems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Radhika Heights Private Limited's functional and presentation currency.
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at vear
end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

As a Lessee:

a) Classification of Lease

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not limited to, the
transfer of ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the lessee’s option 1o extend / purchase etc,

b) Recognition and initial measurement

At the lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at

cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases (twelve month or less period) and leases of low-value assets using practical expedients. Instead of
recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in a standalone statement of profit and loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term,

¢) Subsequent ment

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right:
of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

As a Lessor:
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Renlal income
from the operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, except when the lease rentals, increase are in line with the

pgeneral inflation index. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrving amount of the leased asset and
recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recoghized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from
lessees undor finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases, Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
ta reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the stalement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other shart-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts,

Revenue Recoginition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Income from Services - Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Interest Income: Interest income is recognized as it accrues in Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method.

Dividend income - Revenue is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established at the balance sheet date, Dividend income is
included under the head “Other income” in the statement of profit and loss,

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS
and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive patential equity shares, Dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

Segment reporting

Business segment: The Company has a single reportable business segment namely; carrying out business of landing properties on rent from the domestic
market.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Description

Land- freehold

Building

Furniture & Fixtures

Office Equipments

Computer
Equipments

Vehicles

Total

Gross carrying value
As at April 1, 2023

Additions
Disposals
Adjustments
Exchange differences
Transfer lo Assets held for sale and
discontinued Operations

735.61

65.77

545

46.90
0.07
14.55

6.85
0.09
229

136,19
36.76
7.83

1,256.46
36.92
3012

As at March 31, 2024

165.13

1,263.26

Additions

Disposals

Adjustments

Exchange differences

Transfer to Assets held for sale and
discontinued Operations

12.28

12.28

As at March 31, 2025

265.14

735.61

60.32

3242

.64

152.85

1,250.98

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2023
Charge for the year
Disposals
Exchange differences
Transfer lo Assets held for sale and
discontinued Operations

46.65
33.58

19.25
11.93
517

36.98
a7
1383

62

0.36
227

9817
13.07
742

207.26
62,65
28,69

As at March 31, 2024

26.00

26,87

4.30

103.82

241.22

Charge for the year

Disposals

Exchange differences

Iranster to Assels held tor sale and
discontinued Operations

8.84

202

0.10

1843
11.07

61.33
11.07

As at March 31, 2025

11216

28,89

111.19

291.48

Net block as at March 31, 2024

26514

655.39

34.32

5.55

0.34

61,31

1,022.04

Net block as at Mareh 31, 2025

265.14

623.45

25.48

3.53

0.24

41.66

959.50

Capital work in Progress

Net block as at March 31, 2024

Net block as at March 31, 2025

Notes;

The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company

Intangible Assels

Description

Software

Total

Gross carrying value

As at April 1, 2023
Additions
Adjustments

2074

20.74

As at March 31, 2024

20.74

Additions
Disposals

20.74

As at March 31, 2025

20,74

20.74

A lated amor

Asat April 1, 2023
Charge for the year
Disposals

476
4.06

476
4.06

As al March 31, 2024

B.82

8.82

Charge for the year
Disposals

4.06

4.06

As at March 31, 2025

12.88

12.88

Net block as at March 31, 2024

11.92

11.92

Net block as at March 31, 2025

7.85

7.85

Intangible assets under development

Net block as at March 31, 2024

3.79

Net block as at March 31, 2025




RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Investments (non-current)
(A ) Investment in equity instruments at cost
Unquoted equity instruments in Subsidiaries (Fully Paid):
1) 19,82,500 Equity Shares (Previous Year 1,982,500 ) of Re.1/- each fully paid in 194.29 194.29
Radicura Infra Limited
2) 500,000 Equity Shares (Previous Year 500,000) of Re. 1/- each fully paid in 5.00 5.00
Sunanda Infra Limited
3) 100,000 Equity Shares (Previous Year 100,000 of Re. 1/- each fully Paid in 1.00 1.00
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited
4) 100,000 Equity Shares (Previous Year 100,000) of Re. 1/- each fully paid in 1.00 1.00
Cabana Construction Private Limited
5) 100,000 Equity Shares (Previous Year 100,000) of Re. 1/- each fully 1.00 1.00
paid in Nirmala Organic Farms & Resorts Private Limited
Quoted Mutual Funds
(At Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
UTI Nifty 50 Index fund - (Regular ) 10,462,168 Units (Previous Year 10,462,168) 16.81 15.81
Total (A) 219.10 218.10
(B ) Debt, SDI, NCD's & PTC's (unquoted):
1) Stride Ventures Debt Fund II - 150 units (Previous Year 150 units) 153.97 153.85
2) 350 NCD's of Arun Excello Compact Homes Pvt. Ltd. 13.60%
(Previous Year 350 NCD's) 99.04 281.04
3) Trifecta Venture Debt Fund-IIl - 245,575 units (previous year 226,825 units) 251.00 231.92
5) 100 NCD's of Firstlight Properties Pvt. Ltd. @ 16% PA (Previous Year 100 NCD's) 99.92 87.70
6) Nil units of PIRG SDI 3 15.109% TRUST SERIES 1 (Previous Year 15 PTC) - 27.39
7) Nil units of Prosperity Assets 2 Trust Series 13.30% (Previous Year 81 units) - 27.45
8) Nil Units of Techno Global Security Pvt. Ltd. Tr.10 14.05% (Previous Year 200 units) - 199.15
9) 400 NCD's of Honest Ecohomes Pvt. Ltd, 13.85% (Previous Year 400 units) 322,73 399,36
10) 200 NCD's A-One Gold Pipes and Tubes Pvt. Ltd. 14.50% (Previous Year Nil units) 137.36 -
11) 200 NCD's of J5SB Homemaker Pvt. Ltd. 14.50% (Previous Year Nil units) 177.73 -
Total (B) 1,241.75 1,407.86
Total (A) + (B) 1,460.85 1,625.96
(a) Aggregate amount and market value of quoted investments 16.81 15.81
(b) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1,444.04 1,610.15
(c) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - i
Refer Note 35 & 37 for information for about fair value measurement, credit risk and market risk of investments.
Loans (non-current)
Loan to related parties - =
1) Secured, Considered Good - -
i} Unsecured, considered good 50.67 98.17
iii) Doubtful - -
50.67 98.17
Inventories
(Valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)
Work-in-progress 5,335.61 5,335.61
= 5,335.61 5,335.61
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RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars i e
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Investments (current)
(A) Quoted Equity Shares - Traded (refer annexure B)* 41.91 21.51
(At Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
B) Quoted Mutual Funds
(At Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
Kotak Liquid Fund (G) 1933.09Units (Previous Year Nil) 100.36 i
Nippon India ETF Liquid Bees 1.19 Units (Previous Year 1.064 units) 0.01 0.01
UTI Nifty Next 50 Index fund - (Direct Plan Growth) 2796.682 Units (Previous Year
393,458 units) 4.56 0.60
Kotak Saving Fund (G) 102,082.64 Units (Previous Year Nil) 42,97 -
C) Unquoted NCD's & PTC's:
2) Nil units of PIRG 5DI 315.109% TRUST SERIES 1 Previous Year 15 PTC) - 63.52
3) Nil NCD's of Pharande Promoters & Builders Pvt. Ltd. @ 14.1%
PA (Previous Year 340 NCD's) 112.62
4) Nil PTC's of Prosperity Assets 2 Trust Series 13.30% (Previous Year 81 units) = 40.86
5) Nil NCD's of Keertana Finserv Pvt. Ltd. 11.60% (Previous Year 50 units) - 33.44
6) Nil NCD's of Arun Excello Compact Homes Pvt. Ltd. 13.60%
(Previous Year 350 NCD's) - 14.00
7) Nil NCD's of Smartpaddle Technology Pvt. Ltd. 12.00% (Previous Year 1065 units) ) 66.64
8) Nil NCD's of Sunland Ventures Pyvt. Ltd. 15.50% (Previous Year 25 units) - 25.23
9) Nil NCD's of Techno Global Security Pvt. Ltd. Tr.10 14.05% (Previous Year 200 units) - 1.00
10) Nil NCD's of Firstlight Properties Pvt. Ltd. @ 16% PA (Previous Year 100 NCD's) - 16.67
11) 100 NCD's of Sugmya Finance Pvt. Ltd. @ 14% PA (Previous Year Nil NCD's) 8.81 -
12) 1500 NCD's of Hella Infra Market Pvt. Ltd. @ 10.97% PA (Previous Year Nil NCD's) 148.03 .
Total (A) + (B) + (C) 346.65 396.10
(a) Aggregate amount and market value of quoted investments 104.93 0.61
{(b) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 241.72 395.49

(c) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

Refer Note 35 & 37 for information for about fair value measurement, credit risk and market risk of investments.




RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED

(CIN U74899PB1995PL.C045879)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
7 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
a) Balances with Bank 353.34 203.39
b) Cash in Hand 0.08 0.08
353.42 203.47
8 Other Bank Balances
- Fixed Deposits maturity for more than 12 months 600.00 600.00
- Interest Accrued but not due on deposit 322 1.80
603.22 601.80
9 Loans
a) Loan to related parties - -
1) Secured, Considered Good . -
ii) Unsecured, considered good (refer note 34 (B)) 12,047.55 12,038.05
iii) Doubtful . .
12,047.55 12,038.05
b) Loan to others
i) Secured, Considered Good B 125.26
ii) Unsecured, considered good 243.74 238.56
12,291.29 12,401.86
10 Other financial assets (current)
Unsecured, considered good
a) Security Deposits 0.10 0.10
b) Advance to related parties T *
b) Advance to Others 15.97 17.98
¢) Advances to employees 0.40 0.12
16.47 18.20
11 Other Current Assets
a) Prepaid expenses 4.57 4.54
b) SGST & CGST Receivable 136.54 155.61
¢) Interest accured but not due - 0,92
d) Interest accured & due on Loans given / Investment 9.71 =
e) Income tax refund 164.61 12554
f) Advance Income Tax (Net of Tax provisions) 35.90 36.87
351.33 323.48




* Annexure B - List of Equity Shares held by the company as at 31st March' 2025 :-

Quantity | Unit purchase Total purchse Market Price Total Cost

cost cost as at 31st (Rs. in lakhs)

Sno Name of the company (Rs. in lakhs) March'2024
1 Apollo Hospital Enterprises 7.00 6,430.40 045 6,616.20 0.46
2 Axis Bank Ltd 226.00 1,096.91 248 1,102.00 249
3 Bharti Airtel Ltd 176.00 1,333.33 235 1,733.40 3.05
4 Dilip Buildcon Ltd 244.00 410.24 1.00 475.90 1.16
5 DLFLTD 127.00 78541 1.00 680.50 0.86
6 Equitas Small Finance Bank Ltd. 1.00 100.56 0.00 55.00 0.00
7 HDFC Bank Ltd. 81.00 1,760.18 143 1,828.20 1.48
8 HDFC Life Insurance Company Ltd 113.00 588.34 0.66 685.70 0.77
9 Hindustan Poetroleum Corporation Ltd 133.50 352.66 047 360.35 0.48
10 ICICI Bank Ltd 230.00 1,070.00 246 1,348.35 3.10
11 Infosys Ltd 114.00 1,426.10 1.63 1,570.65 1.79
12 JSW Steel Ltd 68.00 828.00 0.56 1,063.20 0.72
13 Larsen and Toubro Ltd 70,00 3,377.50 236 3,492.30 2.44
14 Lloyds Metals and Energy Ltd. 338.00 592.75 2.00 1,287.25 4.35
15 Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd 73.00 2,722.55 1.99 2,665.80 1.95
16 NTPC Ltd 167.00 340.09 0.57 357.60 0.60
17 Olectra Greentech Lid. 58.00 1,710.79 0.99 1,167.50 0.68
18 One 97 Communications Ltd. 257.00 388.17 1.00 78345 201
19 P I Industries Ltd 25.00 3,579.10 0.89 3,428.20 0.86
20 Persistent Systems Ltd. 48.00 4,491.76 216 5,513.75 2.65
21 REC Ltd 200.00 463.38 0.93 42920 0.86
22 Reliance Industries Ltd 162.00 1,480.54 2.40 1,275.10 2.07
23 State Bank of India 181.00 825.36 1.49 771.50 1.40
24 Steel Authority of India Ltd. 352.00 142,25 0.50 11518 0.41
25 TATA Motors Ltd 214.00 858.37 1.84 674.45 1.44
26 TATA Steel Ltd. 694.00 144.37 1.00 154.24 1.07
27 Ultratech Cement Ltd 6.00 10,020.55 0.60 11,509.55 0.69
28 Vedanta Ltd 445.00 448.90 2,00 463.40 2.06
Total 37.21 4191

* Annexure B - List of Equity Shares held by the company as at 31st March' 2024 :-
Quantity | Unit purchase | Total purchse Market Price Total Cost

cost cost as at 31st (Rs. in lakhs)

Sno. |Name of the company (Rs. in lakhs) March'2024
1 |Apollo Hospital Enterprises 7.00 6,430.40 045 6,356.80 0.44
2 |Axis Bank Ltd 139.00 1,073.95 1.49 1,047.20 1.46
3 |Bharti Airtel Ltd 98.00 1,143.94 1.12 1,228.60 1.20
4 |Equitas Small Finance Bank Ltd 916.00 101.36 0.93 92.55 0.85
5 |HDEC Life Insurance Company Ltd 113.00 588.34 0.66 633.35 0.72
6 |Hindustan Poetroleum Corporation Ltd 89.00 528.99 047 475.65 0.42
7 |ICICI Bank Ltd 197.00 1,045.59 2.06 1,093.30 2.15
8 |Infosys Ltd 79.00 1,658.03 1.31 1,498.05 1.18
9 |JSW Steel Ltd 68.00 827.82 0.56 830.20 0.56
10 |LARSEN and Toubro Ltd 55.00 3,414.62 1.88 3,763.90 2.07
11 |Lloyds Metals and Energy Ltd. 338.00 592.69 2,00 602.00 2,03
12 |[NTPC Ltd 167.00 340.09 0.57 335.80 0.56
13 |Olectra Greentech Ltd. 58.00 1,710.79 0.99 1,888.55 1.10
14 |One 97 Communications Ltd. 257.00 388.82 1.00 402.65 1.03
15 |P1Industries Ltd 25.00 3,579.46 0.89 3,867 .55 0.97
16 |REC Ltd 200.00 463.38 093 451.00 0.90
17 |Reliance Industries Ltd 81.00 2,961.09 240 2,971.70 241
18 |TATA Motors Ltd 87.00 959,44 0.83 992.80 0.86
19 |Ultratech Cement Ltd 6.00 10,020.55 0.60 9,749.15 0.58
Total 21.16 21.51




RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)

MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

5 As at As at
Particul
S 31st March, 2025  31st March, 2024

12

Share Capital
a. Authorised
200,500,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each (Previous Year 200,500,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each) 2,005.00 2,005.00
200,000,000 Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each (Previous Year 200,000,000 Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each) 2,000.00 2,000.00

b. 1ssued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Shares
4,776,319 (Previous Year 4,776,319) Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid-up 47.76 47.76

Total Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Share Capital 47.76 47.76

¢. Terms /rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Re.1/- per share. Each halder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend
declared, if any is payable in Indian rupees. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual
General Meeting. The board has not proposed any dividend for current year and previous year.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts including preference shares. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

d. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reparting period

Equity Shares
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
In Nos. Amount in Rs, In Nos, Amount in Rs,
At the beginning of the year 47,76,319 47.76 47,76,319 47.76
Add : Issued during the period ending * A = >
Outstanding at the end of the Year 47,76,319 47.76 47,76,319 47.76
e. Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
o, ' 2. th o, 3 3
NG Yo hul‘d:::gam '3 i B Y hul‘:‘:!'l':sgsm the

Equity shares of Re.1/- cach fully paid
- Ravinder Heights Limited (Holding Company) 47,76,313 99.99% 47,76,313 99,099
(6 shares are held by nominees of
Ravinder Heights Limited)

As per records of the company, including its register of sharcholders/ members and other declerations received from the
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

f. Promoter’s Shareholding

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
r .
I S e In Nos. %of total shares | ** C':;‘;‘*;;::’““E In Nos. %of total shares
Ravinder Heights Limited 47,76,313 99.99% 0.00% 47,76,313 99.99%
& Shares held by holding company and/or their subsidiaries/ associates
Equity Shares held by halding company are as below:
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Ravinder Heights Limited (Holding Company) 47,76,313 47,76,313




RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED

(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars e A

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

13 Other Equity

a. Retained Barnings
Opening balance (523.36) (424.15)
Add: Net profit/ (loss) for the current year (184.54) (99.21)
Add: transfer due to scheme (refer note 28) - -
Profit available for appropriation (707.90) (523.36)
Less : Appropriations 2 3
Closing balance (707.90) (523.36)
b. Securities premium reserve
Opening Balance 21,710.76 21,710.76
Change cluring the Year = .
Closing Balance 21,710.76 21,710.76
Total Reserves and Surplus 21,002.86 21,187.40

14

15

16

17

Nature and purpose of other reserves

a. Retained earnings - Retained earnings are profits / (loss) of the company earned till date less trasnferred to any reserve,

b, Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. These reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

¢. Capital reserve: Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares, These reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act,

Non Current provisions
Provision for Grauity

Refer Note 37 for information about liquidity risk and market risk of Other Non Current Linbilities,
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net):
Om temporary difference between the accouniing base & tax base

Deferred Tax Liabilities arising on account of

Property, plant and equipment
Others
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred Lax assels arising on account of
Effect of expenditure debited to statement of profit and loss but allow ed for tax purposes on payment basis

Total Deferred Tax Assels
Net Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets)

Trade Payables

- Holding Co.

= Trade Payables (dues to micro and other small enter prises)

= Trade Payables (dues to other than micro and other small enterprises)

Refer Note 36 for information about aging of Trade Payables.
Refer Note 37 for information about liquidity risk and market risk of Trade Payables.

Other Current Financial liabilities

Payable to others
Security Deposits from athers

Refer Nate 37 for information about liquidity risk and market risk of Other Current Financial Liabilities,.

18 Other Current Liabilities

19 Provisions

Salary Payable

Statutory dues

TDS Payable

SGST & CGST payable

EPF payable

Total other liabilities q

Provision for Compensated Absences

20 Current tax liabilities (net) 'l .

Provision for tax (net of Advance Tax & TDS receivable))

11.43 8.19
11.43 419
106.61 121,50
106.61 121.50
118.49 63.25
118,49 63.25
(11.88) 58.25
0.50 .
222,13 231,04
222.63 231.04
274 274
500.00 500.00
502.74 502.74
0.00 -
KX 525
0.03 0.09
0.34 0.36
3.81 5.70
1.30 1.33
1.30 1.33




RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995FLC045879)
Notea to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
s I 315t March, 2025 315t March, 2024
21 Revenue from Operations
Income from Rent R
22 Other income
Interest Income from (Gross)
- Banks deposits 44.30 4342
- From Subsidiary Co. 4491 46,68
- From Others 83.13 107.55
= From NCD's 177.72 126,60
- From Partnership firm & 50.48
- From Dividend Income 0.30 0.00
Miscellaneous Balances / Provisions Written back 0.96 -
Profit from Partnership Firm - 38.61
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 0.53 -
Profit on redemption of Mutual Fund / Equity fund/ NCD's (Net) 3.02 27.51
Unrealised Gain on Equity / Mutual Fund Investment (Net) 6.73 277
Miscellaneous Income 245 1.29
364.05 444.91
23 Cost of land sold
Land cost . -
24 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries 101.20 87.14
Contract wages 2050 35.74
Contribution to provident and other funds 2.00 1.67
Staff welfare expenses 6,85 5.81
139.73 130.36
25 Finance cosis
Other financial expenses 9.24 9.41
9.24 9.41
26 Depreciation & ization expense
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 61.33 62.65
Amortisation of Intangible assets 4.06 4.06
65.39 66.71
27 Other expenses
Legal & Professional 38.33 41.11
Power and fuel 29.06 26.25
Director's Sitting Fees 045 0.65
Auditor's Remuneration* 2.05 0.80
Fees & Taxes 0.39 0.32
Insurance 7.69 7.72
Property Tax 0.25 0.56
Printing & Stationery 140 1.79
Postage & communication 6.93 4.56
Rent 136.50 138.42
Security Charges 4288 39.40
Repair & Maintenance
= Building 1261 9.82
- Electrical Equipment 4.66 411
= Office Equipment 261 3.03
- Computer Equipments 514 434
- Furniture & Fixtures 0.32 0.26
- Others 046 1.77
Vehicle running and maintenance 11.56 14.47
Travelling & Conveyance 6.38 10.82
Subscription 1037 11.97
Business Promotion 172 0.10
Miscellaneous 0.11 0.07
Office Expenses 3.35 1.13
Meeling & Conference 0.99 302
Property, plant and equipments written off - 0.97
Bank Service Charges 0.05 0.07
Realized loss on sale of Investment 977 0.54
Training & development . 027
GST written off 68.33 -
404.36 328.34
N
*Payment to Auditors
As auditor:
Statutory Audit Fee 0.80 0.80
In other capacity:
Other Services 1.25 -
2.05 0.80




RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 st March, 2024
NOTE 28 INCOME TAX
The income tax expense consists of the following :
Current tax expense for the current year - g
Current tax expense pertaining to previous years - 3.53
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit - -
Deferred tax expense/ (benefit) (70.13) 5.77
Total income tax (70.13) 9.30
Reconciliation of tax liability on book profit vis-i-vis actual tax liability
Profit/ (loss) before income taxes from continuing operations (254.67) (89.91)
Profit/ (loss) before income taxes from discontinued operations -
Profit/ (loss) before income taxes from continuing & discontinued operations (254.67) (89.91)
Enacted Tax Rate 2517% 2517%
Computed Tax Expense (64.10) (22.63)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
Other adjustments in respect tax 60.82 -
Tax effect of expenses that are not dedcutible for tax purpose - (4.02)
Change in Tax rate 8 i
Tax effect due to the loss 57.28 26.65
Other Tempororary Differences (70.13) 5.77
Total income tax expense (70.13) 9.30
NOTE 29 EARNINGS PER SHARE
As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Profit/ (loss) attributable to shareholders from continuing operations (184.54) (99.21)
Profit/ (loss) attributable to shareholders from discontinued operations - -
Weighted average number of equity shares 47.76 47.76
Nominal value per enity share 1.00 1.00
Profit / (Loss) per equity share
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share from continuing operations (3.86) (2.08)
Basic and diluted eamings per equity share from discontinued operations - -
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share from continuing and discontinued (3.86) (2.08)
operations
NOTE 30 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
(A) Contingent liabilities
I Income Tax Nil Nil
I Other Legal Cases Nil Nil
a)

b)

In the Assessment Year 2015-16, the addition of Rs, 1091.90 lakhs was made by The Income tax assessing officer on the ground that expenses so claimed
were prior period expenses and had issued demand of Rs. 502.98 Lakh u/s 143 (3) of the IT Act, 1961.

Further, RHL had filed appeal before the CIT (Appeals) aggrieved from the aforesaid unjustified additions, The matter which represents an addition of Rs.
1091.90 Lakhs made by the Ld. AO was sent back to him by the Ld. CIT Appeals giving instructions to give a Remand Report. In the Remand Report the

LD. AD has accepted his mistake and the CIT Appeals has to take its cognizance.

Hence, there are no chances of any demand/ penalty being levied on account of the aforesaid additions made in the Assessment Order for the AY. 2015-16.

The proceedings have been done but order is being delayed as the appeal is not time barring and hence still pending & no provision is required,

In Assessment Year 2016-17, the addition was made by the Income tax assessing officer on account of disallowance of depreciation and property tax under
the head "Profits and Gains of Business or Profession” (PGBP), amounting to 229.26 lakhs. The resulting demand of 213.10 lakhs was raised vide order
passed under Section 154 read with Section 143(3) of the Income Tax Act. The matter is currently pending before the CIT(A) for adjudication.

The company is of the firm opinion that it will succeed in this matter, as there are several legal precedents supporting our position. Accordingly, the
Company is believing that there is no likelithood of any demand or penalty being sustained in respect of the additions made in the assessment order for the

relevant Assessment Year,

The proceedings have been done but order is being delayed as the appeal is not time barring and hence still pending & no provision is required.
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) The Company had given a loan of Rs. 80 Lakh to L. A Travel Merchants Pvt. Ltd. (“Borrower”). The Company initiated legal proceedings for the recovery of
Rs, 60 Lakh/- u/s 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 before the Hon'ble District Court at Patiala House as the borrower has defaulted the
payment of interest/ principal amount. Now case is at the stage of cross examination of Complainant, The management believes that there is merit in this

case and hence no provision is required.

Further, the Company has also initiated legal proceedings for the recovery of Rs. 60 lakh/- plus interest by filing summary suit under order 37 (civil case)
before the Hon'ble District Court at Patiala House as the borrower has defaulted the payment of interest/ principal amount. The matter is pending for

adjudication.

(B) Capital and other commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of advances and not provided in the books are as follows:

NOTE 31

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Property, plant and equipment (building) z z
Deferred Tax effect
The Significant components of net deferred tax assets and labilities for the period ended 31" March, 2025 are as follow:
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Recognized/ Recognized/
Reversed through
Particulars c;‘:; :::f Reversed through Other ° Closing Balance
profit & loss Comprehensive
Income
Deferred Tax assets/liabilities in relation to:
Deferred Tax liabilities arising out of:
Property, Planté Equipment & intangible assets 121.50] (14.89 | 106.61
121.50{ (14.89) . 106.61
Deferred Tax assels arising out of:
Expenditure allowed on payment basis 63.25 55.25f - 118.49
63,25 55.25 - 118.49{
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) 58.25 (70.13)) E (11.88)|
The Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities for the period ended 31" March, 2024 are as follow:
Recognized/ Recognized/
Reversed through
Particulars C;:le:::es Reversed through Other : Closing Balance
profit & loss Comprehensive
Income
Deferred Tax liabilities arising out of:
Property, Planté Equipment & intangible assets 105.38 16.11 - 121,50}
105.38] 16.11 - 121.50]
Deferred Tax assets arising out of:
Expenditure allowed on payment basis 5291 10.344 - 63.25
52.91 10.34] i 63.25
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) 52.48) 5.77] E 58.25
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RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

32 LEASES

In case of assels taken on lease

Operating lease:

Company has taken premises situated at 7th Floor, DCM Building, 16 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi - 110001 alongwith assets from its Holding Company on
operating lease agreement for using its corporate office. These are generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms.

Also, Company has taken premises situated at Farm House no9, 7th Avenue, Gadaipur Bandh Road, New Delhi - 110030 alongwith assets on operating lease

agreement from its holding company for using Company's Guest House purposes. These are generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual consent on
mutually agreed lerms,

The total of payments under operating lease is as under: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Lense payments for the vear recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 136.00 138.00

Company has taken premises admeasuring 160 sq.ft. approx. at Commercial SCO no.71, First Floor, Royal Estate Complex Zirakpur, Sub Tehsil, Zirkpur, S.AS.
Nagar (Punjab), under the operating lease agreement for its registered office. These are generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual consent on mutually
agreed terms.

The total of payments under operating lease is as under: {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at

3st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Lease payments for the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.50 0.25
MSME

Based on the information available with the company, there are no dues as at March 31, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 payable to enterprises covered under " Micro
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No Interest is paid/payable by the company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

34 Related Party Disclosure

List of Related Parties

Relationship Name of related party (as identified by the management)

H l‘lnldil‘lg ('.umplny Ravinder H("ighh Limited

Hadicura Infra Limited
Sunanda Infra Limited

ii) |Wholly Owned Subsidiary through Radhika Heighis Limited Cabana Construction Pvt, Limited
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited

MNirmala Organic Farms & Resorts Pyl Ltd.

Mr. Sumit Jain, Managing Director

Mrs, Sunanda Jain, Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Radhika Jain, Non-Executive Director

i) |Key Management Personnel (KMP) / Directors Mr. N.N. Khamitkar, Non-Executive Director
Mr. R. L. Narasimhan, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ajay Chadha, Non-Executive Direclor

Enterprises over which Person(s) (having control or significant

iv) influence over the Company / Key management personnel (s) / Trinidhi Finance Pvt. Ltd.
Directors, along with their relatives) are able to exercise significant Best General Insurance Co, Lid,
influence:

Panacea Life Sciences Limited




Details of transactions with the Key Management Personnel/Directors, their relatives, Subsidiaries and Enterprises over which Person(s) ((having control or
significant influence aver the Holding Company/Key management personnel(S), along with their relatives) are able to exercise significant influence:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Blno.

Particulars

Key Managemient
Personnel/Directors or their
relatives

Holding Company

‘Wholly owned subsidiaries

having contrel or significant influence
aver the Holding Campany/ KMPa
[Directors, along with their relatives

Enterprisea aver which Personis)

are able 1o exercise significant
influence

As at March
3, 2025

As at March

a, 2024 025

As at March 31,

As at March
31,2024

As at March 31,
2025

Ag at March 31,
2024

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2025 2024

In

Tranasctions made during the year

Sitting Fee for attending board / committer meelings

= Mr. R.L. Narasimhan

010 020

= Mr. N.N. Khamitkar

0.20

= Mr. Ajay Chadha

= Mrs, Meenu Parti

Recovery of dues on account of expenses

- Mr. Sumit Jain

- Ravinder Heights Ltd.

- Sunanda Infra Lid

0.27

- Radicura Infra Lid

1.66

- Nirmala Bufldwell Pt Ltd

1,63

Employee benefils expenses

Mr. Sumit Jain

48.26

t of Expenses

= Ravinder Heights Ltd.

= Mr. Sumit Jain

1.12

Payment of Consultancy Fee (inclusive of G5T)

T'rinichi Finance Pyt Lid

Rent paid (inclusive of GST)

- _Ravinder Heights Limited

Interest Income on unsecured loan given to:

- Nirmala Buildwell Pvi. Ltd.

= Trinidhi Finance Pvi. Ltd.

6,25

= Panacea Life Sciences Lid,

= 1.43

Unsecured Loan given to

Cabana Construction Pvi. Lid,

512,50

-__Nirmala Buildwell Pvi. Ltd.

391.00

Unsecured Loan repayments from

Mirmala Buildwell Pvi, Lid,

47.25

Mirmala Organic Farms & Resorts Pyt Ltd.

262.00

- Trinidhi Finance Pyt Lid

- 21.00,

Panaces Life Scwnces Lid

# 31.8]

Closing balances:

- Radicura Infra Limited

194, 20]

- Sunanda Infra Lid

5,000

Cabana Construction Pyt Lid.

1.00

= Mirmala Buildwell Pvi, Lid,

- Nlrl'l'lﬂll E)_rﬂmr Farms & Resorts Py Lid,

Out ling Unsecured Loan

.00
1.00]

- _Radicura Infra Limited

2,722 971

- Sunanda Infra Ltd

1,953,90

= Cabana Construction Pyt Lid

3,447.47]

- Mirmala Buildwell Pyl Ltd.*

330046,

- Mirmala Organic Farms & Resorts Pyt Lid,

664,42

- Trinidhi Finance Put, Ltd**

Panacea Life Sciences Lid

Ihll! payable oulstanding

= Ravinder Heights Lid,

Interest accrued & due on loans given (unsecured)

= Mirmala Buildwell Pvi, Lid.®

2.71

- _Trinidhi Finance Pyt. Lid*

Other recelvables

= Radicura Infra Lid.

2.05]

C

Notes:

(a) Lease service transactions with related parties are made at arm's length price.
(b) Unsecured loans given by RHL to its wholly owned subsidiaries companies for its principal business activities are interest free.
() Ne expense has been recognised for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 for bad or doubtful receivables in respect of amounts owed by relaled parties.
(d) There have been no guarantees received or provided for any related party receivables or payables.
(#) *Loans of Rs, 548,17 lakhs ( Previous year Rs.586.17 lakhs) given to its WOS company included in above are payable at fixed repayment terms, Interest rate is al BY per annuam,
(D ** Unsecured Loans given on the inlerest at the rate of 8% PA.

Loans or Advances in the nature of Loan granted to promoters, directors, KMPS and the related parties,

Percentag,
Amount of ¢ to the I Percentage
loan or total s to the total
advance in Loans ) f Loans and
advance in
the nature and i e Advances
Type of Borrower of loan Advances In:mm st in the
\ outstandin in the outstanding nature of
fason nature of loans as on
i as on 3st
st loans as March*i4 st
March'25 on 31st March'24
March'25
Promoters Nil 0 Nil 0
Directors Nil 0 Nil 0
KMPs L Nil 0 Nil 0
Related Parties \c’*' i ’f/“‘\ 72.00 0.58% 72.00 0.58%
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RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial Instruments by category and hierarchy
Financial Instruments by Category

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at Anat

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Carrying Amount

Financial Instruments at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial Assets

(i) Investments 1,807.50 2,022.07

Total 1,807.50 2,022.07

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

(i) Investments 1,807.50 2,022.07

(ii) Trade receivables - -

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 353.42 203.47

(iv) Other bank balances 603.22 601.80

(v) Loans 12,341.96 12,500.03

Total Financial Assets 15,106.09 15,327.37

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

(i) Borrowings - -

(ii) Trade payables 222.63 231.04

(1ii) Other financial liabilities 502.74 502.74

Total Financial Liabilities 725.37 733.79

Note: The Company has disclosed financial instruments such as investment in equity instrument, cash and cash equivalents, other financial
assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities at carrying value because their carrying amounts represents the best estimate of the fair

values,

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale, The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair

values:

Fair Value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other current receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities and other financial
instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1: Quoted (Unadijusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair value,

Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments includes:
(a) the use of net asset value (NAV) for mutual funds on the basis of the statement received from investee party.

(b) the use of adjusted net asset value method for certain equity investments because the amount of investment is not material and

management is not expected significant changes in fair value of investment,

i,

Lrade Payables aging schedule ac on 31042035 R Tn Laa)
/ i Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
3‘/" Particulars Not Due Less than 1 L yiis Po— More than 3 Total
9 year years
) (i) MSME - - - - - a
=211 iy Others 3.46 12.74 - - 206.43 222,63
/(i) Disputed dues — MSME - " = . B B
{iv)Disputed dues - Others = - = = - -
les aging schedul n 31. 24
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 iiNmears 23 years More than 3 Total
year years
(i) MSME = e = = 5 =
(il) Others 4.59 20.03 - 2.74 203 68 231.05
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - = 3 o

{iv)Disputed dues - Others » ol




RADHIKA HEIGHTS LIMITED
(CIN U74899PB1995PLC045879)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

NOTE 37 Financial Risk Management
The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business sirategies. The Company’s financial risk management policy
in set by the Managing Board, The financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies on risk management. Key
financial risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board of directors of the Company.

A.MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial instrument, The value of a
financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, equity prices and other market changes that may effect market sensitivity instruments.
Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, loans and borrowings.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. In order to
balance the Company's position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest rate risk, management performs a comprehensive
interest rate risk management. The Company has no interest bearing borrowings hence it is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective
reporting dates. The Company's fixed rate financial assets are carried at amortized cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk
The Company has operations in India only hence Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is nil.
Price Risk

Price risk arises from exposure to equity securities prices from investments held by the Company, The Company does not have any investments in equity shares.

B. CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to financial loss. Credit risk arises from trade
receivables and other financial assets.

Trade Receivables

Customer credit risk is managed on the basis of established policies of the Company, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk management which
helps in assessing, the risk at the initial recognition of the asset. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly and closely monitored. Based on prior experience
and an assessment of the current receivables, the management believes that there is no credit risk and accordingly no provision is required, '

Other Financial Assets
There is no credit risk exposure with respect to other financial assets as they are either supported by legal agreement or are with Nationalized banks.

- Deposits are held with Banks are with Nationalized Bank, hence the risk of default is considered to be negligible.

- Other receivables from related parties are as per approved policy and the established procedure to monitor the dues from related parties which also ensures
timely payments and no default, hence there is no credit risk exposure involved.

Provision for Expected Credil losses
Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no credit risk to the Company.

C. LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due,

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into
account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates,

Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below provide details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial Habilities at reporting date based on contractual undiscounted

payments,

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Asat Less than 1 year/
31-Mar-25 On Demand 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Current
(i) Trade payables 22263
(i) Other financial liabilities 502.74
Non Current .
(i} Provisions 1272 -
Total 738.10 - - -




NOTE 38

NOTE 39

NOTE 40

NOTE 41

NOTE 42

NOTE 43

As at Less than 1 year/

31-Mar-24 On Demand 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years
Current
(i) Trade payables 231.04
(i) Other financial Habilities 502.74
MNon Current
(1) Provisions 9,52 a
Total — 74390 - - 5
Ratios
Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the i diately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, alongwith
detailed explanations th f, including;
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change in % Reason
a) Current Ratio 26,42 26.03 1.51% NA
{b) Debt-Equily Ratio N.A N.A 0.00% NA
() Debt Service Coverage Ratio N.A N.A 0.00% NA
(d) Return on Equity Ratio (3.86) (2.08) 86.01% Due to Decrease in income
() Inventory turnover ratio - - 0.00%, NA
() Trade Receivables turnover ratio N.A N.A 0.00% NA
() Trade payables turnover ratio 1.78 145 23.95% NA
(h) Net capital turnover ratio 1.96% 2.40% -18.30% NA
oo -69.96% -20.21% Due to Decrease in income &
(i) Net profit ratio 246.17% increase in Other Expenses
Return on Capital employed 1.17% -0.38% -408.36% Due ta increase in other expenses
10.63% 13.53% Due to decrease in ROI of
(k) Return on Investment -21.42% investments
Capital Risk Management

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to shareholders, The
capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day
needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in cconomic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong; capital structure with a focus on total equily so as to maintain
creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. There in no change in the Company capital structure since
pPrevious year,

Revenue from Contracts with Customer

Ind AS 115 Revenue with Coniracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018, replaces existing revenue recognition
requirements. Under the modified retrospective approach there were no adjustments required to the retained earnings as at April 1, 2018, Application of Ind AS
115 did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial results.

Segment Reporting

The Company is a one segment company in the business of real estate development and leasing, Al its operations are located in India , accordingly, the Company
views these activilies as one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on “Segment Reporting'.

Radhika Heights Limited along with its four whally owned subsidiaries, i.e. Radicura Infra Limited, Cabana Construction Private Limited, Nirmala Buildwell
Private Limited and Sunanda Infra Limited had entered into a Collaboration Agreement with Bestech India Pvi. Ltd. (Developer) for its land situated in Sector
89A, Gurgaon for affordable plotted colony project under Deen Dayal Jan Awas Yojna from DTCP Haryana.

Thereafter, the project has obtained two licenses from Directorate of Town and Country Planning, Haryana on 17,09,2021 for 12.3812 acres of Land and 08,10.2021
for 39.43125 acres of Land. In 2023, RERA cerlificates have been received for the aforesaid projects and the development work is in process,

Notes on Amendment in Schedule 111 and relating to other disclosures required to be made in Financial Statements:

The company does not have any transaction with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act 1956
during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

There was no charges or satisfaction which were requried to registered with the registrar of companies during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,.

The company complies with the number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of layers) rules 2017 during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,.

The company has not invested or traded in cryplocurrency or virtual currency during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

Na proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding Benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transaction
Act 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formally the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder during the year ended March 31,
2025 and March 31, 2024,

The company has nat been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authorities during the year ended
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,.

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the competent authority in terms of sections 232 to 237 of the Companies Act 2013
during the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the company has not surrendered or disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the books
of accounts in the course of lax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search ar survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act
1961).

During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested fundsj (githp
premium or kind of funds) except as disclosed as below, to any other person or entities, including, foreign entities ‘ _,';:
s

A KW"‘ or the share
dith. the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall:

i) directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsaever by or ait behall of the

i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

)




NOTE

NOTE

NOTE

NOTE

Details of funds advanced during the year 2024-25; (Rs. In lakhs) -

Funds further Date of funds further
Name of the Party Fund loaned v Date of Fund loaned Party to whom fund given inknsd
Wil Nil il Nil Nil Nil
Details of funds advanced during the year 2023-24: (Rs. In lakhs)
1 Funds furth Date of funds furthe
Name of the Party Fund loaned ) “* | Date of Fund loaned Party to whom fund given e h
Nirmala Buildwell Pyt Lid, 100,00 100,00 26,06.2023 Mr. Angad Singh 26.06.2023

i During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the company has not received any funds from any persons or enlities including foreign entities

(Funding party) except as disclosed as below, with the understanding (whether recarded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries)
or

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

Details of funds borrowed & advanced during the year 2024-25: (Rs. In lakhs)
Funds further Date of Fund Date of funds further|
Mame of the Borrower Fund borrowed lnansd  invesied i Farty to whom fund given loaned / Tnvested
Nil Mil Mil Nil Ml il
Details of funds borrowed and advanced during the year 2023-24: (Rs. In lakhs)
Funds further Date of Fund Date of funds further
Mame of the Borrower Fund borrowed Ioaned/ Invented hocreiied Party to whom fund given Youned / Inveitad
il Nil Mil Nil Nil Nil

’ o,
(MAHIMA KAPOOR)

k Ind A5 16 - Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be

recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of the cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no
impact on its consolidated financial statements,

Ind AS 37-Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets = The amendment specifies that the 'cost of fulfilling a conteact comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’, Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, and
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling, the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on ar after April 1,
2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material,

4“4
The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has received Presidential assent on 28

September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the effective date of the Code is yet 1o be natified and final rules for quantifying
the financial impact are also yet to be issued. In view of this, the Company will assess the impact of the Code when relevant provisions are notified and will record
related impact, if any, in the period the Code becomes effective,

45 Events after the Reporting period

There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company aperations,

The Financial Statement are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs, except when otherwise stated. Previous year figures have been
regrouped, reclassified wherever considered necessary,

47 Notes 1 to 47 form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements,

F d on behalf of the board of directors of
For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO. ,adhlka Heights Limited
Chartered Accountants
FREN. 345N
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UNANDA JAIN
Partner " Director
Membership No.514276 DIN 03592692
PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 27.05.2025



DUBEY & CO. Kailash Plaza

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 252-H, Sant Nagar
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF RADICURA INFRA LIMITED (Formerly Known as RADICURA & COMPANY
LIMITED)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of RADICURA
INFRA LIMITED (Formerly Known as RADICURA & COMPANY LIMITED) (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of Profit and Loss,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date. (Basis for Opinion We conducted our audit of the standalone
financial statements in accordance with the Standards).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together‘ with the independence requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance



with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone Financial Statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
(changes in equity) and cash‘flows of the Company with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the company are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going cpncern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
sk wh_ether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

i

.



risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a;going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the standalone
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the standalone
financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
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relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest bénefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

h. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
standalone financial statement.

i. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

j. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

k. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind As
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

I.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

m. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such control, refer our separate
report in “Annexure-B”.

n. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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The Company does not have pending litigations which may impact its
financial ppsition.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us ,there are no amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
required to be transferred to special account in compliance with the
provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“intermediaries”), with
the understating, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the company from any other person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understating, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that



c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations, under sub-clause (i) and
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

Based on our examination including test checks, the company, in respect of
financial years commencing on or after the 1st April 2023 has used such
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been
operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software
and further we observed that the audit trail feature has not been
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as
per the statutory requirements for record retention.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DUBEY& Co.
Chartered Accountants

DEEPAK DUBEY 0 A SO
Proprietor [ UL
Membership No.: 086349, ' -1
FRN :07515N G

PLACE:NEW DELHI

DATE: 26th May, 2025
UDIN: 250863 498MUu 1 SAS 3



ANNEXURE “A” to Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of RADICURA INFRA LIMITED (“the
Company”) for the year ended on 31st March 2025. We report that:

a) According to the information and explanation are given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars including details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment .

b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment.

d) As represented by the management no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any Benami property under the “Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made there under.

a) The Company is a real estate company and the project under construction has been
disclosed under the head inventories. The project under construction is situated at
Village Harsaru and Hyatpur, Gurugram, Haryana which is freehold land. The title deed
of all the land is in favor of the company.

b) As represented by the management, the aforesaid land is under the control and
custody of the Company along with its title deed.

c) On the basis of the information and explained given to us, there is no working capital
limit has been obtained by the company from banks or financial institutions.

d) In our opinion and according to the information and explained given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and natures of its
business.

e) In our opinion and according to the information and explained given to us, the
company is generally maintaining proper records of inventories. No material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of stock by management as
compared to books.

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company
has granted loan and made investment in the mutual funds to which the provision of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are complied with.

b) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of such loans are not prima facie prejudicial
; tQ;\:Qe interest of the company.
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iv.

vi.

vii.

viii.

ix.

d) In respect of the aforesaid loan,which are repayable on Demand on mutually
agreeable terms, the party is repaying the principal amounts as stipulated and is also
regular in payment of interest, where applicable.

e) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties except disclosed above.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company
has granted loan and made investment in the mutual funds to which the provision of
section 185 and186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are complied with.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the
activities carried on by the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax , cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31,
2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues outstanding on account of any dispute.

As informed to us, there was no transactions recorded in the books of account have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The
Company has not taken any loan either from banks, financial institutions or from the
government and has not issued any debentures.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public

“offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the



xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

xvii.

xviii.

Xix.

provisions of clause 3 (x) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year
under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (x) (b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The provisions related to internal audit are not applicable on the company and hence
not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3
(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

The company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year. The Company incurred a cash loss of Rs. 19.03 Lakhs in the
financial year and a cash loss of Rs. 73.83 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There was no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and hence not
commented upon.

On the basis of the financial ratios, aging and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial

. statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans,
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We are of the opinion that there no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of the
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date.

XX.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are

no ongoing projects towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) requiring a transfer to
special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for
the year.

xxi. The provisions related to the consolidated financial statements are not applicable to the
company, hence not commented upon.

For DUBEY& Co.
Chartered Accountants

DEEPAK DUBEY / u’}?‘" — r

Proprietor [ Nl
Membership No.:08634g:~f\_'jfi‘f u DEL
FRN :07515N ¢

PLACE:NEW DELHI
DATE: 26th May, 2025
UDIN: 25 Ogenyf@dMmuUIsaA g3



ANNEXURE “B” to Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of
the Companies Act’2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of RADICURA INFRA
LIMITED (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation ofireliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those standards and the guidance note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing’procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained , is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company'’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion i

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For DUBEY& Co.
Chartered Accountants

DEEPAK DUBEY s
Proprietor & . >
Membership No.:086349 W7
FRN :07515N

PLACE:NEW DELHI

DATE: 26th May, 2025
UDIN: 250824 ™MUISA"I3 g
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RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U74899PB1993PLC045881)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

; As at As at
g e 315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
L ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipments 1 233.90 249.81
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 2 100.00 119.61
(ii) Loans 3 - -
333.90 369.42
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 4 3,031.52 3,031.52
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 163.36 271.07
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 18.94 12.87
(iii) Loans 7 100.00 —
(iv) Other Financial Assets 8 1,299.96 1,305.07
(c) Other Current Assets 9 1.96 1.41
(d) Income tax assets (net) 10 4.86 6.66
4,620.60 4,628.60
Total Assets 4,954.50 4,998.02
—==
IL. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 19.83 19.83
(b) Others Equity 12 766.03 807.65
785.86 82748
Liabilities
(2) Non Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 13 137 0.73
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 57.94 62.74
59.31 63.47
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 2,72297 2,722.97
(ii) Trade payables 16 885.69 882.81
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 500.00 500.00
(b) Other current liabilities 18 0.32 0.83
(c) Provisions 19 0.35 0.46
(d) Current Tax Liabilities ( Net) 20 - -
4,109.33 4,107.07
Total Equity & Liabilities P 4,954.50 4,998.02
Summary of significant accounting policies I
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, 1to d5

As per our attached report of even date

For DUBEY & CO.
Chartered Accountants

DEEPAK DUBEY
Proprietor =T
Membership No.86349

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATE : 26.05.2025
UDIN: 28086 34Fa MU sATN 2 S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

DIN 00014

Director /.4 ——

Radicura Infra Limited
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RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U74899PB1993PLC045881)

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
: For the year ended | For the year ended
P
e NOt® | 315t March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Continuing Operations
Revenue from Operations 2 0.42 0.42
Other Income 2 53.86 62.42
Total Income (I) 54.28 62.84
Expenses
Cost of land sold 23 = _
Employees benefit expenses 24 30.31 19.83
Depreciation & Amortization 1 15.92 17.00
Other expenses 25 43.00 116.84
Total Expenses (II) 89.23 153.67
Profit / (loss) before Tax (I) - (II) (34.95) (90.83)
Tax expense:
(1) Current Income Tax . =
(2) Income Tax of Previous Years 12.80 0.20
(3) Deferred Tax (6.13) 4.72)
Profit / (loss) for the year
from Continuing Operations (III) (41.62) (86.31)
Discontinuing Operations
Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued Operations = i
Tax Income /(Expense) of discontinuing operations = .
IX. Profit /(loss) for the year from discontinued Operations (after tax) & i
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (IV) (41.62) (86.31)
Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss . "
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss — .
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss i Ny
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or
loss S -
(V) Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
(VI)Total Comprehensive Income for the year (41.62) (86.31)
Earning per share for continuing operations [face value of Share Re.
1/-each]
(Previous Year Re. 1/- each)
(i) Basic
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 27 (2.10) (4.35)
(ii) Diluted
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year (2.10) (4.35)
Summary of significant accounting policies I

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1 to 45
As per our attached report of even date

For DUBEY & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Proprietor
Membership No.86

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATE : 26.05.2025
unir: 250863432 SA TN RS

3 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
icura Infra Limited

MAHIPATI SINGH

Director
DIN 01712664




RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
' (CIN: U74899PB1993PLC045881)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March'25

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year
Sl 315t Marchv2s 3st M’:ch,e;odz:d
A) Cash flow from operating activities
Net Operating profit before tax and extra ordinary items (34.95) (90.83)
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation 1592 17.00
Loss on sale of Fixed assets - 023
Dividend Income (0.30) (0.00)
Interest Income (38.27) (43.28)
Profit on redemption on Mutual fund (15.26) (6.86)
Unrealized gain on Mutual funds - (37.91) (12.26) (45.16)
Operating profit before working capital changes (72.86) (135.99)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories - %
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (0.55) (1.25)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables - 049
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets 5.11 9.76
(Increase) / Decrease in Short term Loan given (100.00) 37.50
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 288 (4.21)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 0.53 113
Increase / (Decrease) in current liabilities (0.51) (92.54) (0.20) 43.22
Cash generated from operations (165.40) (92.77)
Net direct taxes paid 9.69 6.00
Net cash from Operating Activities (175.09) (98.78)
B) Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Tangible Assets - -
(Investments) / Redemption made in Mutual Fund & NCD's 161.84 76.13
(Investments) / Redemption made in Equity (18.96) (33.01)
Interest received 3827 43.28
Net cash used in investing activities 181.15 86.40
Net cash from operating and investing activities 6.06 (12.38)
C) Cash flow from financing activities
Fresh loan taken - -
Repayment of loan s =
Dividend Paid - -
Interest paid - - - .
Net cash from operating, investing & financial activities 6.06 (12.38)
Net increase in cash & cash equivalant 6.06 (12.38)
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalant 12.88 25.26
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalant 18.94 12.88
Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the following;-
i) Cash balance in Hand 0.04 0.04
ii) Balance with Banks:
a) In Current Accounts 18.90 12.83
b} In Fixed Deposits - -
Total 18.94 12.88 |

As per our report of even date

For DUBEY & CO.
Chartered Accountants

EEPAK DUBEY
Proprietor
Membership No, 86149
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PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATE : 26.05.2025

UMIAT JAIN
Director
DIN 00014236

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Radicura Infra Limited

LJ%U Z
MAHIPATI SINGH

Director
DIN 01712664
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A. Equity Share Capital

RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U74899FB1993PLC045881)
Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(1) Current reporting period (Rs. In Lakhs)

Changes in equity Balance as at

Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2024 share capital during 31st
the current year March'2025
19.83 - 19.83

(2) Previous reporting period

Changes in equity Balance as at

Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2023 share capital during 31st
the previous year March'2024
19.83 - 19.83
B. Other Equity
(1) Financial Year 2024-25
Equity Component of . - l'leserve and Sneplus
Particulars Compound Financial &ecu.r-lheg " Total
Fibbhiatirite Premium Retained Earnings
Reserve
Balance as at 1st April, 2024 - 73.27 734.38 807.66
Changes in accounting policy/ prior period
errors - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the
current reporting period s - “ o
Total Compreh ensive Income for the
current year - & B i
Dividends - E Z .
Transfer to retained earnings - - (41.62) (41.62)
Any other change (to be specified) - - - a
As at 31st March' 2025 5 73.27 692.77 766.03
(2) Financial Year 2023-24
Equity Component of Reserve and Surplus
Particulars Compound Financial Securities Total
instruments Premium Retained Earnings
Reserve

Balance as at 1st April, 2023 - 73,27 820.69 £93.96
Changes in accounting policy/ prior period
errors 4 d i _
Restated balance at the beginning of the
previous reporting period R g = A
Total Comprehensive Income for the
previous year - . " A
Dividends - » o
Transfer to retained earnings - - (86.31) (86.31)
Any other change (Share Issue Expenses) 5 " " -
As at 31st March'2024 - 73.27 734.38 807.66

For DUBEY & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(DEEPAK DUBE&*),
Pmpnetur(

Membership No 86\'3%‘:?(;/

PLACE: NEW DELHI 7
DATE : 26.05.2025 :

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

/
AIN
Director
DIN 00014236

Radicura Infra Limited

LLJC/C/WU/
MAHIPATI SINGH
Director
DIN 01712664




a)

b)

]

d)

RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U74899PB1993PLC045881)
Summary of Significant Accounting Polcies for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Background

Radicura Infra Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Radhika Heights Limited. The main objects of the Company is to carry on business of acquisition,
construction and development of projects, townships, builtup infrastructure, housing, commercial premises, hotels, resorts, hospital, educational
institution, recreational facilities, city and regional level infrastructure and other allied works including to acquire by purchase, lease exchange, rent or
otherwise deal in land buildings and in real estates of all kinds,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
(the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
- certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value (refer accounting policies regarding financial instruments)

Use of Estimates & Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

i)Income taxes: The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

ii)Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period,
Specifically, the Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns etc,

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification,

An asset is treated as current when it is:
-Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve manths after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of
products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between the aquisition of the assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalent, the Company
has determined its operating cycle as 48 months for real estate projects and 12 montths for others for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities
as current and non current.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase
price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and borrowing Costs attributable to construction of
qualifying asset, upto the date assset is ready for its intended use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price,

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Derecoginition

operty, Plant & Equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from the use. Any gains and
sal of an item of Property, Pl
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Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on the Written Down Value Method (WDV) over the estimated useful lives of the assets considering the nature, estimated usage,
operating conditions, history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, Considering these

factors, the Company has decided to apply the useful life for various categories of property, plant & equipment, which are as preseribed in Schedule 11 of the
Act. Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

5. Useful
No Type of Assets Life in
’ Years
) |Buildings — Non-Factory buildings 60
b) IPIant and machinery (including Electrical ﬁninjs] 15
¢) |Office equipment 5
d) JFurniture and fixtures 10
e) Jvehicles 8
f) JComputers Equipment 3.5
| g) |Software 5

a)

w
\ s

The useful lives are reviewed at least at each year end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change in accounting estimate,

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised aver the period of the lease or the estimated useful life whichever is lower,

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Financial Instruments

Financial Assets
Financial assets comprise investments in equity instruments, loans and advances , trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents and other eligible assets.

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value except trade recievables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of
the financial assets. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Sub ¥ RA "
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-Financial Assets measured at amortised cost: Financial assets held within a business model whose objective s to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and
interest (SPPI) on principal amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (EIR) method,

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets.
These financial assets are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. The EIR amortisation is
recognised as finance income in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

= Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Financial assets held within a business model whose objective ig achieved
by both collecting the contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payment towards principal and interest (SPPI) on principal outstanding are subsequently measured at FVTOCL Fair value
movements in financial assets at FVTOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment
loases & reversals and foreign exchange gain loss in statement of profit and loss, On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit and loss, Interest earned is recognised under the expected interest rate (EIR) model.

-Equity instruments other than investment in associates: Equity instruments held for trading are classified at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL).
For other equity instruments the Company classifies the same as at FVTOCL The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. Fair value
changes on equity instruments at FVTOCI, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCT),

= Financial assets at fair value through fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): Financial assets are measured at FVTPL if is does not meet the criteria

for classification as measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, Fair value changes are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets:

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or the financial asset is transferred and the
transfer qualified for derecognition. On derecognition of financial asset in its entirety the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date of

derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) shall be recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss,

Impairment of financial assets:

Trade receivables, contract assets, receivables under Ind AS 109 are tested for impairment based on the expected credit losses (ECL) for the respective
financial asset. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income,/expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The approach followed by the company for recognising the impairment loss is given below:

1) Trade receivables
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The expected credit losses over lifetime of the asset are estimated by adopting the simplified

approach using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current condition and forecasts of future economic conditions.

-+2)Other ﬁmnchl assets
"I“br rucognftw of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase
G\#‘hﬂdlﬁ“ since initial rmug-mtlon. If eredit risk ha&ﬂmmeasud mgmhcantly 12-month ECL is used to pmwde for impairment loss. However, if
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Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables and other eligible liabilities,

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Any transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities (except
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value of financial liabilities,

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: The Company has classified the following under amortised cost:

a) Trade payables

b) Other financial liabilities

Amortised cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount.

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only
if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet Date are carried at a value which is approximately equal to fair value due to
the short maturity of these instuments.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability shall be derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished ie. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there s an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

The Company determines the classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition, After initial recognition, na reclassification is made for
financial assets which are categorised as equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets or financial liabilities that are specifically designated at FVTPL.
For financial assets, which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes
to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes
which are significant to the Company's operations. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity
that is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, To the extent the Company borrows funds generally and
uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company determines the amount of borrowings costs eligible for capitalization by applying a
capitalization rate to the expenditure incurred on such asset, The capitalization rate is determined based on the weighted average of borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the

qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing, costs that the Company capitalizes during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing costs incurred
during that period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs ta sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from the continuing use that are largely independent of cash inflows of other assets or group of assets
(the cash generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses are recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the

carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or group of units on a pro rata
basis.

Reversal of impairment loss
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed al each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists,

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized directly in other comprehensive income and presented within equity.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Net realisable value of property under construction assessed with refernce to market value

of completed property as at the reporting date less estimated cost to complete, Cost of inventory (Work-in-Progress) represents cost of land and all
expenditure incurred in connection with,
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Provisions and Contingencies

A provision arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current management estimates,
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed anly by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the enterprise. When there is a possible obligation
or present obligation where the likelihood of an outflow is remote, no disclosure or provision is made.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of ecanomic benefits is probable,

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an
asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

The company does not recognize a contingent liability but disclosed its existence in the financial statements.

Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax, Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the
taxable income for the period, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred tax arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits
or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantivelv enacted at the reportine date.

Minimum Alternate Taxes

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) is payable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against
regular income tax payable in subsequent years. MAT paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax, The Company recognises
MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convineing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period i.e the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. MAT credit is recognised as an asset and is shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement’.
The Company reviews the MAT Credit Entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and write down the asset to the extent the Company does not have
convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Foreign Currency Translations

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Radhika Heights Private Limited’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dales of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss,

Leases

As @ Lessee!

a) Classification of Lease

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not limited to, the
transfer of ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the lessee’s option to extend / purchase etc.

b) Recognition and initial measurement

At the lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured
at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to
dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any
incentives received),

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases (twelve month or less period) and leases of low-value assets using practical expedients, Instead of
recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in a standalone statement of profit and
lass ona stra&r'hi-llne basis over the lease term.

easurement

ent whe

i

r’g&‘l‘z{:{;hsyaiﬂ or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-o asaq{ fori
Lu/

e
L




xii)

xiii)

xiv)

Asa Lessor:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases, Rental
income from the operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, except when the lease rentals, increase are in line
with the general inflation index, Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognized aver the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are
carned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due
from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods ta reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

Revenue Recoginition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Income from Services - Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.
Interest Income: Interest income is recognized as it acerues in Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method.

Dividend income - Revenue is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established at the balance sheet date, Dividend income is
included under the head “Other income” in the statement of profit and loss,

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period,

Diluted earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate,

Segment reporting
The segmental reporting disclosures as required under Indian Accounting Standard-108 are not required, as there are no reportable business segments,




Property, Plant and Equipment

RADICURA INFRA LIMITED

(CIN: U74899PB1993PLC045881)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Description Building Furniture & Fixtures | Office Equipments Total
Gross carrying value
As at April 1, 2023 561.98 0.51 6.33 568.83
Additions - - . -
Disposals - 012 4.46 457
Adjustments - - - y
Exchange differences - - = -
As at March 31, 2024 561.98 0.40 1.88 564.26
Additions - - - -
Disposals = - - -
Adjustments - - - -
Exchange differences - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 561.98 0.40 1.88 564.26
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2023 295.30 0.49 6.00 301.78
Charge for the year 17.00 - - 17.00
Disposals - 0.11 4.23 4.34
Exchange differences - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 312.30 0.38 1.76 314.45
Charge for the year 15,92 - - 15.92
Disposals - - - -
Exchange differences = - - =
As at March 31, 2025 328.22 0.38 1.76 330.36
Net block as at March 31, 2024 249.68 0.02 0.11 249.81
Net block as at March 31, 2025 233.76 0.02 0.11 233.90




RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U74899PB1993PLC045881)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Asat As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
2  Investments (non-current)
SDI (unquoted):
Nil units of PIRG SDI 315.109% TRUST SERIES 1 (Previous Year 10 units) - 24.64
NCD's (unquoted):
Nil NCD's of Firstlight Properties Pvt. Ltd. @ 15.50% PA (Previous Year 109 NCD's) - 94.97
100 NCD's of Cassa grand @ PA (Previous Year Nil NCD's) 100.00 -
100.00 119.61
3 Loans (non-current)
Loan to parties
i) Unsecured, considered good to Associated parties - 5
ii) Unsecured, considered good to others . 3
4 Inventories
(Valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)
Stock In Trade 3,031.52 3,031.52
(representing cost of land & building appurtenant related land development expenditure
(Previous Year Rs. 332,809 474))
3,031.52 3,031.52
5 Investments (current)
(a) Quoted Equity Shares - Traded ( refer annexure B)* 51.98 33.0
(At Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
(b) Quoted Mutual Funds - Non traded
(At Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
Kotak Saving Funds - Growth (Regular Plan) 25,489.48 Units (Previous Year 111,987,443 units) 10.73 43,98
Kotak Equity Arbitrage Funds - Growth (Regular Plan) Nil Units (Previous Year 85,178.39 units) - 2028
Nippon India ETF Liquid Bees 1,19 Unit (Previous Year 1.134 Units) 0.01 0.01
Kotak Liquid Fund - Growth (Regular Plan) Nil Units (Previous Year 1064.248 Units) - 51,51
UTI Nifty - Growth (Direct Plan) 2,411.584 Units (Previous Year Nil Units) 3.93 -
SDI (unquoted):
Nil SDI of PIRG SDI 3 15.109% TRUST SERIES 1 (Previous Year 10 units) - 35.68
NCD's (unquoted):
Nil NCD)'s of Firstlight Properties Pvt. Ltd. @ 15.50% FA (Previous Year 109 NCD's) H 18.17
Nil NCDY's of Adisesh Developers Pvt. Ltd. @ 15% PA (Previous Year 100 NCD's) & 59.43
10000 NCD's of Blu-Smart Mobility Ltd. 12% @ PA (Previous Year Nil NCD's) 96,71 =
163.36 271.07
6 Cash and Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank 18.90 12.83
b) Cash in Hand 0.4 0.04
18.94 12.87
7 Loans (current)
Loan to fellow subsidiary Co.
- Nirmala Buildwell Pvt. Ltd.* 100.00 s
(Unsecured, considered good)
* Loan to related parties are payable at fixed repayment terms. Interest rate is at 8% per annuam.
100.00 -
8 Other Current Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to Others 1,290 86 1,304.97
Security Deposit 0.10 0.10
1,299.96 1,305.07
9 Other Current Assets
Interest accured on Loan given (related parties) 0.57 -
Prepaid Expepsgs 1.39 1.41
/ N 1.96 1.41
'
10 Income Tax Assets (Net)
\" " Advance Income Tax 4,86 6.66
Less: Provision for Income Tax = =
4.86 6.66




* Annexure B - List of Equity Shares held by the company as at 31st March' 2025 :-

Total purchse
Sno. |Name of the company Quantity Unil::;r'chase cu:t (Rs. in N;_:::‘ :‘I:::;;;;t To::lls:::z)[ﬂs.
akhs)

1 Apollo Hospital Enterprises 7.00 6,430.40 0.45 6,616.20 0.46
2 Axis Bank Ltd 226.00 1,096.91 2.48 1,102.00 2.49
3 Bharti Airtel Ltd 176.00 1,333.33 235 1,733.40 3.05
4 Dilip Buildcon Ltd 245,00 409.01 1.00 475.90 1.17
5 DLFLTD 127.00 788.51 1.00 680.50 0.86
] HDFC Bank Ltd. 81.00 1,760.18 1.43 1,828.20 1.48
7 HDFC Life Insurance Company Ltd 96.00 591.21 0.57 685.70 0.66
8 Hindustan Poetroleum Corporation Ltd 133.50 352.04 0.47 360.35 0.48
9 ICICI Bank Ltd 230.00 1,072.16 247 1,348.35 3.10
10 Infosys Ltd 114.00 1,581.47 1.80 1,570.65 1.79
11 JSW Steel Ltd 68.00 827.82 0.56 1,063.20 0.72
12 Larsen and Toubro Ltd 69.00 3,391.42 234 3,492.30 241
13 |Lloyds Metals and Energy Ltd. 338.00 592.69 2.00 1,287.25 4.35
14  |Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd 73.00 2,720.00 1.99 2,665.80 1.95
15 NTPC Ltd 167.00 339.77 0.57 357.60 0.60
16 Olectra Greentech Ltd. 58.00 1,706.03 0.99 1,167.50 0.68
17  |One 97 Communications Ltd. 257.00 388.82 1.00 783.45 2.01
18 P 1 Industries Ltd 25.00 3,579.46 0.89 3,428.20 0.86
19  |Persistent Systems Ltd. 47.00 4,501.03 212 5,513.75 2.59
20 REC Ltd 199.00 464.27 0.92 429.20 0.85
21 Reliance Industries Ltd 162.00 1,481.14 240 1,275.10 207
22 |State Bank of India 181.00 825,92 1.49 771.50 1.40
23 Steel Authority of India Ltd. 353.00 142.00 0.50 11518 0.41
24 TARC Ltd 8,340.00 65.94 5.50 123.13 10.27
25 TATA Motors Ltd 214.00 857.27 1.83 674.45 1.44
26 TATA Steel Ltd. 694.00 144,31 1.00 154.24 1.07
27 Ultratech Cement Ltd 6.00 10,014.68 0.60 11,509.55 0.69
28  |Vedanta Ltd 446.00 448.95 2.00 463.40 2.07

Total 42.73 51.98

* Annexure B - List of Equity Shares held by the company as at 31st March' 2024 :-

Total purchse .
Sno. |Name of the company Quantity Huk :Ou;lchase cost (PRB. in h;:::‘;;::'ﬁ;;;:t T”:zl E::;;RE’
lakhs)

1 Apollo Hospital Enterprises 7.00 6,430.40 0.45 6,356.80 0.44
2 Axis Bank Ltd 139.00 1,074.10 1.49 1,047.20 1.46
3 Bharti Airtel Ltd 98.00 1,142.05 1.12 1,228.60 1.20
1 Equitas Small Finance Bank Ltd 915.00 101.48 0.93 92.55 0.85
5 HDFC Life Insurance Company Ltd 96.00 591.21 0.57 633.35 0.61
6 Hindustan Poetroleum Corporation Ltd 89.00 528.07 0.47 475.65 0,42
7 ICICI Bank Ltd 197.00 1,046.40 2.06 1,093.30 215
8 Infosys Ltd 79.00 1,657.55 1.31 1,498.05 1.18
9 JSW Steel Ltd 68.00 827.82 0.56 830.20 0.56
10 LARSEN and Toubro Ltd 54.00 3,419.43 1.85 3,769.90 2.04
11  |Lloyds Metals and Energy Ltd. 338.00 592.69 2.00 602.00 2.03
12 NTPC Ltd 167.00 339.77 0.57 335.80 0.56
13 |Olectra Greentech Ltd. 58.00 1,704.06 0.99 1,888.50 1.10
14 |One 97 Communications Ltd. 257.00 388.82 1.00 402.65 1.03
15 P I Industries Ltd 25.00 3,579.46 0.89 3,867.55 0.97
16 REC Ltd 199.00 464,27 0.92 451.00 0.90
17 Reliance Industries Ltd 81.00 2,962,29 240 2,971.70 241
18 TARC Ltd 8,340.00 63.94 5.50 139.75 11.66
19 TATA Motors Ltd 87.00 958.85 0.83 992,80 0.86
20 Ultratech Cement Ltd 6.00 10,014.68 0.60 9,749.15 0.58

Total 26.52 33.m




RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U74899FB1993PLC045881)

Noles to Financial Statemenis for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
11 Share Capital As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a. Authorised
50,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 50,00 50,00

(Previous Year 50,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each)

b. Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Shares
19,682,500 (Previous Year 19,62,500) Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid-up 1983 19.83

Tolal Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Share Capital 19.83 19.83

¢. Terms /rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Re.1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend declared, if any is
payable in Indian rupees. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual General Meeting, The board has not
proposed any dividend for current year and previous year.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts including,
preference shares. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st Mareh, 2024
In Nos. Rs, In lakhs In Nos, Rs. In lakhs
At the beginning of the year 19,82,500 19,83 19,82,500 19.83
Add : Issued during the year ending - - = -
Outstanding at the end of the Year 19,82,500 19.83 19,82,500 19.83
. Detail of shareholders holding maore than 5% shares in the company
As al 31st March, 2025 As at 31st Mareh, 2024
I % holding in the % holding in the
n Nos,

In Nos,

Class Class

Equity shares of Re.1/- each fully paid
- Radhika Heights Limited (Holding Company) 19,82,440 99,999 19,82, 440 99.99%
(60 shares are held by nominees of Radhika Heights Limited)

f. Promoter’s Shareholding

As al 31st March, 2025 As al 31st March, 2024
L/

InNos.  |%of total = C:;‘“g" d:'l:i"g In Nos.  |%of total % Change during
Promoter's name shares i G shares the year**
Ragdhika Heights Limited 19,82,440 99.99% 0.00% 19,582,440 99.99% 0.00%
E- Shares held by holding company and/or their subsidiaries/ associates
Fquhyﬁlurm held ]'ry hnld}.np' COmMpany are as below:

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 3181 March, 2024

= Radhika Hrighlm Limited (Hnlding Cﬂ]‘lq'mn_v] 19,82.440 19,82,440




RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U74899FB1993PLC045881)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at Asal
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Particulars

12 Other Equity

a, Retained Earnings

Opening balance 73438 820.69
Add: Net profit/ (loss) for the current year (41.62) (86.31)
Add; Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans " &
Profit available for appropriation 692,76 734.38
Less : Appropriations - -
Transferred to general reserves E ~
Proposed dividend e =
Corporate dividend tax o =
Closing balance 692,76 734.38

b. Securities premium reserve

Opening Balance 73.27 7327
Change during the Year “ -

Closing Balance 73.27 73.27
Total Reserves and Surplus 766.03 B07.65

Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares, These reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

13 Non Current provisions
Pravision for Grauity 1.37 0.73
1.37 0.73

14 Deferred Tax Liability (Net)
On temporary difference between the accouniing base & tax base
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of

Property, plant and equipment 58.38 64.39

Others 044 0.32

57.94 64.07

MAT eredit entitlement 133 L4
Add: MAT eredit entitlement against excess provision made - -

Less: Tax adjusted with MAT credit (1.33) (0.11)

0.00 1.33

57.94 62.74

15 Current Borrowings

Loans from Related Parties
Unsecured borrowings from holding Company
- Radhika Heights Limited 272297 272297
Above borrowing is repayable on demand
2,722.97 2,722.97
Refer Note 34 for information about liquidity risk and market risk of Current Borrowings,
16 Trade Payables
Trade Payables (dues to micro and other small enterprises) =
Trade Payables (dues to other than micro and other small enterprises)
- Related parties . "
=Others 885.69 882.81
885.69 882.81
Refer Note 33 for information about aging, schedule of trade payables,
Refer Note 34 for information about liquidity risk and market risk;
17 Other Current Financial liabilities
Securily Deposit from others 500,00 500,00
500.00 500.00
Refer Note 34 for information about liquidity risk and market risk of Other Current Financial Liabilities,
18 Other Current Liabilities
Salary Payable 3 z
Statutory dues
Statutory Payables (TDS Payable) 0.03 054
EPF Payables 0.29 0.29
0.32 083
19 Provisions
Provision for Compensated Absences 0.35 0.46
b 0.35 0.46

) 20 Curgent Tax Liabilities (Net)
Ty vision nl*‘llnmmo Tax {net of MAT)
n Less: Ad\t;anu:e Income Tax




RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U74899PB1993PLC045881)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

21 Revenue From Operation
Rent Income 042 0.42
0.42 042

22 Other income

Income from Interest from fellow subsidiary Co. 0.64 1.02
Income from Interest from Others. 4.54 11.64
Interest received from NCD's 33.09 30.61
Dividend Received 0.30 0.00
Profit on redemption on Mutual fund 15.26 6.86
Unrealized Gain on Mutual / Equity Fund (net) - 12.26
Interest on income tax refund = 0.03
Excess Provisions Written back 0.03 -

53.86 62.42

23 Cost of land sold
Land cost e :

24 Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries 28.50 18.82
Staff welfare expenses 1.81 1.01
30.31 19.83

Es—————————

25 Other expenses

Electricity & water charges 0.16 0.08
Professional Charges 16.95 9.78
Auditor's Remuneration:-

- Statutory Audit Fees 0.30 0.30
Repair & Maintenance - Building 0.31 0.24
Repair & Maintenance - Office Equipment 0.05 -
Printing & Stationery 0.30 -
Business Promotions - 97.30
Fees & Taxes 0.01 0.07
Insurance 3.00 1.92
Property Tax 0.06 0.06
Travelling & Conveyance 0.94 4.23
CSR Expenses (refer note 42) 3.96 -
Lease Rent 2.80 2.40
Office Expenses 0.02 0.23

Business Promotions \ 1.50 -
Membership & Subscription 0.06 -
Misc. Exp ; w 0.00 0.00
Bank Charges E 0.02

Unrealized loss on Mutal Fund/ Equity fund (net) ) 8.72 -
Loss on sale of Investments (net) l,

Loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment ‘\_\ / - 0.23

g | 43.00 116.84
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RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U74899PB199IPLCI45881)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2028

{Rs. In Lakhs)

NOTE 26 INCOME TAX Asat As at

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

The income tax expense consists of the following :
Current tax expense for the current vear

Current tax expense pertaining to previous years 1280 -

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit - 011y
Deferred tax expense/ (benefit) (6.13) 4.72)
Total income tax 6.66 (4.83)

Reéconciliation of tax liability on book profit vis-2-vis actual tax llahllﬂy

Profit before income taxes (34.95) (50.83)
Enacted Tax Rate 2517% 2517%
Computed Tax Expense (8.80) (22.86)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax

Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed 880 2286
Tax effect of expenses that are not dedcutible for tax a %
Tax effect due to non taxable income

Minimum alternative lax (MAT) credit - 011y
Previously unrecognised tax losses used to reduce current tax expense = 4
Other Temporary Differences 6.66 (4.72)
Total income tax expense 6.66 (1.83)
i = As at As at
NOTE 27 EARNINGS PER SHARE March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Profit/ (loss) attributable to shareholders (41.62) (B6.31)
Weighted average number of equity shares 19.83 19.83
Mominal value per euity share 1.00 1.00
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 19.83 1983
Earnings per equity share (2.10) (4.35)
(2.10) (4.35)
NOTE 28 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS Asat

As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
(A) Contingent liabilities

I Income Tax Nil Nil
I Other Legal Cases Nil Nil
(B) Capital and other commitments
Esni d of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of advances and nol provided in the books are as [ollows:
Particulars Asat Asal
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment Nil Nil

NOTE 29 LEASES

In case of assets taken on lease
Oprerating Leaes:

Company has taken premises admeasuring 60 sq. It area at Commercial 5C0 no.71, First Floor, Royal Estate Complex Zirakpur, Sub Tehsil, Zirkpur, 5,A.5. Nagar (Punjab), under
the operating lease agreement for its registered office, These are generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms.,

During the financial year, Company has taken premises admeasuring 150 sq.ft. approx. situated at 7th Floor, DCM Building, 16 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi - 110001 irom its

Ultimate Holding Company (Ravinder Heights Ltd. ) on operating lease agreement for using its corporate office, These are generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual
consent on mutually agreed terms,

Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2024
Lease payments for the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss - ﬂ,-lm"ng o short -term lease 0.88 014
NOTE 30 MSME

NOTE ¥

Based on the information available with the company, there are no dues as at March 31, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 payable to enterprises covered under * Micro Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, No Interest is paid/ payable by the company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006,

=

Related Party Disclosure
As required by Indian Accounting Standard <24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

4) Names of Related Parties and Nature of Related Party Relationship:

i) Ultimate Holding Company
Ravinder Heights Limited (Holding Company of RHL)

i} Holding, Company
Radhika Heights Limited (RHL)

iff) Other Subsidiaries of Radhika Heights Limited ( Fellow Subsidiaries)
Sunanda Infra Limited
Cabana Construction Private Limited
Mirmala Buildwell Private Limited
MNirmala Organic Frams & Resorts Private Limited

i) Keéy Management Personnel (KMP) / Directors \
# : .§t‘m|l Jain, Director \ ¢
ms. tadhika Jain, Directar \
Ir. Mahipati Singh, Director

Mr, N.N. Khamitkar, Director S
qu.'Sumnda Jain, Director
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RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U74899PB1993PLC045881)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

NOTE 32 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

NOTE

A. Financial Instruments by category and hierarchy

Financial Instruments by Category
The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Carrying Amount
Financial Instruments at fair value through Profit or Loss
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 263.35 157.79
Total 263.35 157.79
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 18.94 12,87
(ii) Bank Balances other than i) above - -
(ii) Other financial assets 1,299.96 1,305.07
Total Financial Assets 1,318.90 1,317.94
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
(i) Borrowings 2,72297 2,722.97
(ii) Trade payables 885.60 88281
(iii) Other financial liabilities 500,00 500.00
Total Financial Liabilities 410865 110577 |

Note: The Company has disclosed financial instruments such as investment in equity instrument, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets,
trade payables and other financial liabilities at carrying value because their carrying amounts represents the best estimate of the fair values.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between

willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair Value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other current receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities and other financial

instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments,

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:
Level 1: Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair value.
Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments includes:

(a) the use of net asset value (NAV) for mutual funds on the basis of the statement received from investee party.

(b) the use of adjusted net asset value method for certain equity investments because the amount of investment is not material and management is

not expected significant changes in fair value of investment.

33 Trade Payables ap

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
a
Not Due Less than 1
y::: & 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years|  (In Lakhs)
(i) MSME = : = : p :
(ii) Others 0.85 295 B - 881.89 885.69
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - . 7 : p :
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - 2 m 3 F E
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Poal
Not Due i
;:::: than1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years {In Lakhs)
(i) MSME T : : = = =
(ii) Others 0.81 0.11 = . 881.89 882,81
(i) Disputed dues — MSME - - - 3 x .
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - 2 2 - e
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RADICURA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U74899PB1993PLC045881)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

34 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company’s financial risk
management policy is set by the Managing Board. The financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s
policies on risk management. Key financial risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board of directors of the Company.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, equity prices and other market changes
that may effect market sensitivity instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including
investments and deposits, loans and borrowings.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. In order to balance the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest rate risk,
management performs a comprehensive interest rate risk management. The Company has no interest bearing borrowings hence it is not
exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates. They are therefore not subject to interest rate rigk, since neither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates,

Foreign currency risk
The Company has operations in India only hence Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is nil,

Price Risk

Price risk arises from exposure to equity securities prices from investments held by the Company. The Company does not have any
investments in equity shares,

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to financial loss. Credit risk arises
from trade receivables and other financial assets,

Trade Receivables
There are no trade receivables in the Company as at reporting date.

Other Financial Assets
There is no credit risk exposure with respect to other financial assets as they are either supported by legal agreement or are with Nationalized
- Deposits are held with Electricity Department, hence the risk of default is considered to be negligible,

= Loans to Others are supported with legal agreements, hence there is no credit risk involved.

Provision for Expected Credit losses
Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no credit risk to the Company.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows, The
Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates,

Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below provide details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Less than 1 year/

As at 31-Mar-25 Ok Dasiand 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Current

(i) Borrowings 272297 - =
(ii) Trade payables 885.69 - -
(iif) Other financial liabilities 500.00 - -
Total 4,108.65 - - -
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NOTE

NOTE

NOTE

NOTE
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39

40

b

Asat 31-Mar-24 Less than 1 year/

On Desiinnd 1=2years 2-3years More than 3 years
Current
(i) Borrowings 2,72297 - - -
(ii) Trade payables 882,81 - = -
(iii) Other financial liabilities 500.00 a 5 =
Total 4,105.78 - - -
Ratios

Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios,
alongwith detailed explanations thereof, including:

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change in % Reason

(a) Current Ratio 1.124 1.127 -0.23% NA
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio 346 3.29 5.30% NA
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio NA NA NA NA

Due to d in
(d) Return on Equity Ratio (1.76) @s8)  -61.52% i
{) Inventory turnover ratio NA NA 0.00% NA
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio NA NA 0.00% Pa

Due to decrease in
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio 0.049 0.132 -63.18%

other expenditures

(h) Net capital turnover ratio 0.106 0.120 -11.89%  [NA

Due to decarese in
(i) Net profit ratio -76.67% -137.34%|  -44.18%  |revenue form operation

Due to decarese in

(i) Return on Capital employed -4.13% -10.19% -59.44%  |revenue form operation
-63.88% Due to decrease in
i o g o, o,
(k) Return on investment 14.20% 39.31% investments
Capital Risk Management

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to
shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to
meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets, The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong
capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth
of its business. There in no change in the Company capital structure since previous year.

Revenue from Contracts with Customer

Ind AS 115 Revenue with Contracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018, replaces existing,
revenue recognition requirements. Under the modified retrospective approach there were no adjustments required to the retained earnings as
at April 1, 2018, Application of Ind AS 115 did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the
financial results.

Segment Reporting

The Company is a one segment company in the business of real estate development and leasing. All its operations are located in India
accordingly, the Company views these activities as one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS
108 on “Segment Reporting’.

Radhika Heights Limited along with its four wholly owned subsidiaries, i.e. Radicura Infra Limited, Cabana Construction Private Limited,
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited and Sunanda Infra Limited had entered into a Collaboration Agreement with Bestech India Pvt, Ltd,

(Developer) for its land situated in Sector 89A, Gurgaon for affordable plotted colony project under Deen Dayal Jan Awas Yojna from DTCP
Haryana,

Thereafter, the project has obtained two licenses from Directorate of Town and Country Planning, Haryana on 17.09.2021 for 12.3812 acres of

Land and 08.10.2021 for 39.43125 acres of Land. In 2023, RERA certificates have been received for the aforesaid projects and the development
work is in process.

Notes on Amendment in Schedule III and relating to other disclosures required to be made in Financial Statements:

The company does not have any transaction with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of the
Companies Act 1956 during the year ended March 31" 2025 and March 31" 2024,

There was no charges or satisfaction which were requried to registered with the registrar of companies during the year ended March 31st 2025
and March 31st 2024,

"‘c\ 1 The company complies with the number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies

(Restfittion on number of layers) rules 2017 during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,
)

! fJ " " ,
4 / %o pany has not invested or traded in cryplocurrency or virtual currency dur'\ng the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

\NEW DELHI/,
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NOTE

4

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding Benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transaction Act 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formally the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made
thereunder during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

The company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authorities
during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024.

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the competent authority in terms of sections 232 to 237 of the
Companies Act 2013 during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not surrendered or disclosed as income any transactions not
recorded in the books of accounts in the course of tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961).

During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed
funds or the share premium or kind of funds) except as disclosed as below, to any other person or entities, including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall;

i) directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate
beneficiaries) or

ii} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Details of funds advanced during the year 2024-25: (Rs. In lakhs)
Funds further loaned | Date of Fund | Party to whom fund given| Date of funds further
N i T Ay Bad / Invested loaned / Invested loaned
Nirmala Buildwell Pvt, Ltd 100 100 03.03.2025 [nvestment in NCD's 03.03.2025
Details of funds advanced during the year 2023-24: (Rs. In lakhs)
Date of Fund Date of funds further
Name of the Party Fund loaned  |Funds further loaned R Party to whom fund given 5 Touni
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not received any funds from any persons or entities including

foreign entities (Funding party) except as disclosed as below, with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
company shall

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party
(ultimate beneficiaries) or

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

Details of funds borrowed & advanced during the year 2024-25; (Rs. In lakhs)
Name of the Borrower Funds borrowed Funds Paid D.:':::,Z:nd Party to whom fund given| Date of funds advanced
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Details of funds borrowed & advanced during the year 2023-24: (Rs. In lakhs)
Name of the Borrower Funds borrowed Funds Paid D':ﬁ:::::"d Party to whom fund given| Date of funds advanced
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ind AS 16 - Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if
any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of the cost of an item of
property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, The
Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Ind AS 37-Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of Fulfilling a contract comprises
the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, and materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract), The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has
evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has received
Presidential assent on 28 September 2020 The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the effective date of the Code is yet
to be notified and final rules for quantifying the financial impact are also yet to be issued. In view of this, the Company will assess the impact
of the Code when relevant provisions are notified and will record related impact, if any, in the period the Code becomes effective,




NOTE 42 CSR Activities (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year. - 3.96
(b) Amount spent* durina the year on;
Y

Particulars In Cash " it: :;::a i Carry forwardto FY | Amount spend in FY

2025-26 2024-25 for FY 2023-24
(i) Construction/ Acquisition of any asset - . - -
(i) On purposes other than (i) above* - - NA 3.96

*Company has transferred the unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013 for which provision was made
in books of accounts in the FY 2023-24 in compliance with the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

NOTE 43 Events after the Reporting period
There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company operations.

NOTE 44 The Financial Statement are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs, except when otherwise stated. Previous
year figures have been regrouped, reclassified wherever considered necessary.

NOTE 45 Notes1 to 45 form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Radicura Infra Limited

For DUBEY & CO.
Chartered Accountants

(DEEPAK DUBEY) Ty & MAHIPATI SINGH
Prnpll'iﬂur /F::JG‘\ “ g "‘-;',' Director
Membership No.86349 b4 e / DIN 01712664

PLACE: NEW DELHI | " | NEW DELHL/-

DATE : 26.05.2025 A ;\\




Sudhir Sunil & Co.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Sunanda Infra Limited (Formerly Known As Sunanda Steel Company

Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Sunanda Infra Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at 31%' March 2025, the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Laoss, (statement of changes in equity) and the Standalone
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Standalone state of affairs of the
Company as at 31% March, 2025, the Profit and standalone total comprehensive income,

changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of

the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
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Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

on the standalone Financial Statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the standalone financial position, standalone
financial performance, (changes in equity) and standalone cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS & other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies are responsible for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for the safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation, and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to

do so.




The respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial

reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken based on these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has an adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

~® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the




standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion,

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the standalone
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance
of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the standalone

financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that
individually or in aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) evaluating the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

d.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for our audit of the aforesaid standalone
financial statement.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintain for the standalone financial statement.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind As
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

Based on the written representations received from the directors as of 31st March 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as of 31st
March 2025from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, In our opinion, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls were operating effectively
as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations as on the date of audited

Financial Statements.
(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts

including derivative contracts



(iii) There were no amounts that were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,

(v)

other than as disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("intermediaries”), with the understating, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the company from any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understating, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under A and B above, contain any
material misstatement.

Based on our examination carried out which included test checks the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year end March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our examination we did not

come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit



trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for

record retention.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 2 and 4 of the Order.

For Sudhir Sunil & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 08345N

V)ﬁ/‘/wﬁ:f\i\/ ‘ ‘ l:- L H
Mahima Kapoor 1 T

Partner
Membership No.: 514276

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26 -05 -2025
UDIN: 25514276BMMHXE7725



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Sunanda Infra Limited (“the
Company”) (Formerly Known As Sunanda Steel Company Limited) on the standalone financial
statements for the year ended on 31st March 2025. We report that:

a)
b)

c)

d)

e)

. d)

In Respect of Tangible and Intangible assets
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment.
Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; No material discrepancies were noticed through such verification.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, all the title deeds of all immovable property
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company.
According to the information and explanations are given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no revaluation of Property, Plant
and Equipment and Intangible assets were made during the year.
No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder.

In Respect of inventory and warking capital.
Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management; No material discrepancies were noticed

during such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of Order is not applicable
to the company.

Loans are given by Company

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, or other parties covered in the Register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The company has not granted loans to its associate Company.

The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
the repayments or receipts are regular.

In respect of loans granted by the company, there is no due amount remaining for more
than 90 days.




e) No loan granted by the company which fallen due during the year, has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over-dues of existing loans given to the same
parties.

f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the
year. Hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

iv. Loans, investments, guarantees, and security under sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013
In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of
loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, provisions of section 185
are not applicable to the Company.

v. Compliance under sections 73 to 76 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder while accepting Deposits
The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the provisions of
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 with regard to deposits from the public
is not applicable in the current year. Thus, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

vi.  Maintenance of cost records
The provisions of maintenance of cost records under sub-section (I) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

vii.  Statutory Dues

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, Income Tax, Cess, Goods and Service Tax, and other material statutory
dues applicable to it and there were no arrears as of 31st March 2025 for more than six
months from the date they became payable.

b) There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, goods and service
tax, or cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. Thus,
paragraph 3(vii) (b) is not applicable to the Company.

viii. Unrecorded Income
According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records, there are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account



Xi.

xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Thus, paragraph 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Default in repayment of Loans and borrowings taken from banks or financial institutions
According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records, the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial
institution, banks, and government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

Utilisation of IPO and Further Public Offer

The Company did not raise any money by way of an initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3 (x) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Reporting of Fraud during the year and Whistle Blower

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during our
audit. There is no receipt of whistle-blower complaints.

Compliance by Nidhi Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Related party compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act - 2013
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
comply with the provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards. However, provisions of section 177 are
not applicable to the Company.

Internal audit system

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has an Internal Audit System for its size and
business activities.

Non Cash Transactions
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions



Xvi.

Xvii,

xviii.

Xix.

XX,

with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable,

Requirement of Registration under 45-1A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934,

Cash Losses
The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and the immediately
preceding financial year.

Resignation by Statutory auditor
The Statutory auditors remain same during the year.

Material Uncertainty

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, no material uncertainty exists as of the date of the audit
report, and in our opinion that the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within 1 year from the balance
sheet date.

Transfer of Funds specified under Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not transferred any unspent amount to
a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act within six months of the expiry of
the financial year in compliance with the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135
of the said Act. Therefore, paragraph 3(xx) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

For Sudhir Sunil & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 08345N

Partner
Membership No.: 514276

Place: New Delhi
Date: 26 -05 -2025
UDIN: 25514276BMMHXE7725



SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209PB2007PLC045882)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
2 As at As at
Fasimi e 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
L. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipments 1 0.47 0.86
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 2 100.00 21.14
(ii) Loans 3 - 14.71
(iii) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 90.78 94.96
191.25 131.67
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 2,105.64 2,105.64
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6 71.92 182.87
(ii) Loans 7 - 6.99
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 8 72.04 12.56
(v) Bank Balances other than i) above 9 27.00 27.00
(vi) Other Financial Assets 10 0.15 0.29
(c) Other Current Assets 11 0.51 0.67
(d) Income tax assets (net) 12 3.21 1.55
2,280.47 2,337.57
Total Assets 2,471.72 2,469.24
=
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 5.00 5.00
(b) Others Equity 14 6.85 5.08
11.85 10.08
Liabilities
(2) Non Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 15 0.43 0.21
0.43 0.21
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 16 1,953.90 1,953.90
(ii) Trade payables 17 5.29 4.75
(iii) Other financial liabilities 18 500.00 500.00
(b) Other current liabilities 19 0.14 0.14
(c) Provisions 20 0.11 0.16
2,459.44 2,458.95
Total Equity & Liabilities 2,471.72 2,469.24
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1to43

As per our attached report of even date

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.

Chartered Accountants
FRN. 8345N

- oK,

Partner
Membership No.514276

PLACE: NEW DELHI g
DATED: 26.05.2025

Director
IN 00014236

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Sunanda

Infra Limited

Y AR

MAHIPATI SINGH
Director
DIN 01712664
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SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209FB2007FLC045882)
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the year
Particulars Note ended Yoz the year ended
31st March, 2024
31st March, 2025
Continuing Operations
Revenue From Operations al - -
Other Income 2 3239 26.38
Total Income (I) 3239 26.38
Expenses
Employee Benefit Expenses 23 9133 5.84
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 1 0.39 0.21
Other expenses 24 15,80 2.08
Total Expenses (II) 25.52 8.13
Profit / (loss) before Tax (I) - (II) 6.87 18.25
Tax expense:
(1) Current Income Tax 223 412
(2) Deferred Tax (0.05) -
(3) Income Tax of Previous Years 292 =
Profit/ (loss) for the year
from Continuing Operations (III) ) 1.77 1413

Discontinuing Operations
Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued Operations
Tax Income /(Expense) of discontinuing operations

Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued Operations (after tax)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (I'V) 1.77 14.13
Other Comprehensive Income

A, (i) Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
B. (i) [tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(V) Other Comprehensive Income for the year
(VI) Total Comprechensive Income for the year 1.77 14.13

Earning per share for continuing operations [face value of Share Re. 1/-each]
(Previous Year Re. 1/- each)

(i) Basic

Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 26 0.35 2.83
(ii) Diluted

Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 0.35 2.83
Summary of significant accounting policies I

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1to 43

As per our attached report of even date

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants \ Sunanda Infra Limited
FRN. 8345N

lS” L

MAHIPATI SINGH
Director
DIN 01712664

(MAHIMA KAFOO I$ . MIT JAIN

Partner Director
Membership No.514276 DIN 00014236

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 26.05.2025 ‘j



SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209PB2007PLC045882)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March' 2025

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

A) Cash flow from operating activities

Net Operating profit before tax and extra ordinary items
Adjustments for:-

Depreciation

Dividend Income

Unrealized gain on Mutual funds

Profit on redemption on Mutual funds

Other Income

039
(0.00)

(6.11)
(26.22)

6.87

(31.99)

18.25

0.21
(0.00)
(343)

(2284) (26.08)

Operating profit before working capital changes
(Increase) / Decrease in Non current - Loans
(Increase) / Decrease in current - Loans

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivable

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables

Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions

Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilites

14.71
6.99
0.13
0.15

0.54
0.17
0.00

(25.07)

2270

(7.83)
(14.71)

54.63

(0.29)

180

0.20

057

037

0.00 1257

Cash generated from operations

Net direct taxes paid

Net cash from Operating Activities
B) Cash flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including
capital work in progress, intangible under development & capital advances)
Redemption / (Investment) made in MF/other investments (net)

Profit on redemption on Mutual funds

Other Income

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash from operating and investing activities
C) Cash flow from financing activities

Fresh loan taken

Repayment of loan

Dividend Paid

Interest paid

Net cash from financing activities

Net cash from operating, investing & financial activities
Net increase in cash & cash equivalant

Opening balance of cash & cash equivalant

Closing balance of cash & cash equivalant

(2.37)
263
{5.00)

64.48
59.48

59.48
59.48
39.56
99.04

34.74
2.50
3224

(1.07)
(#4.29)

2284
(22.52)
972

972
972

29.84

39.56 |

Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement compr
i) Cash balance in Hand
ii)  Balance with Banks;

a) In Current Accounts

b) In Fixed Deposits

Total

ise of the following:-

0.02

7202
27.00

99.04

0.02

12.54
27.00

39.56

As per our report of even date

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 8345N

v bogos,

(MAHIMA KAPOOR)
Partner
Membership No.514276

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 26.05.2025

DIN 00014236

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Sunanda Infra Limited

MAHIPATI SINGH

Director
DIN 01712664
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SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209PB2007PLC045882)
Summary of Significant Accounting Poleies for the year ended 315t March, 2025

Background

Sunanda Infra Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Radhika Heights Limited. The main objects of the Company is to carry on business of acquisition,
construction and development of projects, townships, built-up infrastructure, housing, commercial premises, hotels, resorts, hospital, educational institution,
recreational facilities, city and regional level infrastructure and other allied works including to acquire by purchase, lease exchange, rent or otherwise deal in
land buildings and in real estates of all kinds.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting palicies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements, These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

- certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured al fair value (refer accounting policies regarding financial
instruments)

Use of Estimates & Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, labilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

i)Income taxes: The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India, Significant management judgement is required 1o determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

ii)Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, labilities, disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the
Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns etc.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
-Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of
products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between the aquisition of the assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalent, the Company has

determined its operating cycle as 48 months for real estate projects and 12 montths for others for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and non current,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase
price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working, condition for its intended use and borrowing Costs attributable to construction of qualifying,
asset, upto the date assset is ready for its intended use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price,

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrving amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Derecoginition

Anitem of Property, Plant & Equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from the use. Any gains and losses on

disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of @roperty, Plant and
Equipment and are recognised net within “Other income;/ Other expenses” in the Statement of Profit and Loss, - -




iii)

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the Written Down Value Method (WDV) over the estimated useful lives of the assets considering the nature, estimated usage,
operating conditions, history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support. Considering these factors,
the Company has decided to apply the useful life for various categories of property, plant & equipment, which are as prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Act.
Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

5. Useful
No Type of Assets Life in
: Years
a) |Buildings = Non-Factory buiidinE 60
b) ]_Plant and machinery (including Electrical fittings) 15
¢) |office equipment 5
d) [Furniture and fixtures 10
e) |Vehicles B
f) |Computers Equipment 3.5
| B) |Software 3

The useful lives are reviewed at least at each year end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change in accounting estimate.
Leased assets and leaschold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease or the estimated useful life whichever is lower,
Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for ils intended use,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted

prospectively, if appropriate,

Financial Instruments

a) Financial Assets
Financial assets comprise - Cash and cash equivalents and other eligible assets,

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value except trade recievables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the
financial assets, Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement:

-Financial Assets measured at amortised cost: Financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest

(SPPI) on principal amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (EIR) method.

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets, These
financial assets are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss, The EIR amortisation is recognised as

finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Financial assets held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting, the contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payment towards principal and interest (SPPI) on principal oulstanding are subsequently measured at FVTOCI, Fair value movements in
financial assets at FVTOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain loss in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recagnised in OC is reclassified

from equity to profit and loss, Interest eamed is recognised under the expected interest rate (EIR) model.

-Equity instruments other than investment in associates: Equity instruments held for trading are classified at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). For
other equity instruments the Company classifies the same as at FVTOCI, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. Fair value changes

on equity instruments at FYTOCI, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCT).

- Financial assets at fair value through fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): Financial assets are measured at FVTPL if is does not meet the criteria for
classification as measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, Fair value changes are recognised in Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Derecognition of financial assets:

Financial assets are derecopgnised when the cantractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or the financial asset is transferred and the
transfer qualified for derecognition. On derecognition of financial asset in its entirety the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date of
derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liabilily assumed) shall be recognised in Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

Trade receivables, contract assets, receivables under Ind AS 109 are tested for impairment based on the expected credit losses (ECL) for the respective financial
asset. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, The

approach followed by the company for recognising, the impairment loss is given below:

1) Trade receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The expected credit losses over lifetime of the asset are estimated by ndupliﬁg the simplified

approach using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current condition and forecasts of future economic conditions,

2) Other financial assets

For recopnition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL issued. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument imprnv;s.‘u%hﬁw is no longer a significant

increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowanCe

?
Qb

]

onth ECL,

5
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Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables and other eligible liabilities.

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Any transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities (except financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value of financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: The Company has classified the following under amortised cost:
a) Trade payables
b) Other financial liabilities
Amortised cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount.

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied,

Far trade and other pavables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet Date are carried at a value which is approximately equal to fair value due to the
short maturily of these instuments,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability shall be derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net hasis or realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

The Company determines the classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are categorised as equity instruments at FVTOCT and financial assets or financial liabilities that are specifically designated at FVTPL, For
financial assets, which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the
business mode] are expected to be infrequent. The management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company's operations, A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the
first day of immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifving asset are capitalised as part of the cost of thal asset.
Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. To the extent the Company borrows funds generally and uses them
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company determines the amount of borrowings costs eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization
rate to the expenditure incurred on such asset. The capitalization rate is determined based on the weighted average of borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Company which are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The
amount of barrowing costs that the Company capitalizes during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing costs incurred during that period.

Impalrment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment, If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of ils value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assels that generates cash inflows from the continuing use that are largely independent of cash inflows of other assets or group of assets (the cash generating
unit).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses are recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or group of units on a pro rata basis.

Reversal of impairment loss
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized directly in other comprehensive income and presented within equity.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of Inventory( Stock In Trade) represents cost of land and all gxpenditure incurred in
connection with, -

\
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Provisions and Contingencies

A provision arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc, is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current management estimates,
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the enterprise. When there is a possible obligation or
present obligation where the likelihood of an outflow is remote, no disclosure or provision is made,

A contingent asset is a possible assel that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

When some or all of the economic benefits required Lo settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset,
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

The company does not recognize a contingent liability but disclosed its existence in the financial statements.

Income Taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable
income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date and applicable for the period. The Company offaets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheel approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill or an asset or lability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss al the
time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Minimum Alternate Taxes

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) is payable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular
Income tax payable in subsequent years. MAT paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax, The Company recognises MAT credit
available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during, the specified period i.e the period
for which MAT eredit is allowed to be carried forward, MAT credit is recognised as an asset and is shown as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’. The Company reviews
the "MAT Credit Entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and write down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will
pay normal tax during the specified period.

Foreign Currency Translations
Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Sunanda Infra Limited’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency iransactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year
end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

As a Lessee:
a) Classification of Lease

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assels. The assessment of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not limited to, the
transfer of ownership of the leased assel at the end of the lease term, the lessee’s oplion to extend/ purchase etc.

b} Recognition and initial measurement

At the lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease lability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at
cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incenlives received).

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases (twelve month or less period) and leases of low-value assets using practical expedients. Instead of
recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in a standalone statement of profit and loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. \/

¢) Subsequent measurement

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assels on a straight-line basis from the lease commenceme
of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use gsset ip\r impai
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As a Lessor:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income
from the operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, except when the lease rentals, increase are in line with the
general inflation index. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from
lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

Revenue Recoginition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Income from Services - Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Interest Income: Interest income is recognized as it accrues in Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method,

Dividend income - Revenue is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established at the balance sheet date. Dividend income is
included under the head “Other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Eamnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS
and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

Segment reporting
Business segment: The segmental reporting disclosures as required under Ind AS = 108 are not required, as there are no reportable business segments,




SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209PB2007PLC045882)
Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2025

A. Equity Share Capital
(1) Current reporting period

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Opening Balance as at 1st April 2024

Changes in equity | Balance as at
share capital during 31st
the current year March'2025

5.00

- 5.00

(2) Previous reporting period

Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2023

Changes in equity | Balance as at
share capital during 31st
the previous year March'2024

5.00

- 5.00

B. Other Equity
(1) Financial Year 2024-25

Particulars

M et Reserve and Surplus

Compound Financial
instruments

Capital

Retal —
Bokestia etained Earnings

Total

Balance as at 1st April, 2024
Changes in accounting policy/prior
period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the
current reporting period

Total Compreh ensive Income for the
current year

Dividends

Transfer to retained earnings
Adjustment on account of Preference
Shares

Any other change (to be specified)

= = 5.08

5.08

As at 31st March' 2025

(2) Financial Year 2023-24

Particulars

Bty Colpanut ol Reserve and Surplus

Compound Financial 5
{natriiments Capital

. Retained Earnings

Total

Balance as at 1st April, 2023
Changes in accounting policy/ prior
period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the
previous reporting period

Total Comprehensive Income for the
previous year

Dividends

Transfer to retained earnings
Adjustment on account of Preference
Shares

Any other change (Share [ssue Expenses)

z : ©.05)

(9.05)

As at 31st March'2024

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 8345N

p
]
AHIMA KAPOOR

Partner
Membership No.514276

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 26.05.2025

//

MIf JAIN
Director
DIN 00014236

W,Mf'

MAHIPATI SINGH

Director

DIN 01712664
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SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN U13209PB2007PLC045882)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Property, Plant and Equipment
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Description Furniture & Fixtures D-ffice Total
Equipment
Gross carrying value
As at April 1, 2023 - -
Additions 1.07 1.07
Disposals * .
Adjustments - -
Exchange differences - -
As at March 31, 2024 1.07 1.07
Additions Z &
Disposals - -
Adjustments -
Exchange differences 2
As at March 31, 2025 1.07 1.07
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2023 - -
Charge for the year 0.21 0.21
Deduction during the year 3 :
Exchange differences . .
As at March 31, 2024 0.21 0.21
Charge for the year 0.39 0.39
Disposals .
Exchange differences a .
As at March 31, 2025 0.60 0.60
Net block as at March 31, 2024 0.86 0.86
Net block as at March 31, 2025 0.47 0.47
) AN q g '
" L= B |
) Q 2)
& \:fp - _,/%ff
e Tk




SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209PB2007PLCO45882)
Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 318t March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As ot As
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
2 Investments (non-current)
SDI (unquoted):
Nil units @ Rs. 10,00,000 each of PIRG SDI 3 15,109% TRUST SERTES 1 (Previous Year 10 units) ' 2l
NCD (unquoted):
100 NCD's @ Rs. 1,00,000 each of Cassa grand (Previous Year Nil NCD's) 100.00 -
100.00 Z1.14
3  Loans (non-current)
Loan to parties
i) Unsecured, considered good to related parties - -
ii) Unsecured, considered good to others » 14.71
& 14.71
4 Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Deferred Tax Liabllities arising on account of
Property, plant and equipment 0.09 -
Others 0.14 -
Total Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) 0.05 i
Add: MAT Credit Entitlement 94.96 96.03
Less: Tax adjusted with MAT credit 4.23 1.07
Add: MAT credit entitlement - -
90.78 94.96
5 Inventories
(Valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)
Stock In Trade 2,105.64 2,105.64
2,105.64 2,105.64
6 Investments (current)
Quoted Mutual Funds
(At Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
Kotak Saving Funds - Growth (Regular Plan) 170,816.69 Units
(Previous Year 34,591.13 units) 7191 1358
Nippon India ETF Liquid Bees 1.19 Units (Previous Year 1.134 Units) 0.01 0.01
HDFC Liquid Fund - Growth (Regular Plan) Nil Units (Previous vear 70,696 Unils) - 3442
Kotak Liquid Fund - Growth (Regular Plan) Nil units (Previous yar 1,368,713 units) - 66.24
SD1 (unquoted):
NI Units of FIRG SD1 3 15.109% TRUST SERIES 1 (Previous Year 10 units) - 38.90
NCD (unquoted):
Nil NCD's of Adisesh Developers Pvi. Lid. (Previous Year 50 NCD's) - 2072
71.92 182.87
7 Loans (current)
Loan to related parties
i) Unsecured, considered good “ #
Loan to others
ii) Unsecured, considered good - 699
- 6.99
8 Cash and Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank 7202 12,54
b) Cash in Hand 0.02 0.02
72.04 12.56
9 Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank
- FI2 for 12 months 27.00 27.00
27.00 27.00
10 Other Current Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to Others 0.05 0.19
Security Deposit 0.10 0.10
0.15 0.29
11 Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses 033 0.44
Interest accured and due on Loan - .
Interest accured but not due on Loan - -
Interest accured but not due on FDR 0.18 0.23
0.51 0.67
12 Income Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Income Tax 431 4.59
Less: Provision for Income Tax 1.10 3.05
3.21 1.55




SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209PB2007PLC045882)

Nates to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at An at
13 Share Capital March 31,2025 March 31,2024
a. Authorised
1,000,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 10.00 10.00

(Previous Year 1,000,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each)

b. Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Shares
500,000 (Previous Year 500,000) Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid-up 5,00 5.00

Total Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Share Capital 5.00 5.00

¢. Terms /rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Re.1/- per share. Each holder of equily shares is entitled to one vote per share, The dividend declared,
if any is payable in Indian rupees. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual General Meeting,
The board has not proposed any dividend for current year and previous year.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts including preference shares. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the t

ginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
In Nos, (Rs. In Lakhs) In Nos. (Rs. In Lakhs)
At the beginning of the year 5,00,000 5.00 5,00,000 5.00
Add : Issued during the yéar ending - - - .
Qutstanding at the end of the Year 5,00,000 5.00 5,00,000 5.00
. Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 315t March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
% holding in th 9
In Nos, Ll Cl.':fn s In Nos. - Mlg::f:“ e

Equity shares of Re,1/- each fully paid
= Radhika Heights Limited (Holding Company) 499,99 99.99% 4,99,994 99.99%
(0 shares are held by nominees of Radhika Heights Limited)

f. Promoler’s Shareholding

As at 31st March, 2025 As al 31st March, 2024
In Nos. In Nos. % Change
% Change during the during

Promoter's name Yoof total shares year** “of total shares |the year**
Radhika Heights Limited 4,99,994 99.99% 0.00% 4,99,994 99,99% 0.00%
% Shares held by holding company and/or their subsidiaries/ associates As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Equity Shares held by holding company are as below:
= Radhika Hl_'igh(; Limited (Hulﬂing Cumpany) 4,99,994 4,99,994

S1%




SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209PB2007PLC045882)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
14 Other Equity
Retained Earnings
Opening balance 5.08 (9.05)
Add: Net profit/(loss) for the current year 1.77 14.13
Profit available for appropriation 6.85 5.08
Less : Appropriations g N
Closing balance 6.85 5.08
Total Reserves and Surplus 6.85 5.08
15 Non Current provisions
Provision for Grauity 0.43 0.21
0.43 0.21
16 Current Borrowings
Loans from Related Parties
Unsecured borrowings from holding Company
- Radhika Heights Limited 1,953.90 1,953.90
The above borrowing is repayable on demand
1,953.90 1,953.90
Refer Note 33 for information about liquidity risk & Marketing Risk of current borrowings.
17 Trade Payables
Trade Payables (dues to micro and other small enterprises) - -
Trade Payables (dues to other than micro and other small enterprises)
- Related parties g &
- Others 5.29 4.75
5.29 4.75
Refer note 32 for informaton about aging schedule of trade payables
Refer Note 33 for information about liquidity risk & Marketing Risk of Trade Payables.
18 Other Current Financial liabilities
Security Deposit from others 500.00 500.00
500.00 500.00
Refer Note 33 for information about liquidity risk of Other Current Financial liabilities.
19 Other Current Liabilities
Salary Payable - -
Statutory dues
Statutory dues 0.03 0.03
EPF Payables 0.11 0.11
Total other liabilities 0.14 0.14
20 Provisions
Provision for Compensated Absences 0.11 0.16
011 0.16




SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209PB2007PLC045882)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended

Kadiculare 31st March, 2025  31st March, 2024
21 Revenue From Operation
Income from Rent - -
22 Other income
Interest income from Bank 1.93 1.49
Interest income from Others 4,98 13.79
Interest income from NCD's 19.31 6.56
Interest income from fellow subsidiary Co. - 1.00
Profit on redemption on Mutual fund /Investment (net) 6.11 -
Dividend Income 0.00 0.00
Unrealized Gain on Mutual fund - 345
Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.06 0.08
Excess provision written back 0.00 0.01
32.39 26.38
23 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries 8.63 544
Contribution to provident and other funds 0.70 0.40
Staff welfare expenses - -
9.33 5.84
24 Other expenses
Professional Charges 6.81 0.54
Business Promotions - 0.38
Auditor's Remuneration:-
- Statutory Audit Fee 0.30 0.30
- Tax return filing fee 0.06 0.06
Insurance Expenses 0.75 0.56
Fees & Taxes 0.01 0.07
Travelling & Conveyance 4.84 -
Bank Charges 0.01 0.01
Lease Rent 0.41 0.16
Membership & Subscription 0.00 -
Unrealized loss on Mutual fund (net) 2.61 -
15.80 2.08
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SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209FB2007F LC045882)
Naotes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

{Rs. In Lakhs)
As at Asat
NOTE 25 INCOME TAX March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
The income tax expense consists of the following :
Current tax expense for the current period 22 412
Current tax expense pertaining, to previous years 282 =
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit - 1.07
Deferred tax expense/ (benefit) (0,05) -
Total income tax 510 5.1%
Reconciliation of tax liability on book profit vis-2-vis actual tax liability
Profit before income taxes 687 18.25
Enacted Tax Rate 00m% 2782%
Computed Tax Expense 2.06 5.08
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed (D.96) (0.56)
Tax effect of expenses that are not dedcutible for tax = &
Tax effect due to non taxable income 0 %
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit 113 1.07
Previnusl_y unn.'.fusnj:ﬂ:d tax losses used to reduce current tax expense z L
Other Temporary Differences 2,87 'z
Total income tax expense 5.10 519
As al As at
NOTE 26 E:nl:lnsl Per Share March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit/ (loss) attributable o shareholders 1.77 14.13
Weighted average number of equity shares 5.00 5.00
Nominal value per equity share 1 1
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted i o
for the effect of dilution i s -
Earnings per equity share 0.35 283
Basic 035 283
Diluted
NOTE 27 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS At At
’ i March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(A) Contingent liabilities b
I Income Tax Nil Nil
Il Other Legal Cases Nil Nil
(B) Capital and other commitments
d amount of contracts ¢ g to be executed on capital account, nel of advances and not provided in the books are as fallows:
Particulars Asnat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment Nil Nil
NOTE 28 LEASES
In case of agsels taken on lease
Operating Leases:
Company has taken premises admeasuring 60 sq ft. approx. at Commercial SCO no.71, First Floor, Royal Estate Complex Zirakpur, Sub Tehsil, Zirkpur, 5.A 5. Nagar (Punjab), under the ope
agreement for its registered office. These are generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms,
During, the financial year, Company has taken premises admeasuring 50 sq.ft. approx, situated at 7th Floor, DCM Building, 16 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi « 110001 from its Ultimate Hol
(Ravinder Heights Lid) on operating lease agreement for using its corporate office. These are generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms,
The total of payments under operating lease is as under:
Particulars Asal As at
March 31, 2025 |March 31, 2024
Lease payments for the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.17 016 |
NOTE 29 MSME
Based on the information available with the company, there are na dues as at March 31, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 payable to enterprises covered under " Micro Small and Medium Enterpri:
Development Act, 2006, No Interest is paid/ payable by the company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
NOTE 30 Related Party Disclosure
As required by Indian Accounting Standard -24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:
4} MNames of Related Parties and Nature of Related Party Relationship:
i) Ultimate Holding Company
Ravinder Heights Limited (Holding Company of RHL)
ii) Ilpld.lnﬁ Cumpuny
Radhika Heights Limited (RHL)
iii) Other Subsidiaries of Radhika Helghts Limited { Fellow Subsidiaries) g

Radicura Infra Limited

Cabana Construction Private Limited

Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited

Mirmala C')rganir Frams & Resorts Private Limited

iv) Key Management Personnel (KMP) / Directors
Mrs. Sunanda Jain, Director
Mr. Sumit Jain, Director
Mr. Mahipai Singh, Director
Mrs. Radhika Jain , Director
Mr. Arun Kumar Singh , Director
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NOTE 32

SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209PB2007PLC045882)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

NOTE 31 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

A. Financial Instruments by category and hierarchy
i Financial Instruments by Category
The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Carrying Amount
Financial Instraments at fair value through Profit or Loss
Investments 171,92 114.26
Total 171.92 114.26
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 72.04 12.56
(ii) Bank Balances other than i) above 27.00 27.00
Total Financial Assets 99.04 39.56
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
(i) Borrowings 1,953.90 1,953.90
(ii) Trade payables 529 4.75
(iii) Other financial liabilities 500.00 500.00
Total Financial Liabilities — 2459.19 2,458.65 |

Note: The Company has disclosed financial instruments such as investment in equity instrument, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets,
trade payables and other financial liabilities at carrying value because their carrying amounts represents the best estimate of the fair values.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptons were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair Value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other current receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities and other financial instruments

approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments,

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:
Level 1: Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: Technigues which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair value.
Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments includes:

(a) the use of net asset value (NAV) for mutual funds on the basis of the statement received from investee party,
(b) the use of adjusted net asset value method for certain equity investments because the amount of investment is not material and management is

not expected significant changes in fair value of investment.

st March'2025 (Rs. In Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year ycﬂ s
(i) MSME - - - ; 5 <
(ii) Others 0.38 0.81 E i 410 5.20
(iii) Disputed dues = MSME - - - - - -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Trade Payables agi h n March'2024 (Rs. In Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
(i) MSME . i z = ; =
{ii) Others 055 0 . = 410 4.75
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME ? z : 3 = =
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -




SUNANDA INFRA LIMITED
(CIN: U13209PB2007PLC045882)

Notes to financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

"NOTE 33 Financial Risk Management

A,

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company’s financial risk management
policy is set by the Managing Board. The financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies on risk
management. Key financial risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board of directors of the Company.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial instrument. The value of
a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, equity prices and other market changes that may effect market sensitivity
instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, loans and borrowings.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. In order
to balance the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest rate risk, management performs a
comprehensive interest rate risk management, The Company has no interest bearing borrowings hence it is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at
the respective reporting dates. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate
because of change in market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk
The Company has operations in India only hence Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is nil,

Price Risk

Price risk arises from exposure to equity securities prices from investments held by the Company. The Company does not have any investments in equity
shares.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to financial loss, Credit risk arises from trade
receivables and other financial assets.

Trade Receivables
There are no trade receivables in the Company as at reporting date.

Other Financial Assets
There are no other Financial Assets in the Company as at reporting date.

Provision for Expected Credit losses
Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no credit risk to the Company.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when they are due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows, The Company takes into
account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below provide details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at reporting date based on contractual undiscounted
payments,

(3. In Lakhs)
As at Less than 1 year/
31-Mar-25 ©On Demand 1-2years = d years More than 3 years
Current
(i) Borrowings 1,953,90 3
(ii) Trade payables 529 N
(iif) Other financial liabilities 500.00 =
Total 2,459.19 =
Asat Less than 1 year/
31-Mar-24 On Demm,lr d 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years
Current
(i) Borrowings 1,953.90 o
(ii) Trade payables 4,75 .
(iii) Other financial liabilities 500.00 -

Total

2,458,65




NOTE 34 Ratios

NOTE

NOTE

NOTE

NOTE

NOTE

37

39

Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, alongwith
detailed explanations thereof, including;

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change in % Reason

(a) Current Ratio 0.93 0.95 ~2.46% NA
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio 164.867 193.744 -14.91% NA
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio NA NA 0.00% NA
(d) Return on Equity Ratio 0.35 283 -87.48% Due to decrease in net profit
(e) Inventory turnover ratio NA NA 0.00% NA

Trade Receivables turnover ratio NA NA 0.00% NA
(2) Trade payables turnover rafio 315 0.47 574.60% Due to Increase in expenditures
(h) Net capital turnover ratio (0.18) {0.22) -16.74% NA
(1) Net profit ratio 5.46% 53.56% -89.80% Due to decrease in revenue from

SR operation

J A 55.98% 177.28% -68.43% Due to decrease in revenue &
(j) Return on Capital employed increase in expenditures
(k) Return on investment 5.77% 6.68% -13.64% NA

Capital Risk Management

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently 5o as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to shareholders. The
capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day
needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain

creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. There in no change in the Company capital structure since
previous year.

Revenue from Contracts with Customer

Ind AS 115 Revenue with Contracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018, replaces existing revenue
recognition requirements. Under the modified retrospective approach there were no adjustments required to the retained earnings as at April 1, 2018,
Application of Ind AS 115 did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial results.

Segment Reporting

The Company is a one segment company in the business of real estate development and leasing. All its operations are located in India , accordingly, the
Company views these activities as one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting.

Radhika Heights Limited along with its four wholly owned subsidiaries, i.e. Radicura Infra Limited, Cabana Construction Private Limited, Nirmala Buildwell
Private Limited and Sunanda Infra Limited had entered into a Collaboration Agreement with Bestech India Pvt. Ltd. (Developer) for its land situated in Sector
89A, Gurgaon for affordable plotted colony project under Deen Dayal Jan Awas Yojna from DTCP Haryana.

Thereafter, the project has obtained two licenses from Directorate of Town and Country Planning, Haryana on 17.09.2021 for 12,3812 acres of Land and
08.10.2021 for 39.43125 acres of Land. [n 2023, RERA certificates have been received for the aforesaid projects and the development work is in process.

Notes on Amendment in Schedule III and relating to other disclosures required to be made in Financial Statements:

The company does not have any transaction with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act
1956 during the year ended March 31" 2025 and March 31" 2024,

There was no charges or satisfaction which were requried to registered with the registrar of companies during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st
2024.

The company complies with the number of layers of companies in accordance with clause B7 of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of layers) rules 2017 during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024.

The company has not invested or traded in cryptocurrency or virtual currency during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024.

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding Benami property under the Prohibition of Benami FProperty
Transaction Act 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formally the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder during the year
ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

The company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authorities during the year
ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024.

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the competent authority in terms of sections 232 to 237 of the Companies Act 2013
during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not surrendered or disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the
books of accounts in the course of tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income
Tax Act 1961).




NOTE

NOTE

NOTE

NOTE

i During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or the share

premium or kind of funds) except as disclosed as below, to any other person or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall:

i) directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries)

or
i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,
Details of funds advanced during the year 2024-25: (Rs. In lakhs)
Funds further Date of funds further
Name of the Party Fund loaned i d Date of Fund loaned Party to whom fund given loaned
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Details of funds advanced during the year 2023-23: (Rs. In lakhs)
Namie of the Party Fund loaned F““':::' 4 Date of Fund loaned Party to whom fund given Date ofll;‘:::: further
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

i During, the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not received any funds from any persons or entities including foreign entities

(Funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate
beneficiaries) or

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Details of funds borrowed & advanced during the year 2024-25: (Rs. In lakhs)
Name of the Borrower Funds borrowed Funds Paid Date of Fund recelved Party to whom fund given D:‘:vzrli::d’

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Details of funds borrowed & advanced during the year 2023-24: {Rs. In lakhs)
Name of the Borrower Funds borrowed Funds Paid Date of Fund received Party to whom fund given D:t:v':';:;:zd”

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ind AS 16 - Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not
be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of the cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment,
The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and
there is no impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Ind AS 37-Frovisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the ‘costs that
relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct
labour, and materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periads beginning on
or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material.

40 The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has received Presidential assent
on 28 September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India, However, the effective date of the Code is yet to be notified and final rules for
quantifying the financial impact are also yet to be issued. In view of this, the Company will assess the impact of the Code when relevant provisions are
notified and will record related impact, if any, in the period the Code becomes effective.

41 Events after the Reporting period
There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company operations,

42 The Financial Statement are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs, except when otherwise stated. Previous year figures have
been regrouped, reclassified wherever considered necessary.

43 Notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these Standalone Finanelal Statements.

/ For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members of Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited

Report on standalone Ind AS financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Nirmala Buildwell Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025; the statement of profit
and loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (“collectively referred as financial statements”), which we have signed under
reference to this report.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133
of the Act, (*Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March 2025 and its profit/(loss), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the India accounting standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
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estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(i)  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(iiy  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

(iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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(vi) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of matter

1. Without qualifying our report, we draw attention to note no 12 of the financial statements which
indicates that the company incurred an accumulated loss of Rs. 138.19 lakhs upto the period ended on
31st March 2025, which is more than paid up capital of the company. These conditions indicate the

existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about company’s ability to continue
as a going coneern,

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matters.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure-A, a statement on the
matter specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act we report that;

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of cash flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;
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d)

e)

)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with the Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025, and taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2025, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such control, refer our separate report in “Annexure-B”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls.

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as
under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements. Refer note no. 28 to the financial statements.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the
question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to transfer any
sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums
does not arise.

iv)

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us-to believe that the representations

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided undf%ﬁo} mnd {[5) quve, contain any material
misstatement. "j'
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h) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which have the
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software systems, Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For AAGN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No - 027379N/N500115

NS

CA. Akanksha Mishra
Partner
Membership No.: 507853

UDIN : 25507853BMFX118092

Date : 26.05.2025
Place : New Delhi
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ANNEXURE “A” to Independent Auditor’s Report

Annexure referred to our report of even date to the members of Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited on the
accounts of the company for the year ended 3 st March 2025:;

(a)

(b)
(©
(d)

(e)

iii.

iv.

(a)
(b)

(c)

According to the information and explanation are given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records. We have obtained the confirmation of the physical existence of all assets through
management representation,

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment.

As represented by the management no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the

company for holding any Benami property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
and Rules made thereunder.

The Company is a real estate company and the project under construction has been disclosed under the
head inventories. The project under construction is situated at Village Harsaru and Hyatpur,
Gurugram, Haryana which is freehold land. The title deed of all the land is in favor of the company.
As represented by the management, the aforesaid land is under the control and custody of the
Company along with its title deed.

On the basis of the information and explained given to us, there is no working capital limit has been
obtained by the company from banks or financial institutions.

In our opinion and according to the information and explained given to us, the procedures of physical
verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the
size of the company and natures of its business.

In our opinion and according to the information and explained given to us, the company is generally
maintaining proper records of inventories. No material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification of stock by management as compared to books.

The Company has renewed the unsecured loan of Rs.120.00 lakhs to Mr. Angad Singh, secured loan
of Rs. 600.00 lakhs to Ashray Real Estate Developers (partnership firm). The unsecured loan
amounting to Rs. 4.35 lakh granted to Panacea life Sciences limited has been repaid by the company
during financial year 2024-25. The aforesaid loan of Rs. 720 lakhs were outstanding as on 31* March
2025.

As represented by management, Panacea life Sciences limited is a related party, whereas Ashray Real
Estate Developers & Mr. Angad Singh are not a related party.

the terms of the aforesaid loan agreement are not prejudicial to the company’s interest and schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts are
regular,

In our opinion and accordmg to information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted

any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or wnth?};rg‘_ cifying any
terms or period of repayment.
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(d) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties except disclosed
above.

V. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has made
investments of Rs. 16.32 lakhs made in quoted equity shares, Rs. 1.97 lakhs in mutual funds and Rs.
303.61 lakhs in non convertible debentures, during the financial year to which the provision of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are complied with.

vi. In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vii. As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by
the company.

viii, (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31st March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues outstanding on
account of any dispute.

iX. As informed to us, there was no transactions recorded in the books of account have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

X. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not
taken any loan either from banks, financial institutions or from the government and has not issued any
debentures.

xi. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (x) (a) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Xil. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the pmv;gw
clause 3 (x) (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented u
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Xiii. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not filed by the auditors.

Xiv, In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

XV. In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

XVi, The provisions related to internal audit are not applicable on the company and hence not commented
upon.
xvii. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

xviii. In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

xix. The company has incurred cash losses of Rs, 13.01 lakh in the current financial year and Rs. 73.82
lakh in the immediately preceding financial year.

XX. There was no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and hence not commented upon.

Xxi. On the basis of the financial ratios, aging and expected dates of realization of financial assets and

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, We are of the opinion that there no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date.

xxii, The provisions related to Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the company, hence not
commented upon.
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xxiii. The provisions related to the consolidated financial statements are not applicable to the company,
hence not commented upon.

For AAGN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No - 027379N/N500115

-‘:-‘ l [
CA. Akanksha Mishra

Partner
Membership No.: 507853

UDIN : 25507853BMFXI118092
Date : 26.05.2025

Place : New Delhi
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ANNEXURE “B” to Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of the
Companies Act’2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited
(“the Company™) as at 31st March 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those standards and
the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the

auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial reporting.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

assurance regardmg the reliability of financial rcportmg, and the preparation of financial statements
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records
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that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For AAGN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No - 027379N/N5001 /

CA. Akanksha MiShQ

Partner
Membership No.: 507853

UDIN : 25507853BMFXI18092

Date : 26.05.2025
Place : New Delhi
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, NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U55101PB2007PTC045914)
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
Farticylns Note 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
L. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipments 1 133.46 167.14
(b) Financial Assets =
(i) Investments 2 149.89 43.85
(ii) Loans 3 - -
283.35 210.99
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 4 2,956.65 2,956.65
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 153.73 35.99
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6 2315 19.98
(iii) Loans 7 720.00 724.35
(iv) Other Financial Assets 8 31.07 32.54
(¢) Other Current Assets 9 46.90 46.40
(d) Income tax assets (net) 10 12,28 10.85
3,943.78 3,826.76
Total Assets 4,227.13 4,037.75
I1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 1.00 1.00
(b) Others Equity 12 (158.19) (122.29)
(157.19) (121.29)
Liabilities
(2) Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 175.67 -
(b) Provisions 14 1.24 0.62
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 15 0.45 13.76
177.36 14.38
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(ii) Borrowings 16 3412.25 3,363.46
(ii) Trade Payables 17 278.27 27533
(iii) Other financial liabilities 18 512.64 500.59
(b) Other Current Liabilities 19 3.49 4.99
(c) Provisions 20 0.30 0.29
4,206.96 4,144.66
Total Equity & Liabilities 4,227.13 4,037.75
Summary of significant accounting policies I
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1to 44
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For AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
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Place : New Delhi
Dated: 26.05.2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited

Mahipati Singh
Director
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NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U55101PB2007PTC045914)
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Note

For the year ended
31st March, 2025

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

Continuing Operations
Revenue From Operations
Other Income

Total Income (I)

Expenses

Depreciation & Amortization
Emplovee benefits expense
Financial Cost

Other expenses

Total Expenses (II)

Profit / (loss) before Tax (I) - (II)

Tax expense:

(1) Current Income Tax

(2) Income Tax of Previous Years
(3) Deferred Tax

Profit / (loss) for the year

from Continuing Operations (III)

Discontinuing Operations
Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued Operations
Tax Income /(Expense) of discontinuing operations

Profit /(loss) for the year from discontinued Operations (after tax)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (IV)
Other Comprehensive Income
A, (i) Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or

loss
(V) Other Comprehensive Income for the year
(V1) Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Earning per share for continuing operations [face value of Share Re. 1/
each]

(Previous Year Re. 1/- each)

(i) Basic

Computed on the basis of total profit for the year
(ii) Diluted

Computed on the basis of total profit for the year

Summary of significant accounting policies

21

27

53.76
118.87

58.61
108.99

172.63

167.60

36.20
35.72
51.21
98.71

3745
21.26
47.70
172.46

278.87

(49.21)

(13.31)

(111.27)

(35.90)

(114.31)

(114.31)

(35.90)

(114.31)

(35.90)

(35.90)

(114.31)

(114.31)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date
For AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountanty’/'i \
FRN : 027379N/ N50E

CA. Akanksha Mishra =

1to 44

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited

mit Jain Mahipati Singh
l’al:tncr Director Director
Membership No. 507853 DIN 00014236 DIN 01712664

UDIN- 25567252BMF #11$04 2

Place ; New Delhi
Dated: 26.05.2025




NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U55101PB2007PTC045914)
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March'2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

: For the year en n
Racsain 30th Myarch;bi;d F;::thm::;,ezndzid
A) Cash flow from operating activities (49.21) (111.27)
Net Operating profit before tax and extra ordinary items
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation 36.20 3745
Profit on redemption of Mutual Fund / Equity (0.88) (4.94)
Unrealized (gain) / loss on equty funds / Mutual funds (1.39) (5.25)
Dividend Income (0.04) (0.00)
Interest Income from NCD's (9.80) (12.94)
Fianance Cost 51.21 47.70
Interest Income from Others (105.97) (30.67) (85.47) (23.43)
Operating profit before working capital changes (79.88) (134.70)
(Increase) / Decrease in non current Loans - 200,00
(Increase) / Decrease in current Loans 4.35 (493.03)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assels (0.50) (14.97)
(Increase) / Decrease in Current financial assets 1.47 12.54
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 294 0.52
Increase / (Decrease) in long term Provision 0.62 0.62
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities 12.05 (10.04)
Increase / (Decrease) in Short term Provision 0.01 0.29
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilites (1.50) 19.44 0.79) (304.85)
Cash generated from operations (60.44) (439.56)
Less: Net direct taxes paid 1.43 1.00
Net cash from Operating Activities (61.87) (440.56)
B) Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Tangible Assets (2.52) (24.44)
(Investment) / Repayment from NCIYs (net) (233.14) 93.75
(Investment) /Redemption made from Mutual/ Equity fund (net) 11.64 1294
Interest received 0.04 0.00
Interest received from NCD's 9.80 12.94
Interest received from others 105,97 8547
Sale of Tangible Assets - (108.21) - 180.66
Net cash used in investing activities (170.08) (259.90)
Net cash from operating and investing activities
C) Cash flow from financing activities
Loans taken from Holding Co's * 291.00
Loans taken from Associated Co's 225.00 -
Loans taken from Others - 16.00
(Repayment) of loan (0.54) 15.25
Interest paid (51.21) 173.25 (47.70) 274.55
Net cash from financing activities 317 14.65
Net cash from operating, investing & financial activities 317 14.65
Net increase in cash & cash equivalant 317 14.65
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalant 19.98 5.33
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalant 23.15 19.98
Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the following:-
i) Cash balance in Hand 0.03 0.03
ii) Balance with Banks:
a) In Current Accounts 2312 19.95
b) In Fixed Deposits - &
Total 23.15 19.98

As per our attached report of even date
For AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants 1
FRN : 027379N/ NSDOI?,S-:"" al
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CA. Akanksha Mié((rn\\\i::‘?'“)m ) /‘

Partner i
Membership No, 507853

UDIN- 9—55707%?5&#1"FMI$04 2

Place : New Delhi
Dated; 26.05.2025
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NIRMALA BUILDWELL FRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U55101PB2007PTC045914)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2025

A. Equity Share Capital

(1) Current reporting period

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Changes in
equity share
Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2024 | capital during Bal;ln:;:?zgglst
the current
year
1.00 - 1.00
(2) Previous reporting period
Changes in
equity share
Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2023 | capital during Bal;;‘:i:;;;:“t
the previous
yEB.I'
1.00 - 1.00
B. Other Equity
(1) Financial Year 2024-25
Equity Reserve and Surplus
Component of
; ; p
P L;:T;?: Capital Reserve Retained Earnings Tubnl
instruments
[Balance as at 1st April, 2024 - - (122729) (122.29)
period errors - - - £
current reporting period - - 5 .
current year = = - -
Dividends - - - i
Transfer to retained earnings - - (35.90) (35.90)
Shares - - - -
Any other change (to be specified) - - - -
As at 31st March' 2025 - - (158.79) (158.19)
(2) Financial Year 2023-24
Equity Reserve and Surplus
Component of
i C d Total
Fartienbng ;:'ﬁr;:l Capital Reserve Retained Earnings i
instruments
Balance as at 1st April, 2023 - - (7.98) (7.98)
period errors 5 > : -
previous reporting period - - - -
previous year - - - =
Dividends - - - -
Transfer to retained earnings - - (114.31) (114.31)
Shares - - - i
Any other change (Share Issue Expenses) - - - =
As at 31st March' 2024 = - {12229) (122.29)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For AAGN & Associates LLP Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited

Chartered Accouwﬂsﬁ_

CA. Akanksl;&hhbh:a

umit Jain Mabhipati Singh
iy P:rtn;.:]r 3 5}]753 Director Director
embership No. 50785 DIN 00014236 DIN 01712664
VDN - 25 RS BM AR Lo 2 g

Place ; New Delhi Y W
Dated: 26.05.2025



i)

a)

b)

d)

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: US5101 PB2007FTC045914)

Summary of Significant Accounting Folicies for the year ended March 31, 2025

Background

Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Radhika Heights Limited. The main objects of the Company is to carry on business of
acquisition, construction and development of projects, townships, built-up infrastructure, housing, commercial premises, hotels, resorts, hospital, educational
institution, recreational facilities, city and regional level infrastructure and other allied works including to acquire by purchase, lease exchange, rent or
otherwise deal in land buildings and in real estates of all kinds.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act,

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

- certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at fair value (refer accounting policies regarding financial
instruments)

Use of Estimates & Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in cunfmmiry with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected, In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

i)Income taxes: The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

ii)Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the
Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns etc,

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification,

An asset is treated as current when it is;
-Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating, cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cvcle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of
products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between the aquisition of the assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalent, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 48 months for real estate projects and 12 montths for others for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and non current.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulaled depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, The cost comprises ils purchase
price, directly attributable cost of bringing the assel to its working condition for its intended use and borrowing Costs attributable to construction of qualifying
asset, upto the date assset is ready for its intended use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent cosis

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Derecoginition

An item of Property, Plant & Equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from the use, Any gains and losses on
disposal of an item of Property, Flant and Equipment are determined by comparing, the proceeds from disposal with the carrving amount of Property, Flant and
Equipment and are recognised net within “Other income,/ Other expenses” in the Statement of Profit and Loss




iif)

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the Written Down Value Method (WDV) over the estimated useful lives of the assets considering the nature, estimated usage,
operating conditions, history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support. Considering these factors,
the Company has decided to apply the useful life for various categories of property, plant & equipment, which are as prescribed in Schedule I of the Act,
Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

5. Useful
N Type of Assets Life in
0. Years
a) |Buildings - Non-Factory buildings i 60
b) [Plant and machinery (including Electrical fittings) 15
¢) |Office equipment 5
d) |Furniture and fixtures 10
e) |Vehicles B
f) |[Computers Equipment 3-5
ﬂ Software 5

)

The useful lives are reviewed at least at each year end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change in accounting estimate,

Leased assets and leaschold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease or the estimated useful life whichever is lower,

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate,

Financial Instruments

Financial Assets
Financial assets comprise - Cash and cash equivalents and other eligible assets.

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value except trade recievables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the
financial asscts, Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e,, the date that the Company commils to purchase or sell the assel.

Subsequent Measurement:
-Financial Assets measured at amortised cost: Financial assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order ta collect

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest
(SPPI) en principal amount outstanding are measured at amortised cosl using effective interest rate (EIR) method.

They are presented as current assels, excepl for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting, date which are presented as non-current assels. These
financial assets are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. The EIR amortisation is recognised as
finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

= Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Financial assets held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting the contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assels give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payment towards principal and interest (SPPI) on principal outstanding are subsequently measured at FVTOCL, Fair value movements in
financial assets at FVTOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain loss in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit and loss, Interest earned is recognised under the expected interest rate (EIR) model,

<Equity instruments other than investment in associates; Equity instruments held for trading are classified at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). For
other equity instruments the Company classifies the same as at FYTOCL The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. Fair value changes
on equity instruments at FVTOCI, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive imcome (OCI).

- Financial assets at fair value through fair value through Profit or Loss (FYTFPL): Financial assets are measured at FVTPL if is does not meet the criteria for
classification as measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value changes are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss,

Derecognition of financial assets:

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or the financial asset |s transferred and the
transfer qualified for derecognition. On derecognition of financial asset in its entirety the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date of
derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) shall be recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss,

Impairment of financial assets:

Trade receivables, contract assets, receivables under Ind AS 109 are tested for impairment based on the expected credit losses (ECL) for the respective financial
asset. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, The
approach followed by the company for recognising the impairment loss is given below:

1) Trade receivables
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The expected credit losses over lifetime of the asset are estimated by adopting the simplified

approach using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current condition and forecasts of future economic conditions,

2) Other financial assets

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk

hag increased s{aﬂﬁqmlw ll;?qu ECL issued. If in :.ulmquvnl period, credit quaulv of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant

q_ﬁ?" odh%&w g /




iv)

v)

vi)

b) Financial liabilities:

<

d)

Financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables and other eligible liabilities.

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Any transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities (except financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value of financial liabilities,

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: The Company has classified the following under amortised cost:

a) Trade payables

b) Other financial labilities

Amortised cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method of any difference betw een that initial amount and the maturity amount.

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet Date are carried at a value which is approximately equal to fair value due to the
short maturity of these instuments,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability shall be derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

The Company determines the classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are categorised as equity instruments at FVTOC] and financial assets or financial liabilities that are specifically designated at FVTPL. For
financial assets, which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets, Changes to the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The management determines change in the business model ag a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity thal is
significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the
first day of immediately next reporting period following, the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other barrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. To the extent the Company borrows funds generally and uses them
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company determines the amount of borrowings costs eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization
rale to the expenditure incurred on such asset. The capitalization rate is determined based on the weighted average of borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Company which are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The
amount of borrowing costs that the Company capitalizes during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing, costs incurred during that period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset, For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assels that generates cash inflows from the continuing use that are largely independent of cash inflows of other assets or group of assets (the cash generating
unit),

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. [mpairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Impairment losses are recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrving
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or group of units on a pro rata basis,

Reversal of impairment loss
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized directly in other comprehensive income and presented within equity,

Inventories

[nventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of Inventory( Stock In Trade) represents cost of land and all expenditure incurred in
connection with.




vii)

ix)

X)

a)

b)

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc, is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current management estimates.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the enterprise. When there is a possible obligation or
present obligation where the likelihood of an outflow is remole, no disclosure or provision is made,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset,
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting i used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

The company does not recopnize a contingent liability but disclosed its existence in the financial statements.

Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income,

Current tax

Current tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable
income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assels and current tax labilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, excepl when the deferred tax arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the
time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Minimum Allernate Taxes

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) is pavable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular
income tax payable in subsequent years. MAT paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax, The Company recognises MAT credit
available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period i.e the period
for which MAT eredit is allowed to be carried forward. MAT credit is recognised as an asset and is shown as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’. The Company reviews
the ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and write down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will
pay normal tax during the specified period.

Foreign Currency Translations
Functional and P! tation C y

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary econemic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’), The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Radhika Heights Private Limited's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year
end exchangge rates are recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Where the Company Is the lessee

Right of use Assets and Lease Liabilities

a) Classification of Lease

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several faclors, including, but not limited to, the
transfer of ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the lessee’s option o extend/ purchase etc,

b) Recognition and initial measurement

At the lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at
cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease lability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases (twelve month or less period) and leases of low-value assets using practical expedients. Instead of
recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in a standalone statement of praofit and loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

f-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the eatlier of the end of the ugeful life of the right

;\*FHI-“A;; 15 exist, )
3\ W



xi)

xii)

i)

xiv)

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not t fer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income
from operating lease is recognized on the basis over the term of the relevant lease, except when the lease rentals, increase are in line with general inflation
index. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income, Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from
lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases, Finance lease income is allocated o accounting periods
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-lerm, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts,

Revenue Recoginition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured,

Rental Income - Leaes income on an operating lease 18 recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when due on the monthly basis.

Income from Services - Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement,

Interest Income: Interest income is recognized as it accrues in Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method.

Dividend income - Revenue is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established at the balance sheet date, Dividend income is
included under the head “Other income” in the statement of profit and loss,

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS
and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

Segment reporting
Business segment: The segmental reporting disclosures as required under Ind A5 = 108 are not required, as there are no reportable business segments,
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Property, Plant and Equipment

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U55101 PB2007PTC045914)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Description Plant & Machinery | Office Equipment Eg‘?;:ﬁ::::s Vehicles Total
Gross carrying value
As at April 1, 2023 185.00 15.91 6.77 - 207.68
Additions - 0.28 - 2416 2444
Disposals - - - - e
Adjustments - - - - -
Exchange differences - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 185.00 16.19 6.77 24.16 232.12
Additions - 2.06 0.46 - 252
Disposals - - -
Adjustments - = -
Exchange differences - - -
As at March 31, 2025 185.00 18.25 7.23 24.16 234.64
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2023 19.14 4.63 3.76 - 27.52
Charge for the year 30.02 517 1.89 037 37.45
Deduction during the year - - - - &
Exchange differences - - ; . a
As at March 31, 2024 49.16 9.80 5.65 0.37 64.98
Charge for the year 24.59 3.35 0.84 742 36.20
Disposals B - - - E
Exchange differences - - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 73.75 13.15 6.49 7.80 101.18
Net block as at March 31, 2024 135.84 167.14
Net block as at March 31, 2025 111.25 133.46




NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: US5101 PB2007PTC045914)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
Vi st March, 2025 31st March, 2026
2 Investments (non-current)
Unquoted NCD's:
a) 50 NCD's of Firstlight Properties Pvi. Ltd. @ 16% PA (Previous Year 50
NCD's) 149.89 43.85
149.89 4385
3 Loans (non-current)
Loan to Other parties
Secured, considered good - E
Unsecured, considered good - -
4 Inventories
(Valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lawer)
Stock In Trade 2,956.65 2,956.65
(Representing Purchase cost of land)
2,956.65 2,956.65
5 Investments (current)
{a) Quoted Equity Shares - Traded*
(AI Fair Value lhmuﬂh Profit & Loss) 1632 10,16
{b) Quoted Mutual Funds - Mon traded
(At Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
1201.612 Units (Previous Year Nil units) of NAV in UTI Nifty 50 Index
Fund 1.96 .
Nil Units (Previous Year 361,234 units } of NAV 4639.0861 in Kotak I.tquld
Fund-(C) - 17.48
1.19 Units (Previous Year 1.134 units) of NAV 1000 in Nippon India ETF
Liquid Bees 0.01 om
(¢ ) Unguoted NCD's:
a) Nil NCD's of Firstlight Properties Pvt. Lid. @ 16% PA (Previous Year 50
NCD's) - 834
b) 50 NCD's of Waterwala @ 14% PA (Previous Year Nil NCD's) 3851 -
€) 2 NCD's of Hella Infra Market Ltd. @ 10.97% PA (Previous Year Nil
NCTYs) 9593 .
153.73 3599
*List of Equity Shares held by the compnny as at 315t March'2025
Name of the company Quantity Unit purchase cost '%:L.p;'tﬁ;m‘ zl:::‘:::;;;;:' Tm:nl lﬁ:’;’:’m‘
1. Lloyds Metals and Energy Lid, 338.00 593.10 2.00 1,287.25 435
2. Olectra Greentech Ltd. 58,00 1,704.06 0.99 1,167.50 0.68
3. One 97 Communications Lid, 257.00 389.38 1,00 78345 2.01
4. Tare Lid. 4,290,00 64,79 278 123.13 528
5. Tata Motors Lid. 127,00 788.29 1.00 67445 0.86
6, Tata Steel Ltd, 694.00 14437 1.00 154.24 1.07
7. Vedanta Lid. 446,00 448.59 2,00 46340 207
*List of Equity Shares held by the company as at 315t March'2024 -
Total purchse cost | Market Price as at | Total Cost (Rs,
Name of the company Quantity Unit purchase cost tﬂn,pin Lakhs) T1at March'2024 In lakhn()
1. Lloyds Metals and Energy Ltd 338.00 593.10 2.00 602,00 2.03
2. Olectra Greentech Litd. 58.00 1,704 06 0.59 1,888.50 110
3. One 97 Communications Ltd. 257.00 389.38 1.00 402.65 1.03
4. Tare Lid, 4,290.00 64.79 2.78 139.75 6.00
6 Cash and Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank 2312 1995
b} Cash in Hand 0.03 0.03
2315 19.98
7 Loans (current)
Lean to Other
Secured, considered good 600.00 600,00
Unsecured, considered good 120.00 12435
720,00 724.35
& Other Current Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to Others 2973 3244
Salary Advances to Employees 0.89 -
Security Deposit 045 0,10
31.07 A
9  Other Current Assets
Other receivables 0,12 -
Prepaid Expenses 1.3 1.2
SGST & CGST receivable 1547 45,18
4690 46,40
10 Income Tax Assets (Net)
Advance Income Tax 12,28 10,85
Less: Provision for Income Tax - -
12.28 10.85




NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U55101PB2007PTC045914)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

11 Share Capital

a. Authorised
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each
(Previous Year 1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each)

b. Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Shares
1,00,000 (Previous Year 1,00,000) Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid-up

Total Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Share Capital

¢. Terms /rights attached to equity shares

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Re.1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The
dividend declared, if any is payable in Indian rupees. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in
the ensuing annual General Meeting. The board has not proposed any dividend for current year and previous year.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all

preferential amounts including preference shares. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
In Nos. Rs. In lakhs In Nos. Rs. In lakhs
At the beginning of the year 1,00,000 1.00 1,00,000 1.00
Add : [ssued during the year ending - = - -
Outstanding at the end of the Year 1,00,000 1.00 1,00,000 1.00
e. Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
% holding in the % holding in
In Nos. Class InNos. theClass
Equity shares of Re.1/- each fully paid
- Radhika Heights Limited (Holding Company) 99,999 99.99% 99,999 99.99%
(1 shares are held by nominees of Radhika Heights Limited)
f. Promoter's Shareholding
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
% Chan,
In Nos. | %of total shares | during tg': In Nos. |%of total shares % Change d:td“g
Promoter's name year** the year
Radhika HeiEhts Limited 99,999 99.99% 0.00%! 99,999 99.99% 0.00%
g. Shares held by holding company and/or their
subsidiaries/ associates As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Equity Shares held by holding company are as below:
- Radhika Heights Limited (Holding Company) 99,999
- Mr. LK Sharma (1 shares are held by nominees of Radhika
Heights Limited) 1
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NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U55101PB2007FTC045914)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Particulars
Other Equity

Retained Earnings

Opening balance

Add: Net profit/ (loss) for the current year
Profit available for appropriation

Less : Appropriations

Closing balance

Total Reserves and Surplus

Borrowings (Non Current)

Loans from Related Parties

Unsecured borrowings from holding Company
- Radhika Heights Limited*

Unsecured borrowings from fellow subsidiary
= Nirmala Craganic Farms & Resorts Pvt, Lid, *

Notes:
* Loans from related parties are payable at fixed repayment terms, Interest rate is at 8% per annuam.
Refer Note 34 for information about liquidity risk & market Risk on Borrowings.

MNon Current provisions
Provision for Grauity

Deferred Tax Liability / Assets (Net)

On temporary difference between the accounitng base & tax base
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of

Property, plant and equipment

Others

Current Borrowings

Loans from Related Parties

Unsecured borrowings from holding Company

- Radhika Heights Limited*

Unsecured borrowings from fellow subsidiaries
- Nirmala Oraganic Farms & Resorts Pvt. Lid. **
= Radicura Infra Ltd. **

Loans from Other

Toyota Financial Services India Ltd.

MNotes:-

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
{122.29) (7.98)
(35.90) (114.31)
(158.19) (122.29)
(158.19) (122.29)
(158.19) (122.29)
50.67 -
125.00 =
175.67 -
1.24 0,62
1.24 0.62
1354 14.00
13,09 0.24
0.45 13.76
3,258.79 3,347.46
4236 -
100.00 -
11.10 16.00
341225 3,363.46

*Loans of Rs. 548.17 lakhs ( Previous year Rs.586.17 lakhs) taken from holding company included in above are payable at fixed repayment terms, Interest

rate is at 8% per annuam,
** Loans from related parties are payable at fixed repayment terms, Interest rate is at 8% per annuam.

Refer Note 34 for information about liquidity risk & market Risk on Current Borrowings,

Trade Payables

Trade Payables (dues to micro and other small enterprises)

Trade Payables (dues to other than micro and other small enterprises)
- Related parties

= Others

Refer Note 34 for information about liquidity risk & market Risk of Trade Payables.
Refer Note 33 for information aboul trade payable aging schedule,

Other Current Financial Habilities

Interest accrued and due on borrowings - related parties
Rent received in advance

Security Deposit from others

Refer Note 34 for information about liquidity risk & market Risk of Other Current Financial liabilities.

Other Current Liability

Salary payable &
EPF pavable w\

Statutory Dues including Tax Deduct at Source, CGST & SGST payable

278.27

275.33

278,27 275.33
1264 -

- 0.59
500.00 500.00
512.64 500.59

0.03 -

0.18 0.18
328 4.81
3.49 4.99
0.30 0.29
0.30 0.29




NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U55101PB2007PTC045914)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2025  31st March, 2024
21 Revenue from Operations
Income from lease rent 53.76 58.61
53.76 58.61
22 Other income
Interest received from Others 105.97 85.46
Interest received from NCD's 9.80 12.94
Dividend Received 0.04 0.00
Profit on redemption on Equity / Mutual Fund (net) 0.88 494
Unrealized gain on Equity Fund / Mutual Fund (net) 1.39 5.25
Interest on tax refund 0.43 =
Miscellaneous Income 0.35 040
Excess provision written back 0.01 0.00
118.87 108.99
23 Employee benefits expense
Salaries 26.70 14.41
Contractual wages 7.90 6.19
Contribution to provident and other funds 1.12 0.63
Staff welfare expenses - 0.03
35.72 21.26
24 Financial cost
Interest paid to :-
- Holding Co. 4491 46.68
- Fellow subsidiaries 512 1.02
- Others 1.18 -
51.21 47.70
25 Other expenses
Legal & Professional 54.95 42.38
Auditor's Remuneration:-
- Statutory Audit Fees 0.30 0.36
- Fee for other services - -
Fees & Taxes 0.03 0.28
Business Promotions 1.51 86.90
Lease Rent 7.79 6.72
Meeting & Conference 0.94 0.06
Travelling & Conveyance 27.50 34.00
Postage & Communication 0.56 0.11
Insurance 2.57 1.62
Bank Charges 0.01 0.03
Printing & Stationery ‘\th / 0.26 -
Repair & maintenance exp - Computer Equipments 0.07 -
Loss on sale ahweﬂsm-nt 219 -
i i 0.03 -
98.71 172.46




NOTE 26

NOTE 27

NOTE 28

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: USS101PB2007TP TC045914)

Notes to Finaneial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025

INCOME TAX

The income tax expense consisls of the following !
Curteril tax expeise for the current poriod

Currenl tax expense pertaining 1o previous years
Minimum alternative lax (MAT) credit

Dlerred ax expense/ (benefit)

Total income tax

Reconciliation of tax labllity on baok profit vis-3-vis actual tax lability
Profit / {Loss) bofore ineome taxes

Ena led Tax Rate

Computesd Tax Exponsas

Adjustments in respect of current income tax

Tax impact of exemptod incomoe

Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed

Tax effect of expenses that are nol dedeutible for tax

Tax eifert due (o non Laxable income

Other adjustments in respeyt of Tax

Previously unrecognised s losses used Lo reduce cureent lax oxponse
Other Temporary Differences

Total income lax expense

Earnings Per Share

Profit/ {loss) attributable W shareholders
Weighted average numbsr of oquity shares
Nominal value per cuity share
dehml average number of equity shares adjusted far
the effect of dilution
Earnings per equity share
Basic
Diluted

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

(A) Contingent liabilitics

(B)

NOTE 29

NOTE 30

NOTE 31

a)

Irw omar T

Other Legal Cases

Capital and other commitments

As at

{Rs. In Lakhs)

As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1331 A4
(13.31) 3.04
49.21) 1.z
5.17% 2288%
(1238 (2546)

060 57

l 008

.78 .

(13 .; a p;

(13.30) 3.00
Asat Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(35,90 (114.31)

1.00 10

100 100

L 100

(35.90) (114.31)

(25.90) (114,313
As at Asat

March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024

Estirated amount of contracts remaining bo beexecuted on capital sccount, net of advances and not provided n the books are as follows:

Particulars

il Nil
il Mil
As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Property, plant and equipment

Nil

Nl

LEASES

In case of asscis taken on lease

Operating Leases:

During, the financial year, Company has taken promises admeasuring 70 sq L approx. 4l Commen'ial 50O o 71, First Floor, Royal Estate Complis Zirakpur, Sub Tehsil, Zickpur, 5. A5, Nagar (Punjab), under the
eperatingt lease agroemient for its registencd office, These are generally cancelable lases and renewable by mulual consent on mutually agreed terms,

During the linancial year, Company has taken promises admeasuring 125 sq. 0L appros, situated at 7th Floor, DCM Building, 16 Barakhamba Road, Mow Delhi - TH001 from ils Ultimate Haolding Company {Ravinder
Heiphts ltd.) on operating lease agreement for using its corporate office. These are generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutal consent on mutually agreed terms.

The total of payments under operating lease s as under:

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
18t March, st March,
2025 2024
Lewse payments for the yoar rvognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss 118 018

MSME

Based on the information available with the company, there are no dues as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 payable o enterprises covered under * Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Developmeni Act, 206,
Mo Interest is paid / payable by the company in lerms of Sxtion 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

Related Party Disclosure

As roquired by Indian Accounting Standard <24, the disclosures of Lransasctions with the relaled partios are given below:

Mames of Related Parties and Nature of Related Party Relatianship:

Ultimate Holding Company
Ravindor Heights Limited (Holding Company of RHL)

il Holding Company

Radhika Hedghts Limited (RHL)

1ii) Other Subsidiaries of Radhikas Heights Limited { Fellow Subsidiaries)

¥)

Radicura Infra Limitaxd

Cabana Construction Private Limiled

Sunanda Infra Limited

Mirmala Organic Frams & Resorts Private Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMF) / Director
Mr. Sumit Jain, Direcion

Mrs. Radhika Jain, Director

Mr. Mahipati Singh, Director

Mr, Arun Kumar Singh, Director

Eﬂiﬂ?ﬂ"l over which Person(s) (hi“l‘m vontrol or significant
Lakshimi & Marager Holdinps Limitsd

Trinidhi Finance Pyl Lud.

Whiter Pigron Estate Private Lintited

Panacea Lile SCionces Limitigd

OK| Estates Put. Ltd,

Best Gonwral Instirance Co, Lid,

(s), along with their relatives) are able ta exercise significant influence:
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NOTE 33

NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: US5101PB2007PTC045914)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025

NOTE 32 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

A. Financial Instruments by category and hierarchy
i Financial Instruments by Category
The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Carrying Amount

Particulars As at As at

31st March-25 31-Mar-24
Carrying Amount
Financial Instruments at fair value through Profit or Loss
Investment 303.61 79.84
Total 303.61 79.84
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
(i) Investment 303.61 79.84
(i1) Cash and cash equivalents 2315 19.98
(iif) Bank Balances other than i) above B -
(iv) Loans 720.00 72435
(v) Other Financial Assels 31.07 3254
Total Financial Assets 1,077.84 856.71
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
(i) Borrowings 3,587.92 3,363.46
(ii) Trade payables 278.27 275,33
(iii) Other financial liabilities 512,64 500.59
Total Financial Liabilities 137883 4,139.38 |

Note: The Company has disclosed financial instruments such as investment in equity instrument, cash and cash equivalents, other
financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities at carrying value because their carrying amounts represents the best

estimate of the fair values.

—
—

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

Fair Value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other current receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities and other

financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1: Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly

or indirectly

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market

data.

iii Valuation techniques used to determine fair value.
Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments includes:

(a) the use of net asset value (NAV) for mutual funds on the basis of the statement received from investee party.
(b) the use of adjusted net asset value method for certain equity investments because the amount of investment is not material and

management is not expected significant changes in fair value of investment.

ad aya 120
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
e Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Total
-~ year 1-2 years 2-3 years years
(i) MSME - - - - = -
(ii) Others 0.43 104 : 273.80 278.27
(iii) Disputed dues — , y " - - €
MSME
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Trade Payables a hedu b
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Tatal
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
(i) MSME - - 3 i B :
(if) Others 0.61 092 - . 273.80 275.33
(iii) Disputed dues — - i i
MSME ) : )
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - . - - - =




NIRMALA BUILDWELL PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: US5101PB2007PTC045914)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025
NOTE 34 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company’s financial risk management policy is
set by the Managing Board. The finaneial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies on risk management, Key financial
risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board of directors of the Company.

A. MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial instrument. The value of a
financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, equity prices and other market changes that may effect market sensitivity instruments.
Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, loans and borrowings.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, [n order to
balance the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest rate risk, management performs a comprehensive
interest rate risk management, The Company has no interest bearing borrowings hence it is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting
dates, They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in market
interest rates,

Foreign currency risk
The Company has operations in [ndia only hence Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is nil.

Price Risk

Price risk arises from exposure to equity securities prices from investments held by the Company,

B. CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its abligation under the contract, leading to financial loss, Credit risk arises from trade receivables
and ather financial assets.

Trade Receivables
There are no trade receivables in the Company as at reporting date,

Other Financial Assets

There is no credit risk exposure with respect to other financial assets as they are either supported by legal agreement or are with Nationalized banks.
- Loans to Others are supported with legal agreements, hence there is no credit risk involved,

Provision for Expected Credit losses
Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no credit risk to the Company.

C. LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial labilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to mect its liabilities
when they are due,

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account
the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below provide details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at reporting date based on contractual undiscounted

payments,

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 31st March'2025 l.e:; nt l;:;mw 1-2years 2- 3years More than 3 years
Non Current
(i) Borrowings 175.67 -
Current
(i} Borrowings 341225 = =
(i) Trade payables 278.27 - - -
(iii) Other financial liabilities 51;6\4 = =
Total 4,378.83 - ¥ 2
As at 31-Mar-24 Lg:‘:;';lﬁ:‘v 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years
Non Current
(i) Borrowings - -
Current
(i) Borrowings 3,363.46 -
(ii) Trade payables 275.33 i
(iii) Other financial liabilities 500.59 -
Total 4,139.38 e
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35 Ratios

Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, alongwith detailed

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change in % Reason
(a) Current Ratio 0.94 0.92 1.53% NA
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio (21.707) (27.732) “21.72% NA
(¢) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 0.58 {0.22) -362.26% Due to increas in revenue
(d) Return on Equity Ratio (35.90) (114.31) -68.59% Due to increas in revenue
(e) Inventory turnover ratio NA NA NA
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio NA NA NA
() Trade payables turnover ratio 0.36 0.63 -43.12% Due to increase in expenditures
(h) Net capital turnover ratio (0.66) (0.53) 24.42% NA
(i) Net profit ratio -20.80% -68.21% -69.51% Dwue to increase in business loss
(j) Return on Capital employed =1,29% 59.46% =102.16% Due to increase in borrowings
(k) Return on investment 12.92% 19,79% -34.71% Due to increase in Investments

Capital Risk Management

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to shareholders. The capital
structure of the Company is based on management's judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We
consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets, The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and sirong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain creditors and market
confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. There in no change in the Company capital structure since previous year,

R ue from Contracts with C

Ind AS 115 Revenue with Contracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1st, 2018, replaces existing revenue recognition
requirements. Under the modified retrospective approach there were no adjustments required to the retained earnings as at April 1, 2018. Application of Ind AS115
did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial results,

Segment Reporting
The Company is a one segment company in the business of real estate development and leasing, All its operations are located in India, accordingly, the Company

views these activities as one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting”.

Radhika Heights Limited along with its four wholly owned subsidiaries, i.e. Radicura Infra Limited, Cabana Construction Private Limited, Nirmala Buildwell
Private Limited and Sunanda Infra Limited had entered into a Collaboration Agreement with Bestech India Pvt. Ltd. (Developer) for its land situated in Sector 89A,
Gurgaon for affordable plotted colony project under Deen Dayal Jan Awas Yojna from DTCP Haryana.

Thereatter, the project has abtained two licenses from Directorate of Town and Country Planning, Haryana on 17.09.2021 for 12,3812 acres of Land and 08.10.2021
for 39.43125 acres of Land. In 2023, RERA certificates have been received for the aforesaid projects and the development work is in process.

Notes on Amendment in Schedule 11 and relating to other disclosures required to be made in Financial Statements:

The company does not have any transaction with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act 1956
during the year ended March 31" 2025 and March 31" 2024,

There was one charge created on 14.03.2024 with Tovota Financial Services India Ltd., rest no other charge created or satisfaction requried to registered with the
registrar of companies during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024.

The company complies with the number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of layers) rules 2017 during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

The company has not invested or traded in cryptocurrency or virtual currency during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31at 2024,

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding Benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transaction Act
1988 (as amended in 2016) (formally the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder during the year ended March 31st 2025
and March 31st 2024,

The company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authorities during the vear ended
March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the competent authority in terms of sections 232 to 237 of the Companies Act 2013
during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not surrendered or disclosed as income any transactions not recarded in the books of
accounts in the course of tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961),

During the vear ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or the share
premium or kind of funds) except as disclosed as below, to any other person or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall:

i} directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Details of funds advanced during the year 2024-25: {Rs. In lakhs)
Name of the Party Fund loaned F"'lg‘;"d“'" Date of Fund loaned Party to whom fund given B °fl::::; b
Nil Nil Nil Nil [N e Nil
Details of funds advanced during the year 2023-24; \Q‘LV
Name of the Party Fund loaned m Date of Fund loaned Party to whom fund given
Nil Nil ,:\c-ﬁ?ﬁ r— [ Nil Nil PN OO
. \ O
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During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not received any funds from any persons or entities including foreign entities
(Funding party) except as disclosed as below, with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Details of funds borrowed & advanced during the year 2024-25;: (Rs. In lakhs)
Funds further Date of funds further
Name of the Borrower Fund borrowed Toaned / Tnveited Date of Fund borrowed Party to whom fund given/ Invested loaned / Invested
Nirmala Orgnaic Farms & Resorts Pvt. 50.00 50.00 24.06.2024 Investment in PTC's 24.06.2024
Lid.
Nirmala Drgnair Farms & Resorts Pvt 125.00 125.00 30.01.2025 Investment in NCD's 30.01.2025
Lid.
Radicura Infra Lid. 100.00 100.00 03.03.2025 Investment in NCD's 03.03.2025
Details of funds borrowed and advanced during the year 2023-24: (Rs. In lakhs)
Funds further Date of funds further
Name of the Borrower Fund bomowed loaned / Invested Date of Fund borrowed Party to whom fund given loaned / Invested
Radhika Heights Limiled 100,00 100,00 26.06,2023 : Mr. Angad Singh 26.06,2023

Ind AS 16 - Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be
recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of the cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no
impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Ind AS 37-Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, and
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract), The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2022, although early adoption is permitted, The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material,

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has received Presidential assent on 28
September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the effective date of the Code is yet to be notified and final rules for quantifying the
financial impact are also yet to be issued, In view of this, the Company will assess the impact of the Code when relevant provisions are notified and will record
related impact, if any, in the period the Code becomes effective.

Events after the Reporting period
There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company aperations.

The Financial Statement are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs, except when otherwise stated. Previous year figures have been
regrouped, reclassified wherever considered necessary.

Notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements.

For AAGN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
T Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited

CA. Akanksha Mis Mahipati Singh
Partner Director
Membership No. DIN 01712664

Place : New Delhi
Dated: 26052025



~ Sudhir Sunil & Co.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Nirmala Organic Farms & Resorts Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Nirmala Organic Farms & Resorts
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st
March 2025, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, (statement of changes in equity)
and the Standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Standalone state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, the Profit and standalone total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Financial Statements.

|
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalane
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the standalone financial position,
standalone financial performance, (changes in equity) and standalone cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS & other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies are responsible for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for the
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation, and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that gives a true and fair view and is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken based on these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

!



collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has an adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion.

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the standalone
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
standalone financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that
individually or in aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and evaluating
the results of our work; and (ii) evaluating the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all



relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatary Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

d.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for our audit of the aforesaid standalone
financial statement,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
standalone Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintain for the standalone financial statement.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

Based on the written representations received from the directors as of 31st March
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
of 31st March 202 Efrom being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, In our opinion, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls were operating effectively
as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations as on the date of audited
Financial Statements.

(ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts

(iii) There were no amounts that were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(iv) A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested



(v)

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("intermediaries”), with the understating, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the company from
any other person ar entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties”), with the
understating, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under A and B above, contain any
material misstatement.

Based on our examination carried out which included test checks the company has
used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial
year end March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
examination we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.



2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Sudhir Sunil & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 08345N

, (

Partner
Membership No.: 514276
Place: New Delhi

Date: 26-05-2025
UDIN: 25514276BMMHXD1573



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of Nirmala Organic Farms & Resorts
Private Limited (“the Company”) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended
on 31st March 2025. We report that:

i.  InRespect of Tangible and Intangible assets

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

b) Property, Plant, and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; No material discrepancies were noticed during such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, all the title deeds of all immovable
property disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the company.

d) According to the information and explanations are given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no revaluation of Property, Plant,
and Equipment and Intangible assets were made during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii.  InRespect of inventory and working capital.
a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management; No material discrepancies were noticed during such verification.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of Order is not
applicable to the company.

iii. Loans are given by Company
a) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, or other parties covered in the Register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

A. Aggregate amount during the year, and the balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to such loans and advances and guarantees or security to
parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates. Also, the Company
has taken reasonable steps for the recovery of the under mentioned due amounts:-



Particulars Refer Note Advancesin
nature of loans (Rs.)

_Aj!\ggregate amount granted / provided
during the year:

- Gurmeet Singh 6 50,00,000/-

- Nirmala Buildwells Private Limited 6 1,75,00,000/-

B. Balance outstanding as at balance
sheet date in respect of above cases:
- Gurmeet Singh 6 51,13,151/-

- Nirmala Buildwells Private Limited 6 1,67,35,668/-

b) The company had granted loans to its fellow Subsidiary and associate Companies.

c) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
the repayments or receipts are regular.

d) In respect of loans granted by the company, there is no due amount remaining for mare
than 90 days.

e) No loan granted by the company which fallen due during the year, has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over-dues of existing loans given to the
same parties.

f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during
the year. Hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

Loans, investments, guarantees, and security under sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, in respect
of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, the Company has complied with the
provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, provisions of section
185 are not applicable to the Company.

Compliance under sections 73 to 76 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder while accepting Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the provisions of
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and

}



vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.

a)

b)

Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014 with regard to deposits from the public
is not applicable in the current year. Thus, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

Maintenance of cost records
The provisions of maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

Statutory Dues

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, Income Tax, Cess, Goods and Service Tax, and other material
statutory dues applicable to it and there were no arrears as of 31st March 2024 for
more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, goods and service
tax, or cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. Thus,
paragraph 3(vii) (b) is not applicable to the Company.

Unrecorded Income

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records, there are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Thus, paragraph 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Default in repayment of Loans and borrowings taken from banks or financial
institutions

According to the information and explanation given to us and based an our examination
of the records, the Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial
institution, banks, and government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

Utilisation of IPO and Further Public Offer

The Company did not raise any money by way of an initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (x) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Reporting of Fraud during the year and Whistle Blower

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during our
audit. There is no receipt of whistle-blower complaints.



Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

xvii.

Xviii.

XiX.

Compliance by Nidhi Company

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Related party compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act — 2013
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
comply with the provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards. However, provisions of section 177 are
not applicable to the Company.

Internal audit system

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has an Internal Audit System
for its size and business activities.

Non Cash Transactions

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

Requirement of Registration under 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act 1934.

Cash Losses
The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and the immediately
preceding financial year.

Resignation by Statutory auditor
The Statutory auditors remain the same during the year.

Material Uncertainty

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, no material uncertainty exists as of the
date of the audit report, and in our opinion that the company is capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within 1
year from the balance sheet date.



xx.  Transfer of Funds specified under Schedule VIl of the Companies Act 2013
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not transferred any
unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act within six
months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with the second proviso to sub-
section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. Therefore paragraph 3(xx) of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

For Sudhir Sunil & Cao.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 08345N

Partner
Membership No.: 514276
Place: New Delhi

Date: 26-05-2025
UDIN: 25514276 BMMHXD1573



NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U01403PB2010PTC045880)
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As per our attached report of even date

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 8345N

Mt o 7
(MAHIMA KAPOOR) ‘ "

Partner
Membership No.514276

PLACE: NEW DELHI q)
DATED : 26.05.2025

As at As at
Ty NOf | 315tMarch, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
I. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Flant & Equipments 1 30.76 0.90
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 2 49.00 27013
(ii) Loans 3 51.13 '76.58
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 2.20 4.27
133.09 351.88
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 312,80 279.64
(if) Loans 6 167.36 15.47
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 138.81 11231
(iv) Other Financial Assets 8 0.10 0.28
(b) Other Current Assets 9 3.61 1.00
“(c) Current tax assets (Net) 10 519 B
627.87 408.70
Total Assets 760.96 760.58
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 1.00 1.00
(b) Others Equity 12 89.36 87.77
90.36 B8.77
Liabilities
(2) Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 - a
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 14 664.42 664.42
(ii) Trade payables 15 3.85 3.57
(b) Other Current Liability 16 233 1.72
(c) Current Tax Liabilities ( Net) 17 - 210
670.60 671.81
Total Equity & Liabilities 760.96 760.58
|Summary of significant accounting policies I
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1to039

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nirmala

Organic Farms & Resorts Private Limited

I\‘S::..m-eﬂ Qo

KAMAL LAKHANI
Director
DIN 02904225




NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U01403PB2010PTC045880)

Provisional Statement of the Profit & Loss for year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Note F;lrs:h;l:::;: ;;';;d F;lr slth:d: ::1:’ Z;::d
Continuing Operations
Revenue From Operations 18 - -
Other Income 19 91.11 262.96
Total Income (I) 91.11 262.96
Expenses ”
Finance Cost 20 & 1.00
Depreciation & Amortization 1 7.87 0.47
Other expenses 21 64.95 186.72
Total Expenses (II) 72.82 188.19

Profit / (loss) before Tax (I) - (1) 18.29 74.77
Tax expense:
(1) Current Income Tax 9.90 7.45
(2) Deferred Tax (Credit) / Charge (1.14) (0.20)
(3) Income Tax for Earliar Year 7.94 -
Profit / (1oss) for the year from Continuing Operations (I1I) 1.59 67.52
Discontinuing Operations
Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued Operations - b
Tax Income /(Expense) of discontinuing operations - -
IX. Profit /(loss) for the year from discontinued Operations (after tax) i -
Profit / (Loss) for the year (IV) 1.59 67.52
Other Comprehensive Income
A, (i) Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss 4 3

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss i 5
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss . E

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or

loss - -
(V) Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
(VI) Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1.59 67.52
Earning per share for continuing operations [face value of Share Re. 1/-
each]
(Previous Year Re. 1/- each)
(1) Basic
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 23 1.59 67.52
(ii) Diluted
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 1.59 67.52
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1to39

As per our attached report of even date

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO.

Chartered Accountants
FRN. 835N

O~ o
AHIMA KAFOOR)

Partner
Membership No.514276

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED : 26.05.2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
\ Nirmala Organic Farms & Resorts Private Limited

k:'r'.'lmp (ZG o

KAMAL LAKHANI

Director

DIN 02904225




NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U01403PB2010PTC045880)
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
A) Cash flow from operating activities
Net Operating profit / (Loss) before tax and extra ordinary
items 18.29 74.77
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation & Amortisation Expesnes 7.87 047
Profit on redemption of MF (9.42) (8.49)
Interest Income from NCD's and others (76.91) (49.66)
Fianance Cost - 1.00
Profit from sale of Assets - (198.65)
Unrealized (gain) /loss on Mutual fund 6.16 (72.30) (5.40) (260.72)
Operating profit / (Loss) before working capital Changes (54.01) (185.95)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories - -
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivable - 0.08
(Increase) / Decrease in non current Loans 2545 (76.58)
(Increase) / Decrease in current Loans (151.89) (15.47)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current financial assets 0.18 193.66
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current assets (2.61) (0.99)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables 0.27 1.34
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities - (152.30)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 0.62 (127.98) 1.26 (49.00)
Cash generated from operations (181.99) (234.95)
Less: Net Direct Taxes paid 21.92 5.35
Net Cash from Operating Activities (203.91) (240.30)
B) Net cash used in Investing Activities
Purchase / (Disposal) of assets, including CWIP and capital
advances (37.73) -
(Investment) /Redemption made from Mutual/NCD's (net) 181.81 (393.33)
Proceeds from sale of immovable & movable assets = 979,85
Interest received from NCD's and others 76,91 49.66
Profit on redemption of MF 9.42 8.49
Net cash used in Investing Activities 230.41 644.66
C€) Cash flow from Financing Activities
Repayment of loans - (292.00)
Interest paid - (1.00)
Net cash from financing activities - (293.00)
Net cash from operating, investing & financial activities 26.50 111.36 |
Net Increase / (Decrease) in cash & cash equivalant 26.50 111.36
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalant 112.31 0.94
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalant 138.81 112.31
Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the
Cash Flow Statement Comprise of the following:-
i) Cash balance in Hand 0.02 0.02
ii) Balance with Banks:
a) In Current Accounts 138.79 82,29
b) In Fixed Deposits - 30.00
Total 138.81 11231 |
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO. Nirmala Organic Farms & Resorts Private Limited
Chartered Accountants {
FRN - 8345N

Z

HIMA KAPOOR) A
Partner
Membership No.514276

PLACE: NEW DELHI q,

DATED : 26.05.2025

JAIN
Director
DIN 00014236

LCZJMA«OQ—‘? M a—"

KAMAL LAKHANI
Director
DIN 02904225




NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U01403PB2010PTC045880)

Statement of changes in Equity for the Year ended 31st March, 2025

A. Equity Share Capital
(1) Current reporting period

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Changes in equity
Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2024 share capital during Bal;; i ;;;;:lst
the current year e
1.00 B 1.00

(2) Previous reporting period

Changes in equity
Opening Balance as at 1t April, 2023 |share capital during| CAAnce a8 at Slst
; March'2024
the previous year
1.00 - 1.00

B. Other Equity
(1) Financial Year 2024-25

Equity Component Reserve and Surplus
; of Compound ]
Particulars Financial Capital Ressrve !I;:ta.med Total
instruments s
Balance as at 1st April, 2024 - - 87.77 87.77
Changes in accounting policy/ prior period
errors = = - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current
reporting period - - i
Total Compreh ensive Income for the current
year - - - -
Dividends - - - <
Transfer to retained earnings - = 159 1.59
Adjustment on account of Preference Shares - - B .
Any other change (to be specified) - - . "
As at 31st March' 2025 - - 89.36 89.36
(2) Financial Year 2023-24
Equity Component Reserve and Surplus
X of Compound
Ptioutan Financial Capital Reserve g eta%ned ol
instruments gt

Balance as at 1st April, 2023 - - 20.25 20.25
Changes in accounting policy/ prior period
ETTOTS - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the previous
reporting period - - .
Total Comprehensive Income for the previous
year - - - -
Dividends - - - -
Transfer to retained earnings . - 67.52 67.52
Adjustment on account of Preference Shares - - - -
Any other change (Share Issue Expenses) - - - i
As at 31st March'2024 - - 87.77 87.77

i For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nirmala

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO. . Organic Farms & Resorts Private Limited
Chartered Accountants &
FRN. 8345N S
¢ / / D Lome
mmon JAIN KAMAL LAKHANI
Partner Director Director
Membership No.514276 DIN 00014236 DIN 02904225

PLACE: NEW DELHI Q’

DATED : 26.05.2025
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a)

b)

€

d)

NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U01403PB2010PTC045880)

Summary of significant accounting Policies for the year ended March 31, 2025

Background

Nirmala Organic Farms & Resorts Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Radhika Heights Limited. The Company is pr | to carry on the
business in agriculture production by cultivation or farming on land and to purchase, acquire, use and employ land in agricultural, horticultural or pastoral use
and to carry on the business of general farmers, orchadists, past-oralists and growers of produces of any description for which the lands may from time to time

be found to be most adoptable or suitable, further the company recently inserted the new clauses for carrying on the business of developing township(s) and/or
real estate developer.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements, These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standlards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act,

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
- certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value (refer accounting policies regarding financial instruments)

Use of Estimates & Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant arcas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applving
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

i)Income taxes: The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

ii)Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure
of contingent labilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the
Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns etc,

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification,

An assel is treated as current when it is:
-Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal eperating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cvcle

It is heldl primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The aperating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of
products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between the aquisition of the assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalent, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 48 months for real estate projects and 12 montths for others for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and non current,




i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase
price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and borrowing Costs attributable to construction of qualifying
asset, upto the date assset is ready for its intended use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price,

Subsequent costs
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic

benefils associated with the item will flow ta the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting, period in which they are incurred.

Derecoginition
An item of Property, Plant & Equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from the use, Any gains and losses on

disposal of an item of Praperty, Plant and Equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of Property, Plant and
Equipment and are recognised net within “Other income/ Other expenses” in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the Written Down Value Method (WDV) over the estimated useful lives of the assets considering the nature,
estimated usage, operating conditions, history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance
support. Considering these factors, the Company has decided to apply the useful life for various categories of property, plant & equipment,
which are as prescribed in Schedule IT of the Act. Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

8. Useful
N Type of Assets Life in
0. Years
a) |Buildings - Non-Factory buildings 60
b) |Plant and machinery (including Electrical fittings) 15
c) |Office equipment 5
d) |Furniture and fixtures 10
¢) |Vehicles 8

f) |Computers Equipment 15
.EJ Software 5

a)

The useful lives are reviewed at least at each year end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change in accounting estimate,

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease or the estimated useful life whichever is lower.

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate,

Financial Instruments

Financial Assets
Financial assets comprise investments in equity instruments, loans and advances , trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents and other cligible assets,

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value except trade recievables which are initially measured at transaction price, Transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the
financial assets. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a ime frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent Measurement:

-Financial Assets measured at amortised cost: Financial assets held within a business model whase objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest
(SPPI) on principal amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (EIR) method.

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets, These
financial assels are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss, The EIR amortisation is recognised as
finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

= Financial assets at fair value through other P ive income (FVTOCI): Financial assets held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
bath callecting the contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assels give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payment towards principal and interest (SPPI) on principal outstanding are subsequently measured at FVTOC, Fair value movements in
financial assets at FVTOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain loss in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit and loss. Interest carned is recognised under the expected interest rate (EIR) model,

.!-‘.quity instruments other than investment in associates: F,quity instruments held for tuqﬂna are classified at fair value ‘hm“gh Profit or Loss (FVTPL). For
other equity instruments the Company classifies the same as at FVTOCI, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable, Fair value changes
on equity instruments at FVTOCI, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCT).

- Financial assets at fair value through fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): Financial assels are measured at FVTPL if is does not meet the criteria for
classification as measured at amartised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value changes are recognised in St;

| \




iv)

b)

<)

d)

Derecognition of financial assets:

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or the financial asset is transferred and the
transfer qualified for derecognition. On derecognition of financial asset in its entirety the difference between the carrving amount (measured at the date of
derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) shall be recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss,

Impairment of financial assets:

Trade receivables, contract assets, receivables under Ind AS 109 are tested for impairment based on the expected credit losses (ECL) for the respective financial
asset. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, The
approach followed by the company for recognising, the impairment loss is given below:

1) Trade receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The expected credit losses over lifetime of the asset are estimated by adopting the simplified
approach using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current condition and forecasts of future economic conditions,

2) Other financial assets

Far recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL issued. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade pavables and other eligible liabilities.

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Any transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities (excepl financial
liabilities al fair value through profit or loss) are deducled [rom the fair value of financial liabilities.

Cilk ¥ 18 "

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: The Company has classified the following under amortised cost:
a) Trade payables
b) Other financial liabilities
Amortised cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount.

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL): Financial linbilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet Date are carried at a value which is approximately equal to fair value due to the
short maturity of these instuments,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability shall be derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recagnised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the Hability simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.

Reclassification of Financlal Assets

The Company determines the classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are categorised as equity instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets or financial liabilities that are specifically designated at FVTPL. For
financial assets, which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company’s operations. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases lo perform an activity that is
significant to its operations, If the company reclassifies financial assels, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the
first day of immediately next reporting period following the change in business model, The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying assel are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset,
Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. To the extent the Company borrows funds generally and uses them
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company determines the amount of borrowings costs eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization
rate to the expenditure incurred on such asset. The capitalization rate is determined based on the weighted average of borrowing costs applicable ta the
borrowings of the Company which are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset, The
amount of borrowing costs that the Company capitalizes during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing costs incurred during that period.




v)

vi)

vii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated,

The recaverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset, For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from the continuing use that are largely independent of cash inflows of other assels or group of assets (the cash generating
unit).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, Impairment losses are

recagnised in the St t of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses are recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or group of units on a pro rata basis.

Reversal of impairment loss
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized directly in other comprehensive income and presented within equity.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realisable value of property under construction assessed with refernce to market value of

completed property as at the reporting date less estimated cost to complete. Cost of inventory (Work-in-Progress) represents cost of land and all expenditure
incurred in connection with.

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision arising from claims, litigation, assessmenl, fines, penallies, etc, is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the abligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current management estimates,
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence o non-occusrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the enterprise. When there is a possible abligation or
present obligation where the likelihood of an outflow is remote, no disclosure or provision is made.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset,
it it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

The company does not recognize a contingent Liability but disclosed its existence in the financial statements,

Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax, Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to ilems
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid te the taxation authorities based on the taxable
income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis of to realize the asset and liability simultaneously,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences
ariging between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the
time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recopnized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,




ix)

)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

xiv)

a)

b)

Minimum Alternate Taxes

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) is payable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular
income tax payable in subsequent years. MAT paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company recognises MAT credit
available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period i.e the period
for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. MAT credit is recognised as an asset and is shown as '"MAT Credit Entitlement’, The Company reviews
the "MAT Credit Entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and write down the asset Lo the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will
pay normal tax during the specified period.

Foreign Currency Translations

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Nirmala Organic Farms & Resorts Pvt, Limited's functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the iransactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at vear
end exchange rates are recopnised in profit or loss,

Leases

As i Lessee:
a) Classification of Lease
The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets, The assessment of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not limited to, the

transfer of ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the lessee’s option to extend / purchase elc,
b) Recognition and initial measurement

At the lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet, The right-of-use asset is measured at
cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases (twelve month or less period) and leases of low-value assets using practical expedients. Instead of
recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in a standalone statement of profit and loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term,

t)i."‘.l " "

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-
of-use asset of the end of the lease term, The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Asa Lessor:

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an assel are classified as operating leases. Rental income
from the aperating lease is recopnized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, except when the lease rentals, increase are in line with the
general inflation index. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized over the lease lerm on the same basis as rental income, Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned,

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from
lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases, Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

Revenue Recoginition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Income from Services - Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Interest Income: Interest income is recognized as it accrues in Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method,

Dividend income - Revenue is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established at the balance sheet date. Dividend income is
included under the head “Other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Eamnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is compulted using the weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the period,

Diluted earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS
and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date, Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

Segment reporting
The segmental reporting disclosures as required under Accounting Standard- 108 are not required, as there are no reportable business segments,




NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U01403PB2010PTC045880)
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Property, Plant and Equipment

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Description

Land- Freehold

Office Equipment

Vehilces

Total

Gross carrying value
As at April 1, 2023
Additions
Disposals
Adjustments
Exchange differences

Transfer to Assets held for
sale *

6,93

4.87

12.18

4.87

As at March 31, 2024

207

5.25

7.31

Additions

Disposals
Adjustments
Exchange differences

Transfer to Assets held for
sale

0.79

36.94

37.75

As at March 31, 2025

2.85

4219

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2023
Charge for the year
Disposals
Exchange differences

4.64
0.33
3.49

4.80
0.14

943
0.47
349

As at March 31, 2024

1.48

4.94

6.41

Charge for the year
Disposals
Exchange differences

0.20

7.67

7.87

As at March 31, 2025

12.60

14.28

Net block as at March 31, 2024

0.31

0.90

Net block as at March 31, 2025

29.59

30.76




NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: UD1403PB2010PTC045880)

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Asat Asat

Particulars 31at March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Investments (non-current)

Unquoted NCD's:
a) Nil NCD's of Hella Infra Market Pvt. Ltd. 11% (Previous Year 1000 unils) . 8.55
b) Nil NCD's of Earthen Hues Estate Pvt. Lid. TeIl 15% (Previous Year 200 units) - 8.89
©) Nil NCD's of Techna Global Security Private Limited 14.05% (Previous Year 100 unils) _ 95,45
- 86.75
d) Nil NCD's of Firstlight Properties Pvt. Lid. 16 NCD 31MY26 FVRS1LAC (Previous Year 100 units)
Unquoted PTC's:
a) Nil FTC's Prosperity Assets 5 Trust Series 1 PTC 12Dec23 (Previous Year 95 units) o 70.49
b) 110 PTC's Prosperity Assets 8 Trust Series 1 FTC 30Aug 24 (Previous Year Nil units) 49,00 i
49.00 27013
Loans (non-current)
Loan to Other parties
Secured, considered good - 76.58
Unsecured, considered good 51.13 -
51.13 76.58
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Property, plant and equipment 220 1.06
Others - -
Total Deferred Tax Assets 2.20 1.06
MAT credit entitlement az an
Less: provision for impairment of MAT credit entitlement a2l -
Net Deferred Tax Assels 2.20 4.27
Investments (current)
Qthd Mutual Funds
(At Fair YValue through Profit & Loss)
a) Kotak Savings Fund -Gwroth - (Regular) Nil units (Previous Year 228300824 units) % 89.65
b) Kotak Liquid Fund (G) 1,449.95 Units (Previous Year NIL) 7528 "
€) 1000 NCD's of Hella Infra Market Pvt. Ltd, 11% (Previous Year 1000 units) 834 66,67
d) Nil NCD's of Earthen Hues Estate Pyt, Ltd, Tr.dll 15% (Previous Year 200 units) J 73,00
@) Nil NCD's Techno Global Security Private Limited 14.05% (Previous Year 100 units) . 5.00
- 16.67
f) Nil NCD's of Firstlight Properties Pvt. Ltd. 16 NCD 31MY26 FVRS1LAC (Previous Year 100 units)
#) 94 NCD's of Arun Excello Compact Homes Private Limited 13,60 Ned 26.73 .
30Ju26 Fyrsl Lac(Previous Year Nil units)
Unguoted FTC's & NCD's:
a) 95 PTC's of Prosperity Assets 5 Trust Series 1 PTC 12Dec23 (Previous Year 95 units) 7049 28,65
b) 110 PTC's Prosperity Assets 8 Trust Series 1 FTC 30Aug 24 (Previous Year Nil units) 3525 5
) 10000 NCD's of Blu-Smart Mobility Ltd. 12% @ PA (Previous Year Nil NCD's) 95,71
31280 279.64
Loans (current)
Loan to Other parties
Secured, considered good - 1547
Unsecured, considered good 167.36 -
167.36 15.47
Cash and Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank 138.79 82.29
1) Cash in Hand 0.02 0.02
¢} FDR with Bank - 30,00
134.81 112,31
Other Current Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Adavances to others - 0,18
Security Deposit 0.10 0.10
0.10 0.28
Refer Note 33 for infomration about credit risk and market risk of Othr Current Financial Assets
Other Current Assets
i) Others
a) Interest accured but not due - FDR's - 0.29
b) Interest accrued & due on Loans (Associated Cm ) 235 -
) Interest accrued & due on Loans / g \ 1.25 0.70
d) Prepaid expenses 0.01 0.01
3.61 1.00
Income Tax Assets (net) y f
Advance Income Tax p . 15,09 -
Less: Provision for Income Tax i 9,90 &

5.19 B
L2



NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U01403PB2010PTC045850)

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

11 Share Capital

a. Authorised
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each
(Previous Year 1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each)

b. 1ssued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Shares

1,00,000 (Previous Year 1,00,000) Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid-up

Total Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Share Capital

¢. Terms frights attached to equity shares

(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at Asat
31st March,  31st March,
2025 2024
1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Re.1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
dividend declared, if any is payable in Indian rupees. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders
in the ensuing annual General Meeting. The board has not proposed any dividend for current year and previous vear,
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiled to receive remaining assets of the campany, after distribution of all
preferential amounts including preference shares. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

d. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 315t March, 2024
In Nos, (Rs. in Lakhs) In Nos, (Rs. in Lakhs)
At the beginning of the year 100,000 1.00 100,000 1.00
Add : Issued during the year ending - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the Year 1,00,000 1.00 1,00,000 1.00
¢. Detail of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
1,
Equity shares of Re.1/- each fully paid
- Radhika Heights Limited (Holding Company) 99,999 99,99% 99,009 99.99%
(1 shares are held by nominees of Radhika Heights Limited)
f. Promoter’s Shareholding
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
% Change % Change
InNos. |%eof total during the In Nos. Yoof total during the
Promoter's name shares year** shares year**
Radhika Heights Limited 99,999 99.99% 0.00% 99,999 99.99% 0.00%
% Shares held by holding company and/or their subsidiaries/ associates
Equity and Preference Shares held by holding company are as below: As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
- Radhika Heights Limited (Holding Company) 99,999 99,999

}




NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U01403PB2010PTC045880)

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars An s

31st March, 2025  31st March, 2024

12 Other Equity

Retained Earnings
Opening balance 87.77 20.25
Add: Net profit/(loss) for the current year 1.59 67.52
Profit available for appropriation 89.36 87.77
Less : Appropriations - -
Closing balance 89.36 87.77
Total Reserves and Surplus 89.36 87.77

13

14

15

Non Current Borrowings

Unsecured, Considered Good

Loans from Related / Associated Parties
- Radhika Heights Ltd.

Current Borrowings
Unsecured, Considered Good
Loans from Related Parties

Unsecured borrowings from holding Company

- Radhika Heights Limited
The above is repayable on demand

Refer Note 30 for information about liquidity risk and market risk of Current Borrowings.

Trade Payables

Trade Payables (dues to micro and other small enterprises)
Trade Payables (dues to other than micro and other small enterprises)

- Related parties
- Others

Refer Note 29 for information about ageing of Trade Payables

16 Other Current Liabilities

17 Current Tax Liabilities

Statutory dues (TDS & GST payable )
Expenses Payable

Provision of Income Tax
Less: TDS receivable

664.42 664.42
664.42 664.42
3.53 3.10
0.32 0.47
3.85 3.57
1.93 1.15
0.40 0.57
2.33 1.72
_—

- 745

- 5.35

2.10




NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U01403PB2010PTC045880)

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year

Particulars ended
TS MR, 2023 x 1t March, 2024
18 Revenue From Operation
Income from sale of Agriculural : i
19 Other income
Interest Income From fellow Subsidiary Co. 4.48
Interest income from -others
- Bank deposits 1.77 0.83
- Others 20.25 12.78
- NCD's 54.88 36.05
Profit/(Loss) on sale of Fixed Asset (net) & 198.65
Unrealised Gain on Mutual Fund Investment (net) 2 5.40
Realised gain on Mutual Fund Investment (net) 942 8.49
Misc. Income 0.30 0.50
Excess provisons written back = 0.26
91.11 262.96

20

21

Finance Cost
Interest expense

Other expenses

Agriculture Expenses

Power and fuel

Security Charges
Professional Charges
Auditor's Remuneration:-

- Statutory Audit Fees

- Tax return filing fees

Fees & Taxes

Lease Rent

Loss on sale of Investment
II'ISI.II'EI'I.CE EXPE‘IISE

Repair & Maintance -Vehicle
Miscellaneous

Subscriptions

Unrealised loss on Mutual fund
Bad Debt written off

Bank Charges

5 1.00
= 1.00
- 0.11
3 0.13
- 1.35
51.79 60.50
0.30 0.25
0.11 0.05
0.01 0.12
0.41 0.16
5.60 "
0.09 0.09
0.19 :
(0.01) (0.00)
0.02 2
6.16 3
: 123.83
0.28 0.13
64.95 186.72




NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: UD1403PB2010PTCO45880)
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended Tist March, 2025
(Rs. in Lakhs)
NOTE 22 INCOME TAX As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
The income tax eXpERSe consists of the fﬂ“ﬁwiﬂ‘ H

Current tax expense for the current year 290 745
Current ax expense peraining Lo previous years 7™ .

Deferred tax expoense/ (henefit) (1.14) (0.20)
Total income tax 16.70 7.3%

Reconciliation of tax liability on book profil vis-a-vis actual tax lHability

Profil before income laxes 18.29 777
Enacted Tax Rate 517% [17%
Computed Tax Expense 4.60 18.82
Adjustments in respect of current income tax

Tax impac | of expenses which will never be allowed 5PM

Tax effevt of expenses (hat are not dedcutible for tx purpose g
Tax effect due o non laxable income

Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit

valw-ﬂly unrecognised Lax osses used 1o fediice cuFent Lax expense

Other Temporary Differences 680 (t}.ﬂ_li_
Total income tax expense 16.70 18.62
. Asat As at
NGTE! 2 Skatigs ek Sei e March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Profit/{loss) attributable 1o sharcholders 159 6752
Weighted average number of equity shares 100 100
Hominal value per euity shar: 100 1.00
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 1.00 1.00
Eamings per equity share 159 6752
Basic 1.59 6752
Dilutesd
As at Asal
NOTE 24 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 °
iA) Contingent Habilities
1 Income Tax Nil Nil
11 Other Legal Cases il Ml

(B) Capiltal and olher commitments

Estimated amount of contracis romaining to be execuled on capital sccount, net of advanees and not provided in the books are as follows;

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment Mil Nil

NOTE 25 LEASES

In case of assels taken on lease
Oprmk'ng Leases

During the financial year 2024-25, Company had taken premises admeasuring, 60 st approx, at Commercial SCO no.71, First Floor, Royal Estate Complex Zirakpur, Sub Tehsil, Zirkpur, S.A5,
Nagar (Punfab), under the operating lease agreement for its registered office, These are generally cancelable leases and renowable by mulual consent on mutually agreed terms,

During the financ ial year, Company has taken premises admeasuring 50 s, 11 appros. sitiated at 7tk Floor, DM Building, 16 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi - 110001 from its Ultimate Holding,
Company (Ravinder Heights Lid.) on operating lease agreement [or using ils corporate office, These are grnerally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed erms.

The total of payments under operating lease is as under:

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
Hat March, st March,
2025 2024
Lease paymients for the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.41 0.16

NOTE 26 MSME

Based on the information available with the company, there are no dues as al March 31, 2025 and 3st March, 2024 pavable to enterprises covered under * Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, Mo Interest s paid/ payable by the company in Lerms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

NOTE 27 Related Party Disclosure
As requined by Indian Accounting Standard <24, the disclosures of transactons with the related parties are given below:
) Names of Related Partes and Nature of Related Party Relationship:

i) Ultimate Holding, Company
Ravinder Heights Limited (Holding company of Radhika Heights Lid.)

i) Holding, Company
Radhika Heights Limited (RHL)

1 Other Subsidiarics of Radhika Helghts Limited { Fellow Subsidiaries)
Radicura Infra Limiled
Sunanda Infra Limiud
Cabana Construction Private Limited
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited

iv) Key Management Fersonnel (KMF)/ Directors
Mr, Sumil Jain, Dirytor
Mis, Radhika Jain, Director
Mr. Kamal Lakhani, Director
Mr. Arun Singh, Director

£ merprhl aver which Person(s) (having control or significant infl over the Company / Key ' i p (5), along, with their relatives} are able to exercise significant
uence:

Lakshmi & Manager Holdings Limited
Trinidhi Finance Pyi. Lud.
Panacea Life Soiences Limited

Bessl General Insurance Co, Lud, u
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NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U01403F B2010PTC045880)
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

NOTE 28 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
A. Financial Instruments by category and hierarchy
i Financial Instruments by Category
The different levels of fair value have been defined below:
(Rs, in Lakhs)

Particulars Asat e
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Carrying Amount

Financial Instruments at fair value through Profit or Loss

(i) Other Investments 361.80 270.14

Total 361.80 270.14

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 138.81 - 11231

(i1) Other Financial Assets 0.10 0.28

Total Financial Assets 138.91 112.59

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

() Borrowings 664.42 664.42

(ii) Trade payables 3.85 3.57
iii) Other financial liabilities i o
otal Financial Liabilities 668,27 667,99 |

Note: The Company has disclosed financial instruments such as investment in equity instrument, cash and cash
equivalents, other financial assets, frade payables and other financial liabilities at carrying value because their carrying
amounts represents the best estimate of the fair values.

ii Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumplions were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair Value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other current receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities and
other financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1: Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3; Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data,

iii Valuation techniques used to determine fair value,
Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments includes:
(a) the use of net asset value (NAV) for mutual funds on the basis of the statement received from investee party.

(b) the use of adjusted net asset value method for cerfain equity investments because the amount of investment is not
material and management is not expected significant changes in fair value of investment.

29 Trade Payables 2 chedule as on 31st M !
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Total
ot 1-2 years 2-3 years years
(i) MSME E = E 7 T >
(i) Others - 3,53 0.32 . . 3.85
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME . : 2 z 7 P
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - - &
ZIrade Favables aging schedule a5 on 315t March' 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
T T kel years
(i) MSME PACUSERL 75N - 2 - E 2
(ii) Others <5 - [N\ as7 - - Z 3.57
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME = - 1=l A \ - - - &
(iv)Disputed dues - Others 4 - LISl TN o - . = 2
e
- 3




NIRMALA ORGANIC FARMS & RESORTS FRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U01403PB2010FTC045880)

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2025

NOTE 30 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's financial risk
management policy is set by the Managing Board. The financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies on risk management. Key financial risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board of directors of the Company.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss of future carnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial
instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, equity prices and other market
changes that may effect market sensitivity instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including
investments and deposits, loans and borrowings.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. In order to balance the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest rate
risk, management performs a comprehensive interest rate risk management. The Company has no interest bearing borrowings hence it is not
exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates,

Foreign currency risk
The Company has operations in India only hence Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is nil,

Price Risk

Price risk arises from exposure to equity securities prices from investments held by the Company. The Company does not have any
investments in equity shares.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to financial loss, Credit risk arises
from trade receivables and other financial assets.

Trade Receivables
There are no trade receivables in the Company as at reporting date.

Other Financial Assets

There is no credit risk exposure with respect to other financial assets as they are either supported by legal agreement or are with Nationalized
banks.
- Loans to Others are supported with legal agreements, hence there is no credit risk involved.

Provision for Expected Credit losses
Financial Assets are considered to be of good quality and there is no credit risk to the Company.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below provide details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial labilities at reporting date based on contractual
undiscounted payments.

Amount In Rs

Aoak Less than 1

year/ On 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years
i Demand
Current
(i) Borrowings 664,42 o u
(ii) Trade payables 3.85 - i &
(iii) Other financial liabilities - - _ &
Total 668.27 z - =

\=




NOTE 31

NOTE 32

NOTE 33

NOTE 34

NOTE 35

As at

Less than 1

31-Mar-24 year/ On 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years
Demand
Current
(i) Borrowings 664.42 - -
(i1) Trade payables 3.57 - -
(iif) Other financial liabilities - = -
Total #67.99 “ “ -
Ratios
Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios,
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change in % Reason
. 0.94 0.61 53.90% Due to decrease in liabilities and increase in
(a) Current Ratio stk
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio 7.35 748 -L77% N.A
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio NA NA 0.00% N.A
(d) Return on Equity Ratio 18.29 74.77 -75.53% Due to Decrease in profit
(e) Inventory turnover ratio NA NA 0.00% N.A
(f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio NA NA 0.00% N.A
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio 17.51 64.32 =72.77% Due to increase in expenditures
(h) Net capital turnover ratio -213.21% -89.94% 113.33% Due to Decrease in income
(i) Net profit ratio 20.08% 28.43% -29.39% Due to Decrease in profit
(j) Return on Capital employed 20.24% 85.36% -76.28% Due to Decrease in profit
(k) Return on investment 18.34% 21.92% -16.35% N.A

Capital Risk Management

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to
shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order
to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets, The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and
strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and
growth of its business. There in no change in the Company capital structure since previous year.

Revenue from Contracts with Customer

Ind AS 115 Revenue with Contracts with Customers, mandatory for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1,2018, replaces existing
revenue recognition requirements, Under the modified retrospective approach there were no adjustments required to the retained earnings as

at April 1, 2018. Application of Ind AS 115 did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the
financial results,

Segment Reporting

The Company is a one segment company in the business of real estate development and leasing. All its operations are located in India ,

accordingly, the Company views these activities as one business segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind
AS5 108 on “Segment Reporting’.

Notes on Amendment in Schedule III and relating to other disclosures required to be made in Financial Statements:

The company does not have any transaction with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of the
Companies Act 1956 during the year ended March 31% 2025 and March 31 2024,

There was no charges or satisfaction which were requried to registered with the registrar of companies during the year ended March 31st
2025 and March 31st 2024.

The company complies with the number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies
(Restriction on number of layers) rules 2017 during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

The company has not invested or traded in cryptocurrency or virtual currency during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding Benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transaction Act 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formally the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made
thereunder during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024.

The company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authorities
during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the competent authority in terms of sections 232 to 237 of the
Companies Act 2013 during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,




NOTE

NOTE

NOTE

NOTE

i

During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed
funds or the share premium or kind of funds) to any other person or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall:

i) directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(ultimate beneficiaries) or

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

Details of funds advanced during the year 2024-25: (Rs. In lakhs)
Funds further Date of Fund | Party to whom fund given | Date of funds further
Bane of the Pty Rt Nowsiesd loaned / Invested loaned / Invested loaned
Nirmala Buildwell Pvt. Ltd. 50.00 50001 24.06.2024 Investment in PTC's 24.06.2024
Nirmala Buildwell Pvt. Ltd. 125.00 125.00 30.01.2025 Investment in NCD's 30.01.2025
Details of funds advanced during the year 2023-24: (Rs. In lakhs)
Funds further Date of Fund Date of funds further
Name of the Party Fund loaned Yennad it Party to whom fund given Lianid
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not received any funds from any persons or entities including
foreign entities (Funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party
(ultimate beneficiaries) or

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

k Ind AS16 - Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing,

1

if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of the cost of an item of
property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Ind AS 37-Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The amendment specifies that the *cost of fulfilling a contract comprises
the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’, Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
{examples would be direct labour, and materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would
be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has
evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material,

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has received
Presidential assent on 28 September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the effective date of the Code is yet
to be notified and final rules for quantifying the financial impact are also yet to be issued. In view of this, the Company will assess the impact
of the Code when relevant provisions are notified and will record related impact, if any, in the period the Code becomes effective.

37 Events after the Reporting period

There are no events observed after the reported period which have an impact on the company operations.

38 The Financial Statement are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs, except when otherwise stated. Previous

year figures have been regrouped, reclassified wherever considered necessary.

39 Notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Nirmala Organic

For SUDHIR SUNIL & CO. \ Farms & Resorts Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 8345N -
( WA / b k:a.m.-ep Qome "
(MAHIMA KAPOO : i KAMAL LAKHANI
Partner Director
Membership No.514276 DIN 02904225

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED : 26.05.2025



AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
(LLPIN : AAP-0023) (Firm Reg. No. 027379N/N500115)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members of Cabana Construction Private Limited

Report on standalone Ind AS financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Cabana Construction Private
Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025; the statement of profit
and loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (“collectively referred as financial statements”), which we have signed under
reference to this report.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025 and its profit/(loss), changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally

Address : D-32, East of Kailash, New Delhi — 110065
Landline : 011-4905-0107, Mobile : +91 981 894 9966
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accepted in India, including the India accounting standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(i)  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(i)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

(iif) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Address : D-32, East of Kailash, New Delhi — 110065
Landline : 011-4905-0107, Mobile : +91 981 894 9966 Visit us : aagnca.in



AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
(LLPIN : AAP-0023) (Firm Reg, No. 027379N/N500115)

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

(v)  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

(vi) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure-A, a statement on the
matter specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable,

As required by section 143(3) of the Act we report that;

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit:

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;
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d)

€)

g)

Address -

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act, read with the Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2025, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such control, refer our separate report in “Annexure-B”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls.

our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as
under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements. Refer note no. 22 (A) to the financial statements.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the
question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to transfer any
sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums
does not arise.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed
in notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropri
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under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement,

h) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which have the
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention,

For AAGN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

CA. Akanksha Mishra
Partner
Membership No.: 507853

UDIN : 25507853BMFXIH1242

Date : 26.05.2025
Place : New Delhi
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ANNEXURE “A” to Independent Auditor’s Report

Annexure referred to our report of even date to the members of Cabana Construction Private Limited
on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31st March 2025;

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

()

(a)
(b)

Address : D-32, East of Kailash, New Delhi — 110065
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According to the information and explanation are given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment except one laptop which
was purchased during the financial year 2020-21. We have obtained the confirmation of the physical
existence of the laptop through management representation.

There is no immovable property in the nature of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment.

As represented by the management no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the

company for holding any Benami property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
and Rules made thereunder.

The Company is a real estate company and the project under construction has been disclosed under the
head inventories. The project under construction is situated at Village Harsaru and Hyatpur,
Gurugram, Haryana which is freehold land. The title deed of all the land is in favor of the company.
As represented by the management, the aforesaid land is under the control and custody of the
Company along with its title deed.

On the basis of the information and explanation given to us, there is no working capital limit has been
obtained by the company from banks or financial institutions.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the company and natures of its business.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company is generally
maintaining proper records of inventories. No material discrepancies were noticed on physical
verification of stock by management as compared to books.

The Company has renewed the loan of Rs. 100 lakhs to Luxor Writing Instruments Private Limited.
This loan was granted during the financial year 2020-21. The aforesaid loan of Rs. 100 lakhs were
outstanding along with interest of Rs. 2.77 lakhs which was accrued and due for a period less than 90
days (as on balance sheet date).

The Company has also renewed the loan of Rs. 15 lakhs to Vardhman Constructions. This loan was
granted during the financial year 2023-24, The company has further granted loan of Rs 15 lakh to the
said party. As on 31* March 2025 loan of Rs. 30 lakhs were outstanding from the party.

as represented by the management Luxor Writing Instruments Private Limited is not a subsidiary, joint
venture and associate of the company.

the terms of the aforesaid loan agreement are not prejudicial to the company’s interest and schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been sti
regular,
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(¢) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment.

(d) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties except disclosed
above.

iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has granted
loan of Rs. 100 lakhs to Luxor Writing Instruments Private Limited and investments of Rs. 769.53
lakhs made in the mutual funds and non-convertible debentures to which the provision of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are complied with.

V. In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi, As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central

Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by
the company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31st March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues outstanding on
account of any dispute.

viii. As informed to us, there was no transactions recorded in the books of account have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not
taken any loan either from banks, financial institutions or from the government and has not issued any
debentures.

% Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the

management, the company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (x) (a) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.
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Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3 (x) (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not filed by the auditors.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

The provisions related to internal audit are not applicable on the company and hence not commented
upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There was no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and hence not commented upon.

On the basis of the financial ratios, aging and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, We are of the opinion that there no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date.

The provisions related to Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the company, hence not
commented upon. =
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XXI. The provisions related to the consolidated financial statements are not applicable to the company,
hence not commented upon.

For AAGN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No - 027379N/NS00115 /=7 (
i

CA. Akanksha Mishra
Partner
Membership No.: 507853

UDIN : 25507853BMFXIH 1242

Date : 26.05.2025
Place : New Delhi
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ANNEXURE “B” to Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of the
Companies Act’2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Cabana Construction Private
Limited (Formerly known as Panacea Educational Institute Private Limited) (“the Company”) as at March 31,
2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013,

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those standards and
the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For AAGN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No - 027379N/N5001

CA. Akanksha Mishra
Partner
Membership No.: 507853

UDIN : 25507853BMFXIH 1242

Date : 26.05.2025
Place : New Delhi
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CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED
{CIN: US0S04PB2007PTC045878)
Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at As at
Faticulae NOt® | 316t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
1. ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipments 1 0.03 0.04
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 2 148.36 121.94
148.39 121.97
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 3 3,062.10 3,062.10
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 4 621.17 563.40
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 5 28.19 4.90
(iii) Loans 6 130.00 190.00
(iv) Other Financial Assets 7 132.75 132.75
(c) Other Current Assets 8 2.83 2.87
3,977.04 3,956.02
Total Assets 4,12543 4,077.99
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 9 1.00 1.00
(b) Others Equity 10 72.26 26,99
73.26 27.99
Liabilities
{2) Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 11 0.01 0.02
0.01 0.02
(3) Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 3,547.47 3,547.47
(i) Trade Payables 13 039 0.40
(iii) Other financial liabilities 14 500.59 500.39
(b) Other Current Liabilities 15 0.31 0.32
(c) Current Tax Liabilities ( Net) 16 3.40 1.40
4,052.16 4,049.98
Total Equity & Liabilities 4,125.43 4,077.99
Summary of significant accounting policies I
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, 1to037
As per our attached report of even date
For AAGN & Associates LLE;&"?‘:T = For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants ,;_’—f:« 5 Cabana Construction Private Limited

FRN : 027379N/ N5001

(=
CA. Akanksha Mishra M Kamal Lakhani
Partner = Director Director
Membership No, 507853 DIN 03592238 DIN 02904225
UDIN =~ 25 077952 BMFX |1 H )24 2

Place : New Delhi
Dated: 26.05.2025



CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: Us0904PB2007PTC045878)

Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended | For the year ended
lar:
HETR NOte | 316t March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Continuing Operations
Revenue From Operations N "
Other Income 17 83.65 61.69
Total Income (I) B3.65 61.69
Expenses
Depreciation & Amortization 1 . 0.04
Financial expenses 18 13,65 17.31
Other expenses 19 15.21 6.10
Total Expenses (IT) 28.86 23.45
Profit / (loss) before Tax (I) - (II) 54.79 38.24
Tax expense:
(1) Current Income Tax 8.79 5.58
(2) Deferred Tax expense/ (credit) (0.01) (0.01)
(3) Income Tax of Previous Years 0.74 0.50
Profit / (loss) for the year
from Continuing Operations (I1I) 45.27 32,18
Discontinuing Operations
Profit / (loss) for the year from discontinued Operations - -
Tax Income /(Expense) of discontinuing operations - -
Profit /(loss) for the year from discontinued Operations (after tax) . ‘
Profit / (Loss) for the year (IV) 45.27 3218
Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to proflt or loss - #
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 2 a
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 5 3
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss i 5
(V) Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
(V1) Total Comprehensive Income for the year 45.27 3218
Earning per share for continuing operations [face value of Share Re. 1/-each]
(Previous Year Re. 1/- each) ‘
(i) Basic
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 21 45.27 32,18
(ii) Diluted
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 45.27 3218
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, 1to 37

As per our attached report of even date

For AAGN & Associates LEP=.
. s LN

W,
NS
CA. Akanksha W@N

Radhika Jain
Partner Director
Membership No. 507853 DIN 03592238

- ODIN- 25 SD7BS3BMEXIA 12Y 2

Place : New Delhi
Dated: 26.05.2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cabana Construction Private Limited

mmzmﬂwu-»'

Kamal Lakhani
Director
DIN 02904225




CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: Us0904PB2007PTC045878)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March'2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particrilirs For the year ended For the year ended
31st March'2025 31st March, 2024
A)  Cash flow from operating activities
Net Operating profit before tax and extra ordinary items 54.79 3824
Adjustments for:-
Depreciation a 0.04
Interest income from NCD's (6.40) (1.09)
Interest income from others (35.58) (35.23)
Finance Cost 11.50 16.29
Unrealized (gain) / Loss on Mutual funds - "
Realized gain on Mutual funds (28.68) (59.16) (537) (25.36)
Operating profit before working capital changes (4.37) 12.89
(Increase) / Decrease in current Loans 60.00 100.00
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Financial Assets - (0.10)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets 0.03 273
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payable (0.01) (0.12)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current financial liabilites 0.21 (1.63)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilites (0.00) 60.23 (0.29) 100,59
Cash generated from operations 55.86 113.47
Net direct taxes paid 7.53 4.27
Net cash from Operating Activities 48.33 109.20
B)  Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Tangible Assets - -
Investment made in Mutual Fund (55.51) (569.01)
Interest receive from others 35,58 35,23
Interest income from NCD's 6.40 109
Realized gain received on Mutual Fund - -
Net cash used in investing activities (13.53) (532.69)
Net cash from operating and investing activities 34.80 (423.49)
C)  Cash flow from financing activities
Loans taken from Holding Co's - 512,50
Repayment of Loan - (100.00)
Interest paid (11.50) (16.29)
Net cash from financing activities (11.50) 396.21
Net cash from operating, investing & financial activities 23.30 (27.28)
Net increase in cash & cash equivalant 23.30 (27.28)
Opening balance of cash & cash equivalant 4.90 3218
Closing balance of cash & cash equivalant 2819 4.90
Note: Cash and cash equivalents included in the Cash Flow Statement comprise of the following;-
i) Cash balance in Hand 0.03 0.03
ii) Balance with Banks:
a) In Current Accounts 2816 4.87
b) In Fixed Deposits - B
Total 28.19 4.90

As per our attached report of even date

Kamal Lakhani
Director
DIN 02904225

o

For AAGN & Associates I,LP_' For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
M
{) v
A8
Partner [ Director
Place : New Delhi

Chartered Accountants~ Cabana Construction Private Limited
W
A NEW DELHI M
Membership No. 507853 i DIN 03592238
Dated: 26.05.2025

FRN : 027379N/ N5QOHS.
\
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CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: USD904PB2007PTC045878)

Statement of changes in

A. Equity Share Capital

Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(1) Current reporting period (Rs. In Lakhs)
Changes in equity
Opening Balance as at 1st April' 2024 share capital during Bﬂ:{mz; 527;2:1“
the current year -
1.00 - 1.00
(2) Previous reporting period
Changes in equity
Opening Balance as at 1st April, 2023 share capital during Bal;in;elzszzt;:l "
the previous year -
1.00 - 1.00
B. Other Equity
(1) Finaneial Year 2024-25
Equity Component Reserve and Surplus
: of Compound
Particulars Financial Capital Reserve gﬂgtd Total
instruments SR
Balance as at 1st April, 2024 - - 26.99 26.99
Changes in accounting policy/ prior period errors - - - .
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting
period - - - -
Total Compreh ensive Income for the current year - - - i
Dividends - - - 2
Transfer to retained earnings - = 4527 45.27
Adjustment on account of Preference Shares - = " .
Any other change (to be specified) = = . "
As at 31st March' 2025 = - 72.26 72.26
(2) Financial Year 2023-24
Equity Component Reserve and
Surplus
: of Compound
Particulars R Total
Financial o Retained
instruments pital Reserve Earnings
Balance as at 1st April, 2023 - - (5.19) (5.19)
Changes in accounting policy/ prior period errors - s - "
Restated balance at the beginning of the previous
reporting period - - = o
Total Comprehensive Income for the previous year - - - :
Dividends - - 5 e
Transfer to retained earnings - - 3218 3218
Adjustment on account of Preference Shares i - F B
Any other change (Share [ssue Expenses) i - i =
As at 315t March' 2024 - - 26,99 26.99

For AAGN & Asaotia_tg_g_k_l_:.‘g_“
Chartered Acmup]lg@%‘?:l o rf_‘.;;u.h

Membership No. 5073‘3
UDIN- 25507453 EMFFMIZ‘Q
Place : New Delhi

Dated: 26.05.2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cabana Construction Private Limited

Director
DIN No. 03592238

Mﬂﬁm_nﬂ

Kamal Lakhani
Director
DIN No.02904225
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d)

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: US0904FB2007FTC045878)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for the year ended March 31,2025

Background

Cabana Construction Private Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Radhika Heights Limited. The main objects of the Company is to carry on business of
acquisition, construction and development of projects, townships, built-up infrastructure, housing, commercial premises, hotels, resorts, hospital, educational
institution, recreational facilities, city and regional level infrastructure and other allied works including to acquire by purchase, lease exchange, rent or
otherwise deal in land buildings and in real estates of all kinds.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements, These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following;
- certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at fair value (refer accounting policies regarding financial
instruments)

Use of Estimates & Judgements

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimati uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

i)Income taxes: The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upan the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

ii)Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the
Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns efc,

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
-Expected to be realised or intended to be sald or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

[tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of
products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between the aquisition of the assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalent, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 48 months for real estate projects and 12 montths for others for the purpose of classification of iis assets and liabilities as
current and non current,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase
price, directly attributable cost of bringing the assel to its working condition for its intended use and borrowing Costs attributable to construction of qualifying
asset, upto the date assset is ready for its intended use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent costs
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic

benefits associated with the item will flow ta the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, All other repairs and maintenance are charged 1o
profit or loss during, the reporting period in which they are incurred,

Derecoginition

An item of Property, Plant & Equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from the use. Any gains and losses on
disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of Property, Plant and
Equipment and are recopnised fetayithin “Other income/ Other expenses” in the Statement of Profit and Loss iy




Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on the Written Down Value Method (WDV) over the estimated useful lives of the assets considering the nature,
estimated usage, operating conditions, history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance
support. Considering these factors, the Company has decided to apply the useful life for various categories of property, plant & equipment,
which are as prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Act. Estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

5. Useful
No Type of Assets Life in
: Years
a) |Buildings — Non-Factery buildings 60
b) |Plant and machinery (including Electrical fittings) 15
c) |Office equipment 5
d) {Furniture and fixtures 10
2) |Vehicles 2
f) |Computers Equipment 3.5
| &) |Software 5

a)

The useful lives are reviewed at least at each year end. Changes in expected useful lives are treated as change in accounting estimate,
Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease or the estimated useful life whichever is lower,
Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Financial Instruments

Financial Assets
Financial assets comprise loans and advances , Cash and cash equivalents and other eligible assets,

Initial recognition and t

All financial assets are recognised initially al fair value except trade recievables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the
financial assets. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e,, the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Fopmt & R 1
quent Iy nt

-Financial Assets measured at amortised cost: Financial assels held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest
(SPPI) on principal amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (EIR) method.

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets. These
financial assets are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. The EIR amortisation is recognised as
finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Financial assets held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
bath collecting the contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payment towards principal and interest (SPPI) on principal outstanding are subsequently measured at FYTOCI. Fair value movements in
financial assets at FVTOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain loss in statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit and loss, Interest earned is recognised under the expected interest rate (EIR) model.

-Equity instruments other than investment in associates: Equity instruments held for trading are classified at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), For
other equity instruments the Company classifies the same as at FVTOCL The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable, Fair value changes
on equity instruments at FVTOCI, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI).

- Financial assets at fair value through fair value through Profit or Loss (FYTPL): Financial assets are measured at FVTPL if is does not meet the criteria for
classification as measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value changes are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss,

Derecognition of financial assets:
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or the financial asset is transferred and the
transfer qualified for derecognition. On derecognition of financial asset in its entirety the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date of

derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) shall be recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss,

Impairment of financial assets:

Trade receivables, contract assets, receivables under Ind AS 109 are tested for impairment based on the expected credit losses (ECL) for the respective financial
asset. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
approach followed by the company for recognising the impairment loss is given below:

1) Trade receivables

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The expected credit losses over lifetime of the asset are estimated by adopting the simplified
approach using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current condition and forecasts of future economic conditions.

2) Other financial assets

For recognition offp: __‘_:' loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the

credit risk a.\ﬁmfmvlnt e If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk
s
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iv)

v)

vi)

b) Financial liabilities:

°)

d)

Financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade payables and other eligible liabilities,

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, Any transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liabilities {except financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are deducted from the fair value of financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: The Company has classified the following under amortised cost:

a) Trade payables

b) Other financial labilities

Amartised cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount,

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or lass. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term,

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet Date are carried at a value which is approximately equal to fair value due to the
short maturity of these instuments,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability shall be derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Offsetting financial instraments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention 1o settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously, The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or
the counterparty.

Reclassification of Financlal Assets

The Company determines the classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are categorised as equity instruments at FVTOCT and financial assets or financial liabilities that are specifically designated at FVTPL. For
financial assets, which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets, Changes to the
business model are expected to be infrequent. The management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are
significant to the Company's operations. A change in the business model occurs when the Company cither begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to ils operations, If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the
first day of immediately next reporting period following the change in business model, The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction er production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset,
Other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. To the extent the Company borrows funds generally and uses them
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the Company determines the amount of borrowings costs eligible for capitalization by applying a capitalization
rate to the expenditure incurred on such asset. The capitalization rate is determined based on the weighted average of borrowing costs applicable 1o the
borrowings of the Company which are outstanding, during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the qualifying asset. The
amount of borrowing costs that the Company capitalizes during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing costs incurred during that period,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment, If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generaling unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs 1o sell, In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of money
and the risk specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group af
assets that generates cash inflows from the continuing use that are largely independent of cash inflows of other assets or group of assets (the cash generating
unit).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses are recognised in respect of cash generating units are allocated first 1o reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or group of units on a pro rata basis.

Reversal of impairment loss
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists,

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only Lo
the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized directly in other comprehensive income and presented within equity.

Inventories

Inventorfes are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of Inventory( Stock In Trade) represents cost of land and all expenditure incurred in
connection with,




vii)

viii)

ix)

X}

a)

b}

Provisions and Contingencies

A provision arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current management estimates.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
oCcurrence or nan-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the enterprise. When there is a possible obligation or
present obligation where the likelihood of an outflow is remote, no disclosure or provision is made.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ane or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. A contingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is prabable.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset,
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time {s recognised as a finance cost,

The company does not recognize a contingent lability but disclosed its existence in the financial statements,

Income Taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profil and loss except to the extent it relates to items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax
Current tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable
income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting

date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the
time of the transaction,

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred lax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reparting date,

Minimum Alternate Taxes

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) is pavable when the taxable profit is lower than the book profit. Taxes paid under MAT are available as a set off against regular
income tax payable in subsequent years. MAT paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax, The Company recognises MAT credit
available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period i.¢ the period
for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. MAT credit is recognised as an asset and is shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement’. The Company reviews
the "MAT Credit Entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and write down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will
pay normal tax during the specified period.

Foreign Currency Translations
Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currenicy’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is Radhika Heights Private Limited's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year .
end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss. g

Leases

Where the Company is the lessee

Right of use Assets and Lease Liabilities
a) Classification of Lease

\.
The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several factors, including, but not limited to, the
transfer of ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the lessee’s option 1o extend / purchase elc.

b) Recognition and initial measurement

At the lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at
coat, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received),

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases (twelve month or less period) and leases of low-value assets using practical expedients. Instead of

recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in a standalone statement of profit and loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

<) Subsequent -

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to lhm'ﬂgréi-ihé‘ég@v,{f the useful life of the right
of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment wh




xi)

xii}

xif)

xiv)

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases, Rental income
from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease, except when the lease rentals, increase are in ling with general
inflation index. Initial ditect costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added ta the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income, Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned,

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from
lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net inv tin the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments wilh original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

Revenue Recoginition

Revenue is recopnized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured,
Income from Services - Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement,

Interest Income: Interest income is recognized as it accrues in Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method.

Dividend income - Revenue is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established at the balance sheet date. Dividend income is
included under the head “Other income” in the statement of profit and loss,

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period,

Diluted earning, per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EFS
and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential
equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive polential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

Segment reporting
Business segment: The segmental reporting disclosures as required under Ind AS - 108 are not required, as there are no reportable business segments.




CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: UB0904PB2007PTC045878)

Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2025

Property, Plant and Equipment

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Description

Computer
Equipment

Total

Gross carrying value
As at April 1, 2023
Additions
Disposals
Adjustments
Exchange differences

As at March 31, 2024

Additions

Disposals
Adjustments
Exchange differences

As at March 31, 2025

0.62

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2023
Charge for the year
Deduction during the year
Exchange differences

As at March 31, 2024

Charge for the year
Disposals
Exchange differences

As at March 31, 2025

Net block as at March 31, 2024

0.04

Net block as at March 31, 2025

0.03

2




CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U80904PB2007PTC045878)

Naotes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
biici s 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Investments (Non current)
NCD's (unquoted):
1) Nil NCD's Hella Infra Market Pvt. Ltd. Tr 211.25% (Previous Year 200's) i 13.24
AIF (unquoted):
1) 1,000 Units @ Rs. 1000 each of Vivriti Emerging Corporate Bond Fund Class Al
(Previous Year 1000 NCD's) 108.92 108,70
2) 320 NCD's Keertana Finserve Pvt. Ltd. (Previous Year Nil NCD's) 39.44 s
148.36 121.94
Inventories
(Valued at Cost or NRV, whichever iz lower)
Stock In Trade 3,062.10 3,062.10
(Representing Purchase cost of land)
3,062.10 3,062.10
Investments (current)
A) Quoted Mutual Funds
(At Fair Value through Profit & Loss)
Kotak Saving Funds - Growth - (Regular) Nil units (Previous Year 2,96,930.771 units) - 5051
Nippon India ETF Liquid Bees - 1.19 units (Previous Year 1.077 units) 0.01 0.01
UTI Low Duration Fund - Growth - (Regular) Nil units (Previous Year 253.778 units) - 8.19
Kotak Liquid Funds - Grwoth - (Regular) 8842.27 units (Previous Year 10,381,843 units) 459,06 50247
B) Unquoted NCD's:
1) 200 NCD's Hella Infra Market Pyt, Ltd. Tr 211.25% (Previous Year 200 NCD's) 210 222
2) 320 NCD's Keertana Finserve Pvt. Ltd. (Previous Year Nil NCD's) 160.00 =
621.17 563.40
Cash and Cash Equivalents
a) Balances with Bank 28.16 4.87
b) Cash in Hand 0.03 0.03
28.19 4.90
Loans (current)
Loan to Other parties
Unsecured, considered good 130.00 190,00
130.00 190,00
Other Current Financial Assets
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits 0.10 0.10
Advances to Others 132,65 132,65
132.75 132.75
Other Current Assets
Interest accured and due on Loans 277 2.80
Interest accured but not due on Loans 0.07
Prepaid Expenses 0.00
2.87




CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: US0904PB2007PTC045878)

Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at
% e Cape] March 31,2025 March 31,2024
a. Authorised
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each 1,00 100

(Previous Year 1,00,000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each)

b. Issued, Subseribed & fully Paid-up Shares
1,00,000 (Previous Year 1,00,000) Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid-up 1.00 1.00

Total Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid-up Share Capital 1.00 1.00

¢. Terms [rights attached to equity shares

The company has anly one class of equity shares having a face value of Re.1/- per share. Each halder of equity shares is entitled to one vate per share. The dividend declared, if any
is payable in Indian rupees. The dividend if any proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual General Meeting, The board
has not proposed any dividend for current year and previous year.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitiled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts
including preference shares. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

d. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares
As at March 31, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
In Nos. (Rs. In Lakhs) In Nos, (Rs. In Lakhs)
At the beginning of the year 1,00,000 1.00 1,00,000 1.00
Add : Issued during the vear ending p o s .
Outstanding at the end of the Year 1,00,000 1.00 1,00,000 1.00
e. Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at March 31, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
% holding in the % holding in
In Nos. Class In Nos. the Class

Equity shares of Re,1/- each l'ul.ly paid

- Radhika Heights Limited (Holding Company) 99,999 99.99% 99,999 99.99%
(1 shares are held by nominees of Radhika Heights Limited)

f. Promoter’s Shareholding

As at March 31, 2025 As at F1st March, 2024
In Nos, Yoof total % Change during| In Nos, % Change
Promoter’s name shares the year “oof total shares | during the year
Radhika Heights Limited 99,999 99.99% 0.00% 99,999 99,99% 0.00%
B Shares held by halding company and/or their subsidiaries/ associates
As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Equity shares of Re,1/- each fully paid
- Radhika Heights Limited (Holding Company) 99,999 99,999
- Mra Meenu Parti (1 shares are held by nominees of Radhika Heights
Limited) 1 1




CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: US0904PB2007PTC045878)

Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2025
(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at

Particular
: 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

10 Other Equity

Retained Earnings

Opening balance 26,99 (5.19)
Add: Net profit/ (loss) for the current year 4527 32,18
Profit available for appropriation 72.26 26,99
Less : Appropriations - -
Closing balance 72.26 26.99
Total Reserves and Surplus 72.26 26.99

11 Deferred Tax Liability (Net)
On temporary difference between the accounitng base & tax base
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of

Property, plant and equipment 0.0 0.02
Others - -
0.01 0.02

12 Current Borrowings
Loans from Related Parties
Unsecured borrowings from holding Company

- Radhika Heights Limited 3,44747 344747

The above borrowing is reayable on demand

- Loan from Director - Mrs. Radhika Jain * 100,00 100.00
3,547.47 3,547.47

Notes:

*Loan taken from Director on the interest rate at 11,5% per annuam.
Refer Note 28 for liquidity risk & Market Risk of Current Borrowings.

13 Trade Payables

Trade Payables (dues to micro and other small enterprises) - -

Trade Payables (dues to other than micro and other small enterprises)

- Related parties ! =

- Others 0.39 0.40
0.39 0.40

Refer Note 27 for information about aging schedule of Trade Payables.

14 Other Current Financial liabilities
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 2 &
Interest received in advance 0.59 0.39

Security Deposit from others 500.00 500.00
500.59 500.39

Refer Note 28 for liquidity risk & Market Risk of Other Current Financial Liability.

15 Other Current Liability
Statutory Dues 031 0,32

0.31 0.32

16 Current Tax Liabilities

Provision of Income Tax 879 5.58
Less: Advance Income Tax 5.39 4,18
3.40 1.40




CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U80904PB2007PTC045878)

Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year
Particulars F;[rs:hh?l::ca; ‘;%g;d ended
: 31st March, 2024
17 Other income
Interest received from Others 35.58 35.23
Interest received from NCD's 6.40 1.09
Profit on redemption of mutual fund / Equity 28.68 537
Dividend received 0.00 0.00
Unrealized gain on mutual fund 12,98 20.01
Excess provisions written back 0.01 0.00
83.65 61.69
18 Financial expenses
Interest on Unsecured Loan 11.50 16.29
Other financial expenses 215 1.02
13.65 17.31
19 Other expenses
Legal & Professional Charges 14.01 5.46
Auditor's Remuneration:-
- Statutory Audit Fees 0.35 0.35
- Fee for other services - -
Fees & Taxes 0.02 0.08
Lease Rent 0.79 0.18
Insurance Expense 0.02 0.01
Bank Charges 0.02 0.02
15.21 6.11




CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: UB0904PB2007FPTC045878)
Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2025

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
NOTE 20 INCOME TAX March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
The income tax expense consists of the following :
Current tax expense for the current period B.79 5.58
Current tax expense pertaining to previous years 0.74 0.50
Deferred tax expense/ (benefit) (0.01) (0.01)
Total income tax 9.52 6.07
Reconciliation of tax liability on book profit vis-a-vis actual tax liability
Profit before income taxes 54,79 38.24
Enacted Tax Rate 2517% 22.88%
Computed Tax Expense 13.79 8.75
Adjustments in respect of current income tax
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed (3.59) (3.17)
Tax effect of expenses that are not dedcutible for tax G 3
Change in Tax rate (1.41) -
Minimum alternative tax (MAT) credit v .
Previously unrecognised tax losses used to reduce current tax expense - -
Other Temporary Differences 0.73 0.49
Total income tax expense 9,52 6.07
E 21 Earnings P As at As at
N i March 31,2025  March 31,2024
Profit/ (loss) attributable to shareholders 45.27 3218
Weighted average number of equity shares 1,00 1.00
Nominal value per equity share 1 1
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted 160 1,60
for the effect of dilution : i
Earnings per equity share 45.27 3218
Basic 4527 3218
Diluted
) As at As at
NOTE 22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(A) Contingent liabilities
I Income Tax Nil Nil
I Other Legal Cases Nil Nil
(B) Capital and other commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, net of advances and not provided in the books are as follows:
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Property, plant and equipment Nil Nil

NOTE 23

LEASES

In case of assets tak.en on lease
Operating Leases:

Company has taken premises admeasuring 70 sq.ft. approx. at Commercial SCO no.71, First Floor, Royal Estate Complex Zirakpur, Sub Tehsil, Zirkpur, S.A.S.
Nagar (Punjab), under the operating lease agreement for its registered office. These are generally cancelable leases and renewable by mutual consent on

mutually agreed terms.

During, the financial year, Company has taken premises admeasuring 125 sq.ft. approx, situated at 7th Floor, DCM Building, 16 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi -

110001 from its Ultimate Holding Company (Ravinder Heights Ltd.) on operating lease agreement for using its corporate office.

leases and renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms,

The total of payments under operating lease is as under:

These are generally cancelable

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Lease payments for the year recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

0.79

0.18

&



NOTE 24 MSME

Based on the information available with the company, there are no dues as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 payable to enterprises covered under " Micro
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, No Interest is paid/payable by the company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

NOTE 25 Related Party Disclosure

As required by Indian Accounting Standard -24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

a) Names of Related Parties and Nature of Related Party Relationship:

i) Ultimate Holding Company
Ravinder Heights Limited (Holding Company of RHL)

ii) Holding Company
Radhika Heights Limited (RHL)

iii) Other Subsidiaries of Radhika Heights Limited ( Fellow Subsidiaries)
Radicura Infra Limited
Sunanda Infra Limited
Nirmala Buildwell Private Limited
Nirmala Organic Frams & Resorts Private Limited

iv) Key Management Personnel (KMP) / Directors
Mrs. Radhika Jain, Director
Mr, Kamal Lakhani, Director
Mr. Mahipati Singh, Director
Mr. Arun Kumar Singh, Director

y) Enterprises over which Person(s) (having control or significant influence over the Company / Key management personnel(s) / Directors, along with their
relatives) are able to exercise significant influence:
Lakshmi & Manager Holdings Limited
Trinidhi Finance Pvt. Ltd.
Panacea Life Sciences Ltd,
Best General Insurance Co. Litd.

b) Description of transactions with the related parties in the normal course of business: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Ultimate holding Company Holding Company KMP / Directors
i As at As at As at Mﬂlrha;l Asat As at
March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2025 2{)24" " | March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Transaction made during the period
Rent paid
- Ravinder Heights Ltd. 0.59 - - - “ -
Loan repaymet made to :
- Ms, Radhika Jain E - - - - 100.00
Loan (unsecured) taken from:
- Radhika Heights Limited - - - 512,50 . -
Interest payment on loan taken (unsecured)
- Ms, Radhika Jain - - - - 11.50 17.31
B. Period end balance
Unsecured loans outstanding
- Radhika Heights Limited - - 3,447 47 3,447 47 - -
- Ms. Radhika Jain * - - - - 100.00 100.00
Notes
-* Loan taken from Directors on interest at the rate of 11.50% Per annum.
Percentage
g::’s:t o to the total i:; :1::':‘ of
: Loans and Percentage to the
advance in advance in
. vha tabons ot f*\dv&nc&s Hie natracof total Lmng and
Type of Borrower Lian: in the s Advances in the
nature of . nature of loans as
outstanding, Lok outstanding on 31st March'24
as on ?:lst gk 1 as on 31st e
March'25 March'25 March'24
Promoters T Nil 0 Nil 0
Directors o, WS lg N Nil 0 _—tho—Nil 0
KMPs ML =2 \Co Nil QS o A, 0
Related Parties d27 TR Nil \ 0




NOTE 26
A,

CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: UB0904PB2007PTC045878)
Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2025

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Financial Instruments by category and hierarchy
Financial Instruments by Category

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at

Particulars 31-March-25 31-Mar-24
Financial Instruments at fair value through Profit or Loss
Investment 769.53 669,87
Total 769.53 669.87
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 28.19 490
(ii) Bank Balances other than i) above - -
(iii) Loans 130.00 190.00

iv) Other financial assets 132.75 13275
Total Financial Assets 290,93 327.65
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
(i) Borrowings 3,547.47 3,547.47
(ii) Trade payables 0.39 0.40
(iii) Other financial liabilities 500,59 500,29
Total Financial Liabilities 4,048.46 4,048.26

Note: The Company has disclosed financial instruments such as investment in equity instrument, cash and cash equivalents, other
financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities at carrying value because their carrying amounts represents the best

estimate of the fair values,

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

Fair Value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other current receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities and other
financial instruments approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments,

The different levels of fair value have been defined below:

Level 1: Quoted (Unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable

market data.

iii Valuation techniques used to determine fair value,
Specific valuation technique used to value financial instruments includes:

(a) the use of net asset value (NAV) for mutual funds on the basis of the statement received from investee party,

(b) the use of adjusted net asset value method for certain equity investments because the amount of investment is not material and
management is not expected significant changes in fair value of investment.

NOTE 27 Trade Pj

Particulars

Qutstanding for followi ng

riods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 12 years 2-3years More than 3
year years
(i) MSME - = - :
(ii) Others 0.39 0.00 - -
(iii) Disputed dues — i} ) : "
MSME
(iv)Disputed dues - Others - s - =
Trade Payabl
Particulars Outslanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
(i) MSME i - 2 - -
(i) Others 0.40 . - - 0.40
(ili) Disputed dues —
MSME i i - . '

(iv)Disputed dues - Others

<y



CABANA CONSTRUCTION PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: US0904PB2007PTC045878)
Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2025

NOTE 28 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company’s financial risk management policy
is set by the Managing Board, The financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies on risk management. Key
financial risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board of directors of the Company.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair value of future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of financial instrument. The value of a
financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, equity prices and other market changes that may effect market sensitivity instruments,
Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, loans and borrowings.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, In order to
balance the Company’s position with regards to interest income and interest expense and to manage the interest rate risk, management performs a comprehensive
interest rate risk management. The Company has no interest bearing borrowings hence it is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective

reporting dates. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of change in
market interest rates.

Fareign currency risk
The Company has operations in [ndia only hence Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is nil.

Price Risk

Price risk arises from exposure to equity securities prices from investments held by the Company. The Company does not have any investments in equity shares,

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to financial loss, Credit risk arises from trade
receivables and other financial assets.

Trade Receivables
There are no trade receivables in the Company as at reporting date.

Other Financial Assets

There is no credit risk exposure with respect to other financial assets as they are either supported by legal agreement or are with Natonalized banks.
- Loans to Others are supported with legal agreements, hence there is no credit risk involved.

Provision for Expected Credit losses
Financial Assels are considered to be of good quality and there is no eredit risk to the Company.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquiclity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due,

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into
account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates,

Contractual Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below provide details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at reporting date based on contractual undiscounted
payments.

Asat Less than 1 year/ On More than 3
31-Mar-25 i / 1-2years 2-3years i
Current

(i) Borrowings 354747 o 5
(ii) Trade payables 0.39 = L o
(iii) Other financial liabilities 500.59 : Z
Total 4,048.46 - s =
As at Less than 1 year/ On More than 3
31-Mar-24 Dema:d ¢ i S b years
Current

(i) Borrowings 3,547 47 - * ¥
(ii) Trade payables 040 2 2 5
(iii) Other financial liabilities 500.39 " & z
Total 4,048.26 E = .




NOTE 29 Ratios

NOTE
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Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, alongwith detailed
explanations thereof, including:

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change in % Reason

(a) Current Ratio 0.981 0.977 0.48% NA
b) Debt-Equity Ratio 48.424 126.718 -61.79% Due to increase of Reserves
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 4.316 2.862 50.80% Due to increase in other income
d) Return on Equity Ratio 45.272 32.185 40.66% Due to increase in other income
(e) Inventory turnover ratio NA NA NA NA

Trade Receivables turnover ratio NA NA NA NA
(g) Trade payables turnover ratio 38.210 13.154 190.48% Due to increase in other expenses
(k) Net capital urnaver mtio (1113) {697 69:5%% Due to increase in current liabilities
(i) Net profit ratio 54.12% 52.17% 3.74% NA
(j) Return on Capital employed 93.41% 198.30% -52.89% Due to increase in other expenses
(k} Return on investment. 8.70% 10.50% -17.10% NA
Capital Risk Management

The Company aim to manages its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to shareholders. The
capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day
needs, We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain
creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business, There in no change in the Company capital structure since

Radhika Heights Limited along with its four wholly owned subsidiaries, i.e. Radicura Infra Limited, Cabana Construction Private Limited, Nirmala Buildwell
Private Limited and Sunanda Infra Limited had entered into a Collaboration Agreement with Bestech India Pvt, Ltd, (Developer) for its land situated in Sector
B9A, Gurgaon for affordable platted colony project under Deen Dayal Jan Awas Yojna from DTCF Haryana,

Thereafter, the project has abtained two licenses from Directorate of Town and Country Planning, Haryana on 17.09.2021 for 12,3812 acres of Land and 08.10.2021
for 39.43125 acres of Land. In 2023, RERA certificates have been received for the aforesaid projects and the development work is in process.

Revenue from Contracts with Customer

Ind AS 115 Revenue with Contracts with Customers, mandalur:,- for reporting perfods bcginn_ing on or after April 1,2018, IEPlaCE!I existing revenue recognition
requirements. Under the modified retrospective approach there were no adjustments required to the retained carnings as at April 1, 2018. Application of Ind AS
115 did not have any impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial results.

Notes on Amendment in Schedule IIT and relating to other disclosures required to be made in Financial Statements:

The company does not have any transaction with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act 1956
during the year ended March 31 2025 and March 31" 2024, :

There was no charges or satisfaction which were requried to registered with the registrar of companies during the year ended March 31st 2025 and Mareh 31st
2024.

The company complies with the number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on
number of layers) rules 2017 during the year ended March 31, 2025, and March 31 2024,

The company has not invested or traded in cryptocurrency or virtual currency during the yvear ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding Benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transaction

Act 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formally the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder during the vear ended March
31st 2025 and March 31st 2024.

The company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authorities during the year ended
March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement approved by the competent authority in terms of sections 232 to 237 of the Companies Act 2013
during the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024,

During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 315t 2024, the company has not surrendered or disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the books

of accounts in the course of tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as search ar survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act
1961).

During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or the share

premium or kind of funds) except as disclosed as below, to any other person or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall;

i) directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

Details of funds advanced during the year 2024-25: (Rs. In lakhs)
Name of the Party Fund loaned Funds further loaned Date of Fund loaned Party to whom fund given I!Ju.: :;;r[:‘;:ﬂ:
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Details of funds advanced during the year 2023-24: (Rs. In lakhs)
g 3 Date of funds
Name of the Party Fund loaned Funds further loaned Date of Fund loaned Party to whom fund given Feitian Toared
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil




j During the year ended March 31st 2025 and March 31st 2024, the company has not received any funds from any persons or entities including foreign entities
(Funding party) except as disclosed as below, with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries)
or

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

Details of funds borrowed & advanced during the year 2024-25; {Rs. In lakhs)
Namie of the Borrower Funds borrowed Funds Paid Date of Fund received Farty to whom fund given D:t:‘;‘;';::dn

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Details of funds borrowed & advanced during the year 2023-24: {Rs. In lakhs)
Name of the Borrower Funds borrowed Funds Paid Date of Fund received Party to whom fund given D:t:::r“t::ds

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ind AS 16 - Property Flant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be
recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of the cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment, The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no
impact on its consolidated financial statements,
' Indas 37-Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, and
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material,

NOTE
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has received Presidential assent on 28

September 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the effective date of the Code is yet to be notified and final rules for quantifying
the financial impact are also yet to be issued. In view of this, the Company will assess the impact of the Code when relevant provisions are notified and will
record related impact, if any, in the period the Code becomes effective,

NOTE 35 Events after the Reporting period
There are no events abserved after the reported period which have an impact on the company operations.

NOTE 36 The Financial Statement are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs, except when otherwise stated. Previous year figures have been
regrouped, reclassified wherever considered necessary,

NOTE 37 Notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these Standalone Financial Statements,
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